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NEW TYRE MANUFACTURING
This sector has a long history of contributing to import and export
markets. Given steady investment over an extended period, the
industry has maintained a viable presence in southern hemisphere
markets and made inroads into markets abroad via vehicle export
contracts and original equipment sales.

METAL AND ENGINEERING
The sector is becoming increasingly linked with the electronics industry
and places more emphasis on innovation and product globalisation.

PLASTICS MANUFACTURING
0[PZHZPNUPÄJHU[WHY[PJPWHU[PU[OLJV\U[Y`»ZTHU\MHJ[\YPUNZLJ[VY
accounting for more than 50 per cent of materials used.

AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURING
0[PZHZPNUPÄJHU[JVU[YPI\[VY[V[OLJV\U[Y`»ZTHU\MHJ[\YPUNV\[W\[
guided by policy instruments and initiatives from the Department of
Trade and Industry.

RETAIL MOTOR AND COMPONENTS MANUFACTURING
This sector is closely linked to the automotive manufacturing
sector as the supply of components for motor vehicle assembly
and manufacture is a prime source of trade. Government policy
instruments and initiatives apply to this sector.
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To increase access to high quality and relevant skills development
and training opportunities to support economic growth
in order to reduce inequalities and unemployment
and to promote employability and participation in the economy.
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Minister B N Nzimande
MP, Minister of Higher Education and Training
Honourable Minister
It is indeed a pleasure and a privilege to present to you
the annual report of the Manufacturing, Engineering
and Related Services SETA for the period 1 April 2011
to 31 March 2012. I thank you and your Ministry for the
unwavering support received during this accounting period
HUK[Y\Z[[OH[`V\^PSSÄUK[OLYLWVY[PUVYKLYHUKZOHYLV\Y
pride in contributing to the strategic objective of meaningful
skills development in South Africa.
Yours faithfully

Raymond Patel (Dr)
*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY
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Strategic Objectives

-

,ɈLJ[P]LHUKLɉJPLU[HKTPUPZ[YH[PVUZ`Z[LTMVY[OLTLY:,;("
Establishing credible institutional mechanism for skills planning;
Increasing access to occupationally-directed programmes;
Promoting the responsiveness of the FETs to the intermediate skills needs of the Sector;
Addressing the low level of youth and adult language and numeracy skills to enable additional training;
Encouraging better use of workplace-based skills development;
Encouraging and supporting cooperatives, small enterprises, worker-initiated, NGO and community
training initiatives;
Building career and vocational guidance.
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chairperson’s overview
INTRODUCTION
It is indeed an honour and pleasure to present
the 2011/12 Annual Report (including the Annual
Financial Statements) of the Manufacturing,
Engineering and Related Services Sector Education
and Training Authority (the merSETA).
As Chair of the Governing Board, I am pleased
to announce that the merSETA has received yet
HUV[OLY\UX\HSPÄLKH\KP[YLWVY[¶[OL[^LS]L[OZPUJL
its establishment.
Positive progress is essential for the organisation
despite the very challenging economic environment.
The reality of the global economy continuing to lose
momentum since 2008 and the concomitant erosion
VMI\ZPULZZJVUÄKLUJL^VYSK^PKLTHRLPUUV]H[P]L
visionary and leadership all the more imperative.
But these circumstances have failed to derail
the merSETA, which has upped its outputs and
deliverables.
This past year, has clearly revealed that the merSETA,
under the new Board, sub-committees and senior
management, has remained true to the character
MVY ^OPJO P[ PZ YLUV^ULK ¶ [OH[ VM JYLH[PUN [YHPUPUN
opportunities to ensure that South Africa continues
to be a productive base in the highly competitive
world economy.

“The reality of the global
economy continuing to
lose momentum since
2008 and the concomitant
erosion of business
JVUÄKLUJL^VYSK^PKL
make innovative visionary
and leadership all the
more imperative.”

Ms Phindile Nzimande

NEW BOARD
In line with the new course set by government’s
focus on the economy as a developmental state,
it was necessary that a new strategic focus be
implemented. On 1 April 2011, a new 15-member
Governing Board was instituted with three
independent members. This was no judgement
on previous boards, but the realisation that the
merSETA Board, like all other SETAs, had to include
members with no vested interests in particular
strategies.
Soon after the appointment, the Governing Board
went about assessing the organisation’s strengths
and weaknesses, ensuring that all structures were
aimed at augmenting and further strengthening
organisational prowess.
These initiatives ran parallel to a host of processes,
including formalising the Governing Board and its
sub-committees.
In the year under review, the Governing Board
approved its charter in line with the King III report on
Corporate Governance, the merSETA Constitution,
regulatory legislation and all mandates for which it is
responsible. The Governing Board Charter provides
an overview of the role, powers, functions, duties
and responsibilities of Governing Board members,
both collectively and individually. The basis for the
aforementioned is the applicable legislation as well
as the merSETA Constitution.

annual report 2011/12

1

The Chairperson of the Governing Board was
HWWVPU[LK MVY H Ä]L  `LHY [LYT VM VɉJL I` [OL
Minister of Higher Education and Training in
accordance with the provisions of the merSETA
Constitution.
Two (2) deputy Chairpersons were nominated and
appointed by the Governing Board from organised
labour and organised employers. Mr Xolani Tshayana
represents organised labour whilst Ms Janet Lopes
represents organised employers.
The following Committees were established in terms
of Schedule 5 (2) (1) and (2) and Schedule 5A of the
merSETA Constitution:
-

Executive Committee;
Audit and Risk Committee;
Remuneration Committee;
Education,
Training,
Quality
Committee;
Finance and Grants Committee;
Chamber Committees; and
Regional Committees.

Assurance

All Governing Board members underwent an
PUK\J[PVU WYVNYHTTL ^OPJO ZL[ V\[ [OLPY ÄK\JPHY`
duties, responsibilities, the merSETA nature of
business and the legislation applicable to the
merSETA.

NEW STRATEGIC IMPERATIVES
The transition of the merSETA Chamber Committees
from NSDS II to NSDS III was successfully achieved
through the induction exercise that was conducted
across all the merSETA Chambers.
Key to the induction exercise was the orientation
of new and long-serving committee members to
understand the new merSETA Constitution and how
the merSETA reorganised itself to respond to the
NSDS III mandate. The key responsibilities of the
Chamber Committees are spelled out in the new
merSETA Constitution.
It also became necessary during the period under
review and the implementation of the NSDS III that
the Chamber Unit of the merSETA, together with
the newly-established Chamber committees, draw
\WHJHWHJP[H[PUNWYVNYHTTLYLÅLJ[PUNTVYLKL[HPS
around the anticipated changes occasioned by the
introduction of the NSDS III and the broad National
Development Plan (NDP).
The capacity-building workshop commenced with
the inter-Chamber workshop held in March 2012.
Topics included the following:
-

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
0UHKKP[PVU[OL*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY+Y9H`TVUK
7H[LS ^HZ K\S` HWWVPU[LK MVY H Ä]L  `LHY [LYT
VM VɉJL [V 4HYJO  I` [OL 4PUPZ[LY MVSSV^PUN
approval by Cabinet. He is responsible for all
management functions, amongst which are the
implementation of the decisions of the Governing
Board and the advancement of the strategic planning
and policy development. Dr Patel ensures proper
HUKYLZWVUZPISLJVU[YVSVM[OLTLY:,;(ÄUHUJLZPU
compliance with the Public Finance Management
Act and other legislation.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
;OL ÄUHUJPHS WLYMVYTHUJL VM [OL TLY:,;( ^P[O
regards to income was successful as levy income
exceeded forecasts. This growth in levy income
resulted in increased disbursements of mandatory
grants, as the participation level remained
consistently high.
The application of the discretionary grant in the
current year was oversubscribed far beyond
available funds. The discretionary grant reserves
were fully committed as at 31 March 2012.
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The merSETA Strategic Imperatives and
Performance Plan;
The new merSETA Innovation, Research and
+L]LSVWTLU[ KP]PZPVU ¶ [OL YLMYHTPUN VM [OL
previous Projects Division;
Latest developments with the Quality Council
for Trades and Occupations (QCTO); and
The Department of Higher Education and
Training (DHET) Green Paper for Post-School
Education and Training.

The DHET Green Paper on Post-School Education
HUK ;YHPUPUN YLÅLJ[Z H UL^ YPNV\Y [V HTWSPM` ZRPSSZ
development in South Africa. It is yet another hallmark
MVY LɈLJ[P]L JVTWL[P[P]LULZZ PU ^VYSK YHURPUNZ
The Further Education and Training colleges and
the SETAs are set to solidify their positions as the
leaders of artisanal/technical progress under the
new initiatives.
It should be no other way as world trending in this
direction is the new iteration.
The merSETA’s adage of “doing the right things right
[OLÄYZ[[PTLHS^H`Z¹VWLUZ[OLWVY[HS[VIYLHRPUN
the logjam of skills shortage that hamper economic
growth.
The scene has been set, the milestones posted and
the beacons of light are clearly marking the new
direction.
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The merSETA can only but succeed!
I thank the honourable minister, Dr Blade Nzimande,
the merSETA Deputy Chairs, Mr Xolani Tshayana
and Ms Janet Lopes, all other members of the
new Governing Board, the Chief Executive
6ɉJLY THUHNLTLU[ HUK Z[HɈ MVY THRPUN HSS V\Y
achievements possible.
I also wish to extend a word of appreciation to the
previous Board and incumbents of the merSETA for
laying a solid foundation for growth.

Phindile Nzimande (Ms)
Chairperson of the Governing Board
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the merSETA governing board

Ms Phindi Nzimande
(Chairperson)

Mr Xolani Tshayana
(Deputy Chairperson)

Ms Janet Lopes
(Deputy Chairperson)

Ms Malebo Mogopodi

Ms Fiona Tregenna
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the merSETA governing board

Mr Thapelo Molapo

Mr Anton Hanekom

Mr Karl Cloete

Mr John Wilson

Mr Dana De Villiers
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the merSETA governing board

Mr Jakkie Olivier

Ms Jeanne Esterhuizen

Mr Johan van Niekerk

Mr Deon Reyneke

Mr Alex Mashilo
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ceo’s foreword
Our operational reports show the course we
successfully chartered.

Dr Raymond Patel

Allow me this year to quote from Ancient Chinese
philosophy where I turned my sights for wisdom.
;OLYLHKPUNZKH[LIHJRMYVT[OLTPKKSLVM[OLÄYZ[
millennium BCE. It was Tao Te Ching, simply called
;HV^OVPUOPZ^VYR¸9L[\YUPUN[V[OL9VV[¹Z[H[LZ!
¸+V`V\Y\[TVZ[[VILLTW[`OVSKÄYTS`[VZ[PSSULZZ
Thousands of events are occurring at any moment.
Observe each event as they occur, and observe
[OLTWHZZ5V[OPUNSHZ[Z,]LU[ZHYLSPRLÅV^LYZ
they bloom for a time and then sink back into their
roots. Returning to the root is peace. Yes, peace
consists in accepting what is, and knowing what
endures. With that acceptance and knowledge your
life descends into chaos and ruin. If you know what
endures, you are generous, magnanimous, gracious
HUKZLYLUL¹
Let me now reveal to you how generous,
magnanimous, gracious and serene the merSETA
has been during the year under review. Tao says
“when ambitions come to nothing, benevolence and
YPNO[LV\ZULZZ [HRLZ [OLPY WSHJL¹ 3L[ \Z ZOV^ `V\
how ambitious, benevolent and righteous we were
during the year under review.
Our success in the year under review was remarkable
¶ L]LU TVYL ZV NP]LU [OH[ [OL TLY:,;( OHK [V
navigate new waters with regard to the National
Skills Development Strategy III. It is Kung Fu Tzu
(Confucius), another Great Ancient Chinese Scholar,
^OVZH`Z!¸>OLUWLVWSL^PZO[VZLLHYLÅLJ[PVUVM
themselves, they do not look at running waters, they
SVVRH[Z[PSS^H[LYZ¹
3L[\ZYLÅLJ[

The Accelerated Artisan Training Programme
(AATP) JVU[PU\LK [V KLSP]LY X\HSPÄLK HY[PZHUZ [V
the sector at a structured pace. The year ended
having accommodated 3 900 new entrants with
803VM[OLZLQVPUPUN[OLWYVQLJ[K\YPUN[OLÄUHUJPHS
`LHY([[OLJSVZLVM[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY2 214 AATP
apprentices had successfully passed their trade test
since the programme’s inception. The merSETA is
pleased to report 91% successful completion rate
for metal-related trades and 60% for motor-related
trades. The AATP platform has now established
a sustained level of maturity which has become
the key enabler for the implementation of applied
research in support of a quality workplace training
agenda.
A total of 3 417 Memoranda of Agreement were
signed by employers of which 2 130 are still active
and are monitored in the regions by our Client
3PHPZVU 6ɉJLYZ 0U [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY [OL
MoAs constituted the following number of learners
VUKPɈLYLU[SLHYUPUNPU[LY]LU[PVUZ!
-

6 937 apprentices;
9 537 learners on learnerships;
10 650 undertaking skills programmes;
3 136 ABET learners;
1 474 sector specialists;
772 interns; and
3 028 experiential learners.

The
Discretionary
Grant
Unit
improved
disbursement of grants to our levy-paying and
exempted companies. The period under review
saw the disbursement of R209 million based on
milestones achieved by participating companies.
;OLÄN\YLYLWYLZLU[ZHUPTWYV]LTLU[VMV]LY50%
JVTWHYLK[V[OLWYL]PV\ZÄUHUJPHS`LHY
The Recognition of Prior Learning Project, rooted
PULHJOVM[OLTLY:,;(»ZÄ]LJOHTILYZVUJLHNHPU
provided a sound platform to enhance articulation
in the artisanal sphere. During the period under
review, there was an increase in applicants for
recognition of prior learning, with 4 483 applications
being evaluated for Section 28 trade testing.
2 522 applicants met the merSETA criteria and
1 708 were declared competent as artisans.
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The global economic recession continued to impact
negatively on the manufacturing, engineering
and related services sector. However, through the
Retrenchment Assistance Programme (RAP),
the merSETA provided direct assistance to a further
22 companies in addition to the 32 assisted in
the previous year. A further 975 individuals were
earmarked for retrenchment assistance, with the
total number reaching 5 102 since the project’s
inception. Through the national government
initiative, the ;YHPUPUN 3H`VɈ :JOLTL ;3: the
merSETA, as at 31 March 2012, approved 11 new
companies for the scheme with about R49. 9 million
claimed as training costs and learner allowances on
their behalf from the National Skills Fund and the
Unemployment Insurance Fund. A further seven
JVTWHUPLZHYLPU[OLÄUHSZ[HNLZVMHWWYV]HS;OL
TLS enabled 2 283 employees within the merSETA
sector to be retained in employment as opposed to
being retrenched, with a total of 6 083 individuals
having gone through the process since inception.
Tao says, “Water which is the softness and most
WSPHU[ Z\IZ[HUJL PU [OL ^VYSK ÅV^Z V]LY YVJRZ
which is the hardest and most rigid substance. And
HZP[ÅV^ZP[LU[LYZL]LU[OL[PUPLZ[JLY]PJLZ¹0U[OL
same way the merSETA’s reach covered the entire
geography of our country.
The merSETA Bursary Project awarded 278 new
bursaries to unemployed learners for the 2012
academic year. This brought the total number of
unemployed learners currently sponsored to almost
600, including 50 currently undergoing experiential
learning. Forty-three students graduated at the
end of 2011 and to date 22 of these are employed.
The merSETA has working agreements with the
Jacob Zuma Education Trust, NUMSA, the Nelson
Mandela Metropolitan University and the Mitchells
Plain Youth Project, giving opportunities to youth
who would otherwise not have the prospect or
funding to proceed with tertiary education.
In terms of support for Small and Micro Enterprises
(SMMEs), 4 762 companies were visited and
given guidance on the implementation of various
skills interventions within their organisations.
2 190 small companies were approved for Mandatory
Grant payments. Also in the year under review, 250
learners were enrolled for training in New Venture
Creation Learnerships and Skills Programmes at
NQF Level 2. Two FET colleges also participated in
delivering this programme.
0U [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY [OL TLY:,;(»Z
objective for non-governmental organisations
and community-based organisations was to
implement a focused, integrated and sustainable
strategy to support NGOs and CBOs. Ten NGOs and

8
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CBOs in Gauteng were supported, two in KwaZuluNatal, one in the Free State and one in Mpumalanga,
with 1 094 learners being reached. The focus areas
were Welding, Motor Mechanics, Electrical and
Assessors and Moderators. Agreements were
YLHJOLK ILMVYL [OL LUK VM [OL ÄUHUJPHS `LHY ^P[O
HM\Y[OLYÄ]L5.6Z[VPTWSLTLU[SLHYULYZOPWZHUK
ZRPSSZWYVNYHTTLZMVYHM\Y[OLYILULÄJPHYPLZ
Following the success of the HIV and AIDS Pilot
ProjectPU[OLWYL]PV\ZÄUHUJPHS`LHY[OLTLY:,;(
YLÄULK P[Z Z[YH[LN` [V PUJS\KL KPYLJ[ Z\WWVY[ HUK
mentoring. Company agreements have been
concluded which reach more than 5 500 employees
in the sector.
The Accelerated ABET Project utilises blended
learning and modular approaches to ABET
provisioning, curricula, methodologies and the
scheduling of learning. It reached 663 learners
in the year under review. The Occupational
ABET Project aims to develop and provide ABET
materials customised to each of the merSETA
JOHTILYZ [V LUZ\YL H JSVZLY Ä[ IL[^LLU (),;
and the occupational needs of those sub-sectors.
339 learners were reached through this project.
In addition, 1 198 employees in the sector were
allocated funding in response to Discretionary Grant
applications from companies.
The Mathematics and Science Project provides
for enrichment, weekend and holiday classes in
Mathematics, Science and English. The project aims
to address shortages of appropriate candidates for
entry into merSETA learning programmes. Results
were excellent with 99% of 300 learners passing,
219 with university entrance and 69 with university of
technology entrance. 78 distinctions were obtained
in Mathematics and Physical Science. Agreements
OH]L ILLU LU[LYLK PU[V ^P[O Ä]L -,; JVSSLNLZ
and two universities in seven provinces for preand post-matric Maths, Science and Technology
interventions, targeting 1 440 learners and more
than 20 schools.
The Project for People with Disabilities promotes
training and placement for the disabled in certain
occupations in the manufacturing and engineering
context. The project comprises a research and
development phase to match disabilities against
occupations, and 200 learners with disabilities were
directly reached. In addition, the merSETA also
entered into an agreement with the Disabled People
of South Africa (DPSA) and rolled out technical
learnerships for 140 candidates.
The Research and Development Unit was engaged
in a range of national and international academic
associations and conferences. Further, a range of
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academic articles were published in international
and national peer-reviewed journals and other
W\ISPJH[PVUZ PU HKKP[PVU [V [OL OPNOS` ZPNUPÄJHU[
applied research linked to the AATP platform.
The following research projects were active in the
2011/12:
-

-

-

Wits EPU Mapping Skills Research Partnership engagement concluded. The study
seeks to understand the geographical mapping
of educational and employment opportunities
for citizens of Gauteng Province. This project
provides insight into the relationship between
education and labour market in local contexts;
Artisan Project - HSRC Artisan Identity and
Status - This partnership project explores the
changing nature of the identity and status of the
artisan and artisanal milieu; and
RPL Study - Case Studies of RPL
Implementation in the sector. Fieldwork was
undertaken in-house.

WAY FORWARD
“True wisdom is wide and tranquil, false wisdom
is narrow and busy. Wise words are precise and
clear. When you sleep your spirit rams the earth as
a peaceful observer. But when you are awake you
become entangled with everything and everybody
you encounter. Day by day your mind is caught up
^P[OWYVISLTZ¶ZVTL[YP]PHSZVTLKLLWHUKZVTL
PU[LUZL¹*O\HUN;a\
With these wise words we look at the year ahead
and we state emphatically that the merSETA
does its utmost to deliver on its mandate. The
reality remains that more can be done to create
opportunities, learnerships and apprenticeships for
aspiring engineers and technicians. In particular, the
focus on training women in key technical spheres
needs to be upgraded.
The global crisis demands that sustainability be the
key platform for the survival of individual companies.
Inherent in this quest for sustainability is the need to
ensure the availability of suitably skilled labour and
expertise. Training for future upturns in the economy

is not just the core mandate of the merSETA, but
should also be a strategic issue for all South African
organisations. When the economic tide turns and
global demand rises, South African companies will
VUS`ILULÄ[MYVTHNYLH[LYWVVSVMZJHYJLZRPSSZ
The merSETA management takes this opportunity
of wishing the previous Board well. They were
instrumental in ensuring the organisation became
the benchmark for facilitators of post-school
education and training.
The merSETA is a priority delivery agency.
Only with the help of the Board and stakeholder
commitment can we achieve the landmarks set out
by the DHET and the Minister.
We have a mandate to produce several thousand
X\HSPÄLKHY[PZHUZHUK[OPZNHWIL[^LLUZJHYJLHUK
critical skills must be overcome if we are to have the
amazing impact our societies need.
I end with a quote from Confucius: “Wise people
are troubled by their own lack of abilities, not by the
failure of others to appreciate those abilities. Wise
people hope to be remembered for what they were;
foolish people hope to be remembered for what they
KPK>PZLWLVWSLHYLH^HYLVM[OLPYV^U^PZKVT¹
I thank the Chairperson, the Board and the Audit
Committee for their wisdom and guidance during
the year under review, the management team and
Z[HɈ MVY [OLPY HIPSP[PLZ LɈVY[Z HUK [OL WLVWSL [OL`
are.
“There is no greater joy than to know that you are
[Y\L[V`V\YZLSM¹4LUN;a\4LUJP\Z
I thank you.

Dr R Patel
*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJL
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related
Services SETA
annual report 2011/12
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the merSETA management team

Dr Raymond Patel
*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY

Mr Wayne Adams
*OPLM6WLYH[PVUZ6ɉJLY

Mr Derrick Peo
General Manager: Projects
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Ms Lindiwe Ndlela
*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY

Mr Tom Mkhwanazi
General Manager: Corporate Governance

ÄUHUJPHSV]LY]PL^
;OL ÄUHUJPHS WLYMVYTHUJL VM [OL TLY:,;( NYL^
PU [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY HZ SL]` PUJVTL YVZL
beyond what was budgeted. This growth in levy
income resulted in increased disbursements of
mandatory grants as the participation level remained
consistently high. The targets for discretionary
grants and projects expenditure were not met due
to delays in achievements of milestones.
Applications for the discretionary grant in the
current year were over-subscribed beyond available
funds. The discretionary grant reserves were fully
committed as at 31 March 2012.

LEVIES
The merSETA levy income grew by 18.4% in the
ÄUHUJPHS`LHYV]LY[OLWYPVY`LHY[VYLHJO
R911 million. This exceeded the budgeted levy
income by 19.9%. The number of contributing
employers increased to 12 532 from 11 003, most
of which are companies employing more than
150 employees. The sector saw an increase in
companies reaching the R500 000 annual payroll
threshold, thus the increase in participating
employers.
The breakdown of levies received per chamber
(Graph 4) shows a similar pattern to the prior year,
with the Metal Chamber contributing the largest
share of levies at 58.4% as well as having the
largest number of companies, both contributing and
exempted. Most companies that were registered,
active and contributing were based in Gauteng.

MANDATORY GRANTS
The merSETA has had a consistent pattern in
mandatory grant participation, as the claims ratio
increased from 77% in the prior year to 80% in
the current year. The disbursements of mandatory
NYHU[Z^LYLKLSH`LKPU[OLÄYZ[OHSMVM[OLÄUHUJPHS
`LHY K\L [V SH[L YLJLPW[ VM [OL SL]` KV^USVHK ÄSLZ
from the Department of Higher Education and
Training due to technical challenges. The levy
KV^USVHK ÄSLZ HYL HU PTWVY[HU[ KH[HIHZL MVY [OL
mandatory grant process as they provide employer
information necessary to pay the grants.
The delay experienced was managed in the second
half of the year by frequent disbursements. This
ensured that the backlog was eliminated.

The mandatory grant expense in the current year
increased by 20.8% to R445 million from R367
million in the prior year.
Disbursements of mandatory grants are higher
than budgeted as per the over-achievement in levy
income. The mandatory grants are based on levy
income and so follow a similar pattern over the
chambers and provinces.

DISCRETIONARY GRANTS AND
PROJECTS EXPENDITURE
Discretionary grant expense, including project
expense, in 2011/12 amounted to R421 million,
an increase of 18.6% from the prior year expense
of R352 million. The decrease was due to several
factors:
-

-

-

-

The majority of the Discretionary Grant 3 (DG3)
ZLJVUK[YHUJOLHUKÄUHS[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZMVY
apprentices were not paid due to a number
of apprentices not meeting the required
milestones. Discretionary Grant 3 registrations
took place later in the year 2010/2011, resulting
in most apprentices lagging behind schedule
in attaining the 50% completion for second
tranche payments and 100% completion for
ÄUHS[YHUJOLWH`TLU[Z"
The majority of the Discretionary Grant 4
Memoranda of Agreements (MoAs) were only
signed during February and March 2012,
YLZ\S[PUN PU VUS` H WVY[PVU VM [OL ÄYZ[ [YHUJOL
payments being made;
Discretionary Grant 3 Internship Project and
MoAs went out in February 2011, thus resulting
in late registration of interns. Therefore, only
[OL ÄYZ[ [YHUJOL WH`TLU[Z [VVR WSHJL K\L [V
milestones not being met; and
The implementation of the National Skills
Development Strategy III (NSDS III) required
a robust process of aligning projects to the
NSDS III objectives and thus allocation of funds,
this resulting in contract engagement and
implementation delays.

The merSETA continues to monitor companies
receiving discretionary grant pre-payments to ensure
that training is implemented. The merSETA also
vigorously pursues all companies not implementing
remedial actions and/or requires them to return the
grants already paid.
annual report 2011/12
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FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
0U[LYUHS JVU[YVSZ» ^LHRULZZLZ OH]L ILLU PKLU[PÄLK PU [OL Z\WWS` JOHPU THUHNLTLU[ HUK Ä_LK HZZL[
management. Management has addressed these weaknesses going forward by conducting a review of areas
that need improvement and/or implementation of changes in procedures.

GRAPH 1: PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL LEVIES PAID BY CHAMBER 2011/12

GRAPH 2: PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL LEVIES PAID BY CHAMBER 2010/11
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GRAPH 4: LEVY CONTRIBUTION BY CHAMBER 2010/11 vs 2011/12
Rand 000’s

GRAPH 5: TOTAL LEVY ANALYSIS BY REGION
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GRAPH 6: 2011/12 INCOME
RAND 000’s

GRAPH 7: 2011/12 EXPENDITURE
RAND 000’s
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HUMAN RESOURCES UNIT
0U[OLÄUHUJPHS[OL/\THU9LZV\YJL\UP[
achieved the following:
Recruitment

0U[LNYH[PUNHUKVU)VHYKPUNVM5L^:[HɈ

The table represents all appointments made in the
ÄUHUJPHS`LHY!

Junior Systems
Developer

C2

A

F

06 May 2011

Administrator
Projects

B5

A

M

01 June 2011

Senior Manager:
Marketing and
Communications

D5

C

M

01 July 2011

Manager: Legal
and Secretariat

D3

A

F

01 August 2011

Senior
Accountant

D3

I

M

03 August 2011

Client Liaison
6ɉJLY

C4

A

M

12 September 2011

Network
Administrator

B5

A

M

01 October 2011

Chief Financial
6ɉJLY

EU

A

F

01 October 2011

Client Liaison
6ɉJLY

C4

A

M

01 December 2011

Travel Desk
Administrator

B5

A

F

13 February 2012

Client Liaison
6ɉJLY

C4

A

F

01 March 2012

Grade

Gender

Contract Start
Date

Race

Position

New appointees received a welcome e-mail and
information pack before their starting date. An
electronic Induction System, a two-day Induction
Programme and the Buddy System ensured that
new joiners were fully integrated into the units and
the merSETA as a whole.
Performance Management

:[HɈ*VTWSLTLU[
7LYTHULU[:[HɈ

228

;LTWVYHY`:[HɈ

8

The following external consultants performed work
for the Humans Resources Unit:
-

-

;VRPZV ¶ 4LKPH[PVU HUK +PZJPWSPUHY` *OHPYPUN"
and
Vari Consulting, Commisioned Training, OnSite Training, Regent Business School, BizTech
;YHPUPUNHUK5+1*VUZ\S[HU[Z¶.YV\W;YHPUPUN

=07¶7H`YVSSHUKLSLJ[YVUPJWH`ZSPWZ"
,_WLYPLU[PHS;LJOUVSVNPLZ¶;HSLU[(ZZLZZTLU[Z"
*)(9:¶7LYMVYTHUJL4HUHNLTLU[:`Z[LT"
21st*LU[\Y`¶1VI.YHKPUN"

The electronic Performance Management System
YLX\PYLK Z[HɈ PU JVUZ\S[H[PVU ^P[O THUHNLTLU[
to go through two formal performance reviews. A
Moderation Panel ensured reliability and validity of
performance scores before performance bonuses
were paid.
A performance improvement plan was concluded
MVYHSSZ[HɈ^OVVI[HPULKILSV^H]LYHNLZJVYLZH[
the end of the 2010/11 performance review cycle.
Training and Development
:[HɈ HUK THUHNLTLU[ QVPU[S` KL]LSVW 7LYZVUHS
Development Plans for the year. These plans,
together with union and management input,
culminated in the merSETA Workplace Skills Plan for
the year as well as an Annual Training Report, both
of which were submitted to the ETDP SETA. Group
training for Finance for Non-Financial Managers,
*VUÅPJ[ 4HUHNLTLU[ +P]LYZP[` 4HUHNLTLU[
Public Finance, Team Leadership, Customer Service,
Creative Business Writing, Stress Management and
Labour Relations were the courses implemented for
[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY
Disciplinary Action
The attached table represents disciplinary matters
concluded during the year under review.
One CCMA Unfair Labour Practice matter was
concluded in favour of the merSETA.
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Corrective Counselling Sessions
Region

Division

Number of Counselling
sessions conducted

Reason for Counselling Sessions

/LHK6ɉJL

Central
Administration

One (1)

Misconduct: Not following established
procedures

KwaZulu-Natal

Client Services

Two (2)

4PZJVUK\J[!(I\ZLVM[LSLWOVULÄYZ[VɈLUJL

Region

Division

Number of Verbal
Warnings issued

Reason

/LHK6ɉJL

Finance

Four (4)

Negligence

/LHK6ɉJL

LETQA

One (1)

Not following established procedures

/LHK6ɉJL

Client Services

One (1)

Poor timekeeping

/LHK6ɉJL

LETQA

One (1)

Poor timekeeping

/LHK6ɉJL

Corporate
Governance

One (1)

Poor timekeeping

Verbal Warnings

/LHK6ɉJL

Client Services

Two (2)

Negligence

/LHK6ɉJL

LETQA

One (1)

Abuse of telephone

KwaZulu Natal

Client Services

One (1)

Abuse of telephone

Western Cape

Client Services

Two (2)

Abuse of telephone

Number of Written
Warnings issued

Reason

Written Warnings
Region

Division

/LHK6ɉJL

Operations:
Seven (7)
Discretionary Grants

Negligence

/LHK6ɉJL

Finance

One (1)

Non-compliance with established procedures

/LHK6ɉJL

Client Services

One (1)

Poor timekeeping

/LHK6ɉJL

Client Services

One(1)

Contravention of IT
policy

/LHK6ɉJL

Corporate
Governance

One (1)

Failure to follow instructions

Final Written Warnings
Region

Division

Number of Written
Warnings issued

Reason

/LHK6ɉJL

Finance

One (1)

Non-compliance with established procedures

Western Cape

Client Services

One (1)

Non-compliance with established procedures

Disciplinary Hearings

16

Region

Division

6ɈLUJL

Sanction

Gauteng North

Client Services

Negligence

Written Warning

Western Cape

Client Services

Non compliance with
established procedures

Dismissal

/LHK6ɉJL

Finance

Non compliance with
established procedures

Dismissal
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Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

Grievances
No grievances were submitted in the year under review.
Wellness
Revitalisation sessions were conducted throughout the organisation to mitigate potential negative impact of
the uncertainty about the re-licensing of the merSETA.
(SSZ[HɈWHY[PJPWH[LKPU]HYPV\ZZVJPHSL]LU[ZZ\JOHZ/LYP[HNL+H`5LSZVU4HUKLSH+H`HUK>VTLU»Z+H`
Physical wellness events, poster campaigns and Voluntary Testing and Counselling were rolled out nationally.
(:[HɈ:H[PZMHJ[PVU:\Y]L`^HZJVUK\J[LKPUKLWLUKLU[S`I`[OLTLY:,;(>LSSULZZWYV]PKLY;OLUH[PVUHS
satisfaction rate was 70%.
Employee Relations
The Management Union Forum engaged regularly on various concerns of mutual interest. Wage negotiations
^LYLZ\JJLZZM\SS`JVUJS\KLKHUKHOHYTVUPV\ZYLSH[PVUZOPW[OH[ILULÄ[ZIV[OLTWSV`LLZHUKTHUHNLTLU[
continues to exist.
Recognition
;VW7LYMVYTLYZ^LYLYLJVNUPZLKH[H;VW7LYMVYTLYZ»3\UJOHZ^LSSHZ[OL`LHYLUK:[HɈ9LJVNUP[PVUHUK
Awards Ceremony.
Remuneration
The merSETA Remuneration Committee guided remuneration practice. New or changed
YVSL WYVÄSLZ ^LYL ZLU[ [V st Century for independent Paterson grading or re-grading.
The table below tabulates the positions that were graded or re-graded:
Job Grades
Division

Job Title

Outcome

Client Services

Client Liaison Coordinator

B5 - stayed on the same job grade

Finance

Finance Administrator

C3 - upgraded from B5 to C3

Finance

Management Accountant: Grants

D2 - stayed on the same job grade

Corporate Services

Human Resources Coordinator

C3 - upgraded from C1

Corporate Services

Communications Coordinator

C3 - upgraded from C2

Corporate Services

Marketing and Communications
Coordinator

C3 - upgraded from C2

Corporate Governance

Performance Information Analyst

C5 - stayed on the same job grade

(SSZHSHYPLZMYVT([V+IHUK^LYLILUJOTHYRLKHNHPUZ[[OL7,*VYWVYH[L:LY]PJLZ.LULYHS:[HɈ9LT\ULYH[PVU
Survey.
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:HSHYPLZ ^LYL HKQ\Z[LK [V   VM [OL SV^LY X\HY[PSL VM [OL :HSHY` )HUKZ [V LUZ\YL Z[HɈ TLTILYZ HYL
remunerated within the salary bands.
Salary Bands
Paterson Grade Salary Band
F

9 ¶ 

E

R907 470 - 1 136 950

D

R457 960 - 775 740

C

R226 790 - 446 360

B

R115 330 - 220 860

A

9 ¶

Employment Equity
The merSETA Employment Equity Report was submitted to the Department of Labour before the September
deadline.
The graphs below represent the various employment equity statistics.

THE merSETA: GENDER SPLIT

THE merSETA: EE SPLIT
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MARKETING AND
COMMUNICATIONS UNIT
The Marketing and Communications Unit promotes
the initiatives and services of the merSETA, using a
wide range of channels and instruments. It targets
stakeholders, workers, artisans, learners and the
general public. It also ensures the organisation’s
brand equity is maintained.
0U [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY [OL TLY:,;(
coordinated mass publicity around the Mandatory
Grant campaign for stakeholders, using print,
electronic and radio channels.
General branding in targeted publications for
Z[HRLOVSKLYZ ^HZ HSZV LɈLJ[LK WHY[PJ\SHYS`
in media aimed at the metal and engineering,
automobile manufacturing, plastics, motor retail
and components manufacturing and new tyre
manufacturing industries.

The merSETA magazine for stakeholders, Achieve,
was printed and produced quarterly with four
editions published for the year ending March
 (U (JOPL]L ,KP[VYPHS 7VSPJ` ^HZ YLÄULK HUK
accepted by the merSETA. An Advertising and
:WVUZVYZOPW7VSPJ`PZILPUNYLÄULK[VNL[OLY^P[OH
Corporate Identity Manual.
In addition, more than 60 000 brochures and
WHTWOSL[ZKLHSPUN^P[OJHYLLYZPU[OLÄ]LJOHTILYZ
were distributed to scores of schools. Promotional
material was available at all expos and exhibitions.
The unit was responsible for content management
and the updating of the merSETA website and
intranet, with a turnaround time of 24-hours for
updates and new documentation.
The Marketing and Communications Unit also
launched an internal digital newsletter, Eyethu,
to ensure open-line communication between
THUHNLTLU[ HUK Z[HɈ ;OL UL^ZSL[[LY OHZ ILLU
^LSSYLJLP]LKI`Z[HɈ

SUMMARY OF MEDIA COVERAGE
Total

Number

ADVERTISING VALUE EQUIVALENT

139

R2 878 163.41

Print

69

R87 501.41

Broadcast

36

R2 412 000.00

Online

34

R378 662.00
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BREAKDOWN OF INSERTS IN PERCENTAGES
(APRIL 2011 - MARCH 2012)

BREAKDOWN OF ADVERTISING VALUE EARNED IN PERCENTAGES
(APRIL 2011 - MARCH 2012)
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Events Management
Exhibitions & Expos:
1. Rural Women Workshop
(the merSETA Sponsored
Event)

 (WYPS¶5VY[O The merSETA sponsored the event and rural women
West
from various municipalities in NW were informed of our
programmes as well other opportunities. A presentation on
scarce and critical skills gave unemployed attendees the
opportunity to pose relevant questions.

2. University of PTA Career
Fair

4H`¶.H\[LUN! About 2 000 students attended the career fair. Students
Pretoria
were informed of the merSETA Bursary and Learnership
Programmes as well as other opportunities provided by the
merSETA.

3. Africa Expo 2011

4H`¶.H\[LUN! ;OL TLY:,;( WHY[PJPWH[LK H[ [OL PUH\N\YH[PVU VM [OL ÄYZ[
Pretoria
Africa Expo which attracted delegates from around the
continent. Ambassadors representing African countries
]PZP[LK[OLTLY:,;(L_OPIP[PVUZ[HUK[VÄUKV\[TVYLHIV\[
the merSETA’s projects aimed at closing the skills gap in
our country. Youth and learners were also assisted at the
merSETA stand.

4. STi Golf Day
(the merSETA-Sponsored
Event)

4H`¶>LZ[LYU The merSETA hosted an exhibition table at one of the
Cape: Kuils River
18 holes where information, marketing material and
refreshments were provided to players from various
organisations/companies in the industry.

5. Department of Labour (UIF)
Seminar

¶1\UL¶
Gauteng: East Rand

The merSETA hosted an exhibition table to assist visitors
with further information on our services. The merSETA COO
did a presentation highlighting the merSETA’s partnership
with departments such as the DoL.

6. June / Youth Month Careers 1\UL¶,HZ[LYU The audience included learners and educators. A merSETA
Cape: East London
WYLZLU[H[PVU VɈLYLK KL[HPSLK PUMVYTH[PVU VU V\Y ZLY]PJLZ
for the Future Expo
PUJS\KPUNV\YI\YZHY`ZJOLTLV\YÄLSKZVMMVJ\ZHUKV[OLY
(the merSETA-Sponsored
programmes.
Event)
7. Gauteng Provincial
Legislature Youth Parliament

1\UL¶
Gauteng: Randfontein
- Mohlakeng Community
Centre

Youth from Gauteng gathered at this event to discuss issues
HɈLJ[PUN[OLTHUKZ\NNLZ[PVUZ[VV]LYJVTL[OVZLPZZ\LZ
were tabled. The merSETA encouraged participants to make
use of the opportunities available in the manufacturing,
engineering and related services sector.

,K\JH[PVU>LLR¶
Convention & Learning Expo

1\S`¶
Gauteng: Sandton
Convention Centre

Over 2 000 education Industry representatives attended the
expo.

9. Ekurhuleni Youth Expo

800 learners and unemployed youth from the East Rand
1\S`¶
Gauteng: The Birchwood attended the expo.
Hotel & Conference
Centre

10. SAQA Mandela Day Career 1\S`¶
Expo
Eastern Cape: Lusikisiki

More than 2 000 high school learners from Lusikisiki and
surrounding area attended the career day exhibition.
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Events Management
11. National Science Week

¶(\N\Z[
¶.H\[LUN!:JP)VUV
Discovery Centre

12. Central University Career
Fair

¶(\N\Z[¶
2 700 university of technology students attended the expo.
Free State: Bloemfontein

13. UJ Career Fair: Soweto
Campus

(\N\Z[¶
Gauteng: University of
Johannesburg (Soweto
campus)

250 students visited the merSETA stand.

14. Sol Plaatjie Youth Career
Expo

17- 18 August 2011
- Northern Cape:
Kimberley City Hall

1 700 visitors attended the expo. This included scholars,
unemployed youth, youth entrepreneurs and FET students.

15. World of Work Career Fair

 (\N\Z[¶
KZN: Durban University
of Technology

2 500 university of technology students attended the expo.

16. My Career Choice Expo

¶:LW[LTILY Over 2 000 learners and unemployed youth from KZN
¶2A5!4VZLZ4HIOPKH attended the Career Expo.
Stadium

17. Department of Labour Job/ :LW[LTILY¶
Career Fair
.H\[LUN!+V36ɉJLZ
Braamfontein

725 unemployed youth from the DoL database attended the
event.

18. National Skills Conference

More than 1 000 delegates attended the conference and
visited various exhibition stands. It attracted academics,
providers, community, organised labour and organised
business.

6J[VILY¶
Gauteng: Emperor’s
Palace, Kempton Park

19. Johannesburg International 6J[VILY¶
Motor Show
Gauteng: JHB Expo
Centre

More than 10 000 visitors attended the trade show and
visited various exhibition stands.

20. SAQA/PACE International
Career Guidance Conference
(the merSETA Sponsored
Event)

19 - 21 October 2011
¶>LZ[LYU*HWL!*HWL
Town International
Convention Centre

About 400 conference delegates attended the conference
and delegates consisted of local and international lecturers,
academics, researchers and students involved in career
guidance.

21. FEDUSA 5th Annual
Congress

5V]LTILY¶
Gauteng: Birchwood
Hotel & Conference
Centre

More than 300 delegates attended the congress and visited
exhibition stands.

22. NW Youth Development
Summit

¶5V]LTILY
¶5VY[O>LZ[!4THIH[OV
Convention Centre,
4HÄRLUN

More than 1 000 delegates attended the conference and
visited various exhibition stands. It attracted academics,
education providers, community members, organised
labour and organised business.

23. 2nd Annual Women in
Engineering Convention
(the merSETA Sponsored
Event)

28 - 30 November
¶.H\[LUN!.VSK
Reef City

More than 120 delegates attended the three-day convention
and visited exhibition stands. The Convention attracted
women in engineering.

24. UIF/Department of Labour
Pilot Project and Graduation
ceremony

02 December 2011 Emperors Palace

The merSETA COO and the Minister of Labour briefed
the media on previous and current pilot projects that the
merSETA and the DoL have partnered on.

25. the merSETA & MercedesBenz SA

3 January 2012 Gauteng

The merSETA and Mercedes-Benz South Africa launched
a learnership project - the three-year pilot programme ih
HPTLKH[WYV]PKPUN58-X\HSPÄJH[PVUZMVYHUPUP[PHSPU[HRL
of 24 learners.

26. 2nd Learnership Awareness -LIY\HY`¶
Expo
FNB Wadley Stadium,
Edendale, Umsunduzi
Municipality, KZN

22

2 516 learners and 76 school teachers attended the Science
Week.
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About 2 500 learners and unemployed youth from the
municipality attended the Expo over the three-day period.
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Events Management
27. Edenvale High School
Skills Day

-LIY\HY`¶
Edenvale High School,
Gauteng

182 Grade 12 Learners attended the Skills Day and a
large number of learners with Maths and Science visited
the merSETA stand. The learners were informed about
the merSETA learnerships, apprenticeships and bursary
programmes.

28. The merSETA & VWSA
graduation ceremony

13 February 2012 Gauteng

The merSETA and VWSA hosted a graduation ceremony in
Johannesburg for 58 people with disabilities who graduated
in business administration.

29. Education Indaba Career
Exhibition 2012

18 February 2012 Ulundi Legislature, KZN

More than 3 000 high school learners from Ulundi and
surrounding areas attended the career expo, the targeted
audience being grade 9-12 learners.

30. Working World
Extravaganza

4HYJO¶
Feather Market Centre,
Port Elizabeth

11 900 Learners representing 108 Schools from the Nelson
Mandela Bay Municipality attended the extravaganza.

31. Sci-Bono Engineering
Week - Gauteng

12 - 16 March 2012

Over 5 000 learners attended the Science Week at SciBono and the merSETA interacted with learners from the
province including schools from Soweto and the East Rand.

32. the merSETA Breakfast
Symposium

28 March 2012

;OL TLY:,;( Z[HRLOVSKLYZ HUK HɉSPH[LZ H[[LUKLK [OL
merSETA Green Paper Breakfast Symposium.

Stakeholder Satisfaction
The merSETA measured the experiences of
merSETA customers within the 2011/2012
ÄUHUJPHS `LHY ;OL VIQLJ[P]L VM [OL WYVQLJ[ ^HZ [V
determine the satisfaction with relationship, service,
communication and products or programmes
VɈLYLK I` [OL TLY:,;( 0U HKKP[PVU [OL WYVQLJ[
sought to identify problem areas as well as to
determine key drivers of stakeholder satisfaction.
The survey was conducted via telephonic and
e-mail media in March 2012, and involved a
sample of 493 companies and Skills Development
Facilitators (SDFs). Results showed that overall,
  VM YLZWVUKLU[Z ^LYL ¸KLSPNO[LK¹ I` [OL [V[HS
experience in dealing with the merSETA, 61% were
WHZZP]LS` ZH[PZÄLK HUK   PUKPJH[LK [OL` ^LYL
NYVZZS`KPZZH[PZÄLKI`[OLL_WLYPLUJL

17% of sampled respondents had experienced (and
reported) a service problem at some point within the
period under review. Of the 17%, only 11% reported
that the problem had been fully resolved. This has
been highlighted as a key focus area for the merSETA
^P[OPU [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY WHY[PJ\SHYS`
honing in on improving the frequency and quality
of feedback to customers as well as improving the
X\HSP[` HUK LɉJPLUJ` VM HKTPUPZ[YH[P]L WYVJLZZLZ
The merSETA has developed terms of reference for a
¸:[HRLOVSKLY,_WLYPLUJL4HUHNLTLU[7YVNYHTTL¹
[VPTWYV]L[OLX\HSP[`HUKLɉJPLUJ`VMZLY]PJLZ[V
stakeholders through developing an internal service
J\S[\YLHTVUNZ[HɈ
Overall, the Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI)
has shown an improvement from 24 in the period
2010/11 to 30 in the period 2011/12.
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operations report
The Operations division has kept focus on the delivery
of high quality service to the merSETA stakeholders
as well as the achievement of objectives set for the
year under review. All units played a pivotal role
in ensuring the organisation once again exceeded
[HYNL[ZZL[MVY[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY

CENTRAL ADMINISTRATION
The Administration Unit continued on the path
developed over the last four years, being called
upon to assist wherever their services were required.

In the period under review, the processing of
5 789 Level and Trade Test applications resulted
in the issuing of 4 509 trade test dates, with 3 254
candidates being declared competent as Artisans.
To achieve these results and ensure compliance with
relevant regulation, the Administration Unit had to
follow up on outstanding information from Providers
for 5 092HWWSPJH[PVUZMVY]HYPV\ZJLY[PÄJH[LZ
The number of level test results contributing to the
achievement of the Apprenticeship results was
6 222, noting that some results processed were for
learners found not yet competent at that stage.

REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIPS

Between regions and central administration
5 168 apprenticeship contracts, 6 051 learnership
agreements and 5 808 skills programme learners
were registered in the period under review.
4 194SLHYULYZVI[HPULKM\SSX\HSPÄJH[PVUZHUK2 559
skills programme learners obtained statements of
YLZ\S[Z [V^HYKZ X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ H[ ]HYPV\Z SL]LSZ VU
[OL5H[PVUHS8\HSPÄJH[PVUZ-YHTL^VYR58-
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This resulted from the processing of 8 821
assessment reports. Some of these contributed to
[OLPZZ\PUNVMWHY[X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ^OLYLSLHYULYZKPK
not meet all the requirements for the award of full
X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ
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LEARNERSHIPS AND SKILLS PROGRAMME LEARNERS ENTERED
TARGET vs ACHIEVEMENTS

LEARNERSHIPS AND SKILLS PROGRAMME LEARNERS COMPLETED
TARGET vs ACHIEVEMENTS
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Rescission applications amounted to 227,
representing 4% of the 5 168 Apprentices registered
H[[OLLUKVM[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY

The merSETA once again exceeded its target for
Mandatory Grant submissions as indicated below:

MANDATORY GRANTS PAID vs TARGETS

The merSETA embarked on a process of changing
the existing Datanet to a new Seta Management
System. The Skills Module, which concentrates on
the registration of Skills Development Facilitators
and Mandatory Grant applications, has been
implemented.
Skills
Development
Facilitators
registered
themselves on the new Seta Management System
and submission of Mandatory Grants occurred
K\YPUN[OLÄYZ[X\HY[LYVM
The implementation of a new information
management system provided the merSETA with the
opportunity to reload company bank details based
on submission of original banking details. The unit
processed the banking details for 4 612 companies,
based on the submission of original documents
from levy-paying companies for both Discretionary
and Mandatory grant payments.
As a proactive approach to inform Skills
Development Facilitators in merSETA levy-paying
companies, road shows were conducted within
various magisterial districts in preparation for the
PTWSLTLU[H[PVU PU [OL UL_[ ÄUHUJPHS `LHY VM [OL
Board-approved evaluation criteria.
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The South African Revenue Service accompanied
the merSETA and presented the amendments to
the Tax incentives for the training of learners on
learnerships and apprenticeships.
;OL\UP[HPTZ[VJVU[PU\LZ\WWVY[PUNYLNPVUHSVɉJLZ
in their drive to deliver an excellent service to our
clients at all times.

CLIENT SERVICES
;OL TLY:,;( OHZ ZL]LU YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ ^P[O
[^V ZH[LSSP[L VɉJLZ PU 7VSVR^HUL HUK 2PTILYSL`
;OL YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ WYV]PKL ]P[HS ZLY]PJLZ Z\JO
HZ N\PKHUJL HUK HK]PJL VU KPɈLYLU[ SLHYUPUN
programmes, implementation of these programmes,
monitoring quality for on-the-job training of learners,
support on completion of workplace skills plans
and reports, guidance with accreditation, workplace
approvals, advising employers with regard to
inter-Seta transfers, advice on tax incentives and
increasing the capacity of training committees,
shop stewards and skills development facilitators.
6\Y YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ ^LYL HSZV PUZ[Y\TLU[HS PU
ensuring that the merSETA contributed to provincial
government initiatives and participated in structures
within provinces to address the skills needs.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

The regions ensured that all merSETA-funded projects were implemented by stakeholders within the regions.
;OPZ[HZRJVU[YPI\[LKZPNUPÄJHU[S`[V[OLTLY:,;(L_JLLKPUNP[Z[HYNL[ZHZV\[SPULKILSV^

NSDS III TARGETS vs ACHIEVEMENTS
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The allocations of Discretionary grants via
Memoranda of Agreement (MoAs) are implemented,
monitored and managed at regional level.
A total of 3 417 MoAs were signed by employers of
which 2 130 are still active and are monitored in the
YLNPVUZI`[OL*SPLU[3PHPZVU6ɉJLYZ
The MoAs constituted the following number of
SLHYULYZVU[OLKPɈLYLU[SLHYUPUNPU[LY]LU[PVUZ!
-

6 937 apprentices;
9 537 learners on learnerships;
10 650 skills programmes;
3 136 ABET learners;
1 474 sector specialists;
772 interns; and
3 028 experiential learners.

;OL YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ K\YPUN [OL WLYPVK VM YL]PL^
visited 4 762 Small Micro Enterprises (SMEs).
Companies were given guidance and support
on the implementation of various skills
interventions within their organisations. Added to
this guidance, support was provided to enable SDF
registration, Mandatory and Discretionary grant
submissions.This resulted in 2 190 small companies
being approved for Mandatory Grant payments.
The successful Mandatory Grant workshops and
JVUZPZ[LU[Z\WWVY[MYVTYLNPVUHSVɉJLZYLZ\S[LKPU
4 559 Mandatory Grant applications being submitted.
2 751 companies interested in taking on learners or
apprentices, through a structured learning process,
were visited and given the necessary advice by our
*SPLU[ 3PHPZVU 6ɉJLYZ >VYRWSHJLZ VM JVTWHUPLZ
were evaluated and approved to ensure the required
capacity is available to provide the required quality
structured training. 1 240 new workplace approvals
were undertaken and approved in the period under
review.
Regions received and processed 4 483 new
applicants for Recognition of Prior Learning through
Section 28 trade tests, of which 2 522 applicants
met the merSETA criteria and undertook the trade
test. 1 708 candidates were declared competent
as Artisans.
243 ATRAMI moderations were carried out by
[OL *SPLU[ 3PHPZVU 6ɉJLYZ ^OPJO YLZ\S[LK PU 108
JHUKPKH[LZ ILPUN PZZ\LK ^P[O JLY[PÄJH[LZ HM[LY
successful completion of their learning programmes.
Induction workshops for both apprentices and
learners were held for 6 051 apprentices and 5 160
learners respectively in the period under review.
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44 Skills Development Forums were held
regionally. The forums provided the merSETA
with an opportunity to disseminate information on
ZLY]PJLZSLHYUPUNVWWVY[\UP[PLZWYVQLJ[ZVɈLYLKHZ
well as advocacy on how to access Discretionary
and Mandatory grants. Participants were also
provided the opportunity to discuss issues related
to learnerships, skills programmes, registered
X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ HWWYLU[PJLZOPWZ ^VYRWSHJL ZRPSSZ
planning and reporting.
;OL YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ ^LYL HSZV PUZ[Y\TLU[HS PU
implementing projects for people with disabilities,
especially for the hearing-impaired. Visual learning
materials were designed to cater for these learners.
;OL YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ WHY[PJPWH[LK PU 51 career
exhibitions for the year under review. This included
exhibitions hosted by the Department of Labour, the
Department of Basic Education, the Department
of Higher Education and Training, universities
of technology and FET colleges. Some of these
exhibitions were held in the rural areas. The target
audiences were grade 10-12 learners and the
exhibitions exposed them to career choices in the
[LJOUPJHSÄLSKZ

LEARNING, EDUCATION, TRAINING
AND QUALITY ASSURANCE
The Learning, Education, Training and Quality
Assurance (LETQA) Unit in the Operations Division
once again contributed positively to the achievements
of the merSETA. During the period under review,
LETQA was actively involved in the implementation
of the activities of the newly-established Quality
Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO).
The unit served as the convenor of the Steering
Committee responsible for the articulation between
[OL X\HSPÄJH[PVU KL]LSVWTLU[ WYVJLZZ \UKLY [OL
QCTO and the envisaged review of the NATED
courses (N-courses) under UMALUSI.
The merSETA signed 13 Service Level Agreements
with the QCTO, in which the merSETA was delegated
the responsibilities of Development Quality Partners
(DQPs). As a DQP, the organisation facilitated the
KL]LSVWTLU[VM6JJ\WH[PVUHS8\HSPÄJH[PVUZMVY[OL
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related sector,
based on the QCTO model.
A formal agreement was signed between the QCTO
and the merSETA to develop new policies and
procedures for the QCTO that will be based on
best-practices within the SETA fraternity.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

LETQA also actively participated in the
implementation of the functions of the National
Artisan Moderation Body (NAMB). This included
providing inputs and comments and consolidating
the inputs and comments from industry on the draft
regulations, paving the way for a standardised and
ZPTWSPÄLKWYVJLZZVMHY[PZHUKL]LSVWTLU[PU:V\[O
Africa.
The division’s delegated key responsibilities as an
ETQA within the merSETA have been extended by
[OL:V\[O(MYPJHU8\HSPÄJH[PVU(\[OVYP[`:(8([V
end September 2012.

3,;8( JVU[PU\LK [V LUZ\YL [OL M\SÄSTLU[ VM P[Z
functions as the Quality Assurance Authority for the
X\HSPÄJH[PVU HUK \UP[ Z[HUKHYKZ ^P[OPU P[Z WYPTHY`
focus.
908 accreditation and approval visits
were conducted, resulting in the full accreditation
of 81 providers and the approval of 61 learning
programmes, as well as 18 decentralised trade test
centre approvals, as part of the extension of the
scope of existing providers. The merSETA Quality
Assurors conducted 980 moderation visits that
yielded 10 772JLY[PÄJH[LZHZPUKPJH[LKPU[OLJOHY[
below.

CERTIFICATES ISSUED
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;OLPZZ\PUNVM[YHKLJLY[PÄJH[LZPTWYV]LKK\YPUN[OL
period of reporting, largely due to the fact that the
merSETA assisted in building capacity within the
KP]PZPVU YLZWVUZPISL MVY WYVJLZZPUN JLY[PÄJH[LZ H[
the Department of Higher Education and Training.
101 providers were audited in the period under
review to ensure the merSETA-accredited providers
maintained the quality standards expected by their
respective clientele.
In the spirit of the NSDS III, LETQA extended the
merSETA’s working relationships with public FET
colleges as well as universities and universities of
technology. Ten (10) FET colleges and one university
of technology entered into formal partnerships
with the merSETA and the merSETA continued to
support these institutions through linkages with our
stakeholder companies.
During the period under review, there was an
increase in the number of recognition of prior
learning candidates as 4 483 applications were
evaluated for Section 28 trade testing.
The changes resulting from the amendments and
proposed draft regulations were workshopped
within provider forums in all provinces to ensure our
provider constituency is fully informed about current
and proposed changes.
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In addition to the above, LETQA applied to be a DQP
MVY[OLMVSSV^PUNZP_VJJ\WH[PVUHSX\HSPÄJH[PVUZ!
-

Panel beating;
Vehicle Painter;
Automotive Machinist;
Automotive Electrician;
Ship builder; and
Rubber Production Machine Operator.

;OLÄYZ[6JJ\WH[PVUHS8\HSPÄJH[PVU^PSSILZ\ITP[[LK
to the QCTO for evaluation and registration in the
ÄYZ[X\HY[LYVM[OLUL_[ÄUHUJPHS`LHY
This unit is also currently involved in new Green
initiatives such as the Wind Turbine Service
Mechanic in conjunction with GIZ.
29 learnerships were developed and registered
in the period under review compared to 42 in the
WYL]PV\Z ÄUHUJPHS `LHY ;OPZ PZ K\L [V [OL JOHUNL
V]LYMYVTX\HSPÄJH[PVUZYLNPZ[LYLK\UKLY[OL:(8(
criteria and the newly introduced Occupational
Framework of the QCTO.
48 Skills Programme applications were evaluated
HUKYLNPZ[LYLKK\YPUN[OPZÄUHUJPHS`LHY

;OLTLY:,;(THPU[HPULKP[Z¸NYLLUZ[H[\Z¹VU[OL
SAQA National Learners’ Records Database for the
period under review

92 one-sided applications for termination of
contracts were evaluated and approved during this
ÄUHUJPHS `LHY (U HUHS`ZPZ [V KL[LYTPUL [YLUKZ PU
YLZJPZZPVUZHZ^LSSHZYLÄUPUN[OLHWWSPJH[PVUZHUK
motivation documentation to ensure sound labour
relations practices is under way.

As a delegated DQP, the merSETA assumed the
responsibility of facilitating the development of the
following 13 UL^ 6JJ\WH[PVUHS 8\HSPÄJH[PVUZ PU
conjunction with stakeholders from the industry:

+\YPUN [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY 388 new
assessors were registered and 186 assessors were
re-registered, with 244 assessors applying for
extensions of registration.

-

125 new moderators were registered, 52 moderators
applied and were re-registered and 59 moderators
had their registration extended to incorporate
HKKP[PVUHSX\HSPÄJH[PVUZ

Mechatronics;
Millwright;
Fitter and Turner;
Fitter General;
Engineering Patternmaker;
Foundry Moulder;
Melter;
Electroplater;
Lift Mechanic;
Lubrication Equipment Mechanic;
=LOPJSL+HTHNL8\HU[PÄLY"
Wind Turbine Service Technician; and
Armature Winder.
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8 262 ]LYPÄJH[PVUZ ^LYL JVUK\J[LK MVY [OL `LHY PU
comparison to the 6 244 ]LYPÄJH[PVUZ JVUK\J[LK
PU [OL WYL]PV\Z ÄUHUJPHS `LHY ;OLZL ]LYPÄJH[PVUZ
are done based on requests from stakeholders to
]LYPM` [OL H\[OLU[PJP[` VM JLY[PÄJH[LZ PZZ\LK I` [OL
merSETA and the previous Industry Training Boards.
1 118 new workplaces were evaluated and approved
as sites for the implementation of merSETA learning
programmes, indicating an expansion of our capacity
to implement skills development programmes within
the workplace.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

The Courseware Project ran over a three-year period.
Courseware for 44X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ^HZKL]LSVWLKPU
the period under review. The courseware consisted
of learner modules and the related facilitator
assessment guides.
As a support service, Compact Discs with
courseware material were distributed at no cost to
accredited providers during the period of reporting.
The merSETA embarked on a process of developing
DVDs for learners with a hearing disability in the
Body Repair discipline. It is intended to extend this
service to other areas of disability.
6UJL [OL UL^ VJJ\WH[PVUHS X\HSPÄJH[PVUZ HYL
registered, material will be developed to support
[OLZLX\HSPÄJH[PVUZ

-

Practitioners were trained to serve communities
in nine cities in South Africa; and
A
three-year
partnership
agreement
was entered into with the South African
8\HSPÄJH[PVUZ (\[OVYP[` :(8( MVJ\ZPUN
on Practitioner Development, Professional
Practice Development, Practice Network Data
Establishment and the establishment of a
permanent interface between the merSETA and
SAQA information systems regarding career
development and career guidance.

Through our partnership with SAQA, the merSETA
^HZ HISL [V OVZ[ [OL ÄYZ[ 0U[LYUH[PVUHS *HYLLY
Development Conference. During the three days, 60
international and local presenters and 523 local and
international conference delegates were hosted.

CAREER DEVELOPMENT

72 delegates sponsored by the merSETA were from
ZJOVVSZHUKUVUWYVÄ[VYNHUPZH[PVUZ

The merSETA career gateway innovation network
was established in the year under review to
market and communicate career pathways and
opportunities. During the period under review, a
budget of over R6 million was committed to practical
outreach projects as follows:

The focus of the conference was on practitioner
development, the establishment and registration of
the South African Career Development Association,
current initiatives on career development in
participating countries and the development of an
international database of practitioners.

-

The merSETA also participated in the Sixth
Symposium on Career Development and Public
Policy in Budapest, Hungary, and formed part of the
South African Team alongside SAQA that presented
the state of career development in South Africa.

In terms of a partnership agreement with the
National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) for
general career guidance, 511 000 young people
PU\YIHUHUKY\YHSHYLHZKPYLJ[S`ILULÄ[LKMYVT
career guidance. Twelve (12) Career Guidance

The theme of the conference was the changing role
of career guidance and career guidance policies, the
challenges and opportunities in lifelong guidance
policy as part of integrated human resource
development, the changing world and the changing
role of career guidance, the skills and competencies
for lifelong guidance practitioners and evidencebased practice and policies.
This provided an opportunity to ensure the alignment
of our career development and career guidance
systems and processes with globally-recognised
best practices.
SAQA/the merSETA hosted 60 international and local presenters
and 523 local and international conference delegates in a threeday practical and academic conference which focused on career
development
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During the period under review, a partnership
agreement was established with Sci-Bono, a
Section 21 Company mandated by the Gauteng
Department of Education (GDE) to implement and
manage the Gauteng Mathematics, Science and
Technology Education Improvement Strategy.
In the year under review, our relationship with the
Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University (NMMU)
continued. The merSETA funds the Chair in
Engineering Development within NMMU. One of
the functions of the Chair is the implementation of
Mathematics Programmes to improve the success
rate, with a focus on both learners and educators
in rural communities in the Eastern Cape. 110
Teachers and 194 SLHYULYZ ^LYL ILULÄJPHYPLZ VM
the implementation of mathematics programmes.
This relationship also provided a platform to
1 118 learners in 10 schools for meaningful career
guidance. Another focus area was to attract women
into Masters’ and Doctoral level programmes in
Engineering, and one woman was successfully
registered in the period under review.
The merSETA participated in the International World
Skills Competition. A team of eight competitors
and seven experts participated in six skill areas
within the merSETA’s primary focus. The merSETA
participants have consistently improved, indicating
that the organisation is making headway in its
initiatives to improve skills development in South
Africa.

DISCRETIONARY GRANTS UNIT
The Discretionary Grant (DG) Unit within the
Operations Division administers and manages
Discretionary Grants to address the critical and
ZJHYJL ZRPSSZ ZOVY[HNL PKLU[PÄLK [OYV\NO ]HYPV\Z
learning programmes.
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South African World Skills Team of Competitors in London 2011

Furthermore, the body approved the Discretionary
Grant awards in accordance with the approved
formulae and categories based on the available
budget.
The active participation of stakeholders during the
period under review indicated the huge demand
for funding to implement a wide range of learning
programmes. This clearly indicated the need for
the merSETA to explore other sources of funding
to address its future Discretionary Grant funding
needs.
;OL\UP[[OYV\NO[OLLɈVY[ZPU]LZ[LKI`[OLYLNPVUHS
VɉJLZ HUK V[OLY \UP[Z ^P[OPU [OL TLY:,;( OHZ
managed to improve disbursement of grants to our
levy-paying and exempted companies. The period
under review saw the disbursement of R209 million
based on milestones achieved by participating
JVTWHUPLZ ;OL ÄN\YL YLWYLZLU[Z HU PTWYV]LTLU[
VM V]LY   JVTWHYLK [V [OL WYL]PV\Z ÄUHUJPHS
year.

The Finance and Grants Committee has oversight
functions on behalf of the Governing Board.

;OL PU[LYUHS YL]PL^ WYVJLZZ OHZ PKLU[PÄLK
communication as a challenge in the implementation
of DG Grants and this will be prioritised in the next
ÄUHUJPHS `LHY [V PTWYV]L ZLY]PJL KLSP]LY` IV[O
internally and externally.

Incubator School learners receiving their resources

Mathematics Incubator School in Somerset East, Eastern Cape
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(^HYK^PUUPUNSLHYULYZPU:VTLYZL[,HZ[,HZ[LYU*HWL^P[O[OLTLY:,;(Z[HɈHUKZJOVVSWYPUJPWHS

The Discretionary Grant Unit has also initiated a new
addendum for Discretionary Grants 4 which splits
the original second tranche into two equal tranches
of 30% each. The new addendum encourages the
acceleration of Discretionary Grant disbursements
to employers, and assists employers, particularly
ZTHSS HUK TLKP\T LU[LYWYPZLZ :4,Z [V VɈZL[
training costs between tranche payments.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY,
CALL CENTRE AND TRAVEL
DESK
Information Technology
The Information Technology (IT) Helpdesk made
ZPNUPÄJHU[ PTWYV]LTLU[Z PU YLZWVUKPUN [V HUK
resolving user requests. The average time to resolve
user requests has been reduced from its highest 53
hours to less than six hours.
IT Systems remained stable and minimal service
PU[LYY\W[PVUZ ^LYL YLJVYKLK K\YPUN [OPZ ÄUHUJPHS
year. An average of 99.95% system up-time was
recorded for the year.
IT also successfully upgraded legacy systems and
KLWYLJPH[LK OHYK^HYL PU [OL ÄUHUJPHS `LHY \UKLY
review. No data loss or data corruptions were
YLJVYKLKMVY[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY

Average Response Time

Call Centre
The Call Centre received 120 551 calls during the
ÄUHUJPHS `LHY ^P[O HU H]LYHNL X\L\L ^HP[PUN [PTL
of eight seconds. The Call Centre has achieved a
service level of 87.4% and a quality score of 91%.
Travel Desk
The year under review saw the travel desk improving
KLSP]LY`VMIVVRPUNJVUÄYTH[PVUZHUKP[L_JLLKLK
P[Z[HYNL[^P[OIVVRPUNJVUÄYTH[PVUZILPUNZLU[[V
the Divisions, requesting to travel 96 hours prior to
travel, based on a current target of 48 hours.
;OL [YH]LS KLZR OHZ ZPNUPÄJHU[S` PTWYV]LK P[Z
WYVJLZZLZ HUK ÄUHUJPHS JVU[YVSZ  ;OL WYVJLZZ
has improved delivery times on paying creditors.
All invoices were reconciled and processed for
payment within 30 days.
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Financial reconciliations of supplier accounts were
provided to the Supply Chain Unit seven to 10
KH`ZILMVYLWH`TLU[K\LKH[L;OPZPZHZPNUPÄJHU[
improvement in reconciling and paying supplier
accounts.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
SYSTEM
During the period under review, the Seta
Management System (SMS) development resulted
in stakeholders being able to register as Skills
Development Facilitators (SDFs) and to submit their
Mandatory Grant applications on the new system.
0U[OLHIZLUJLVMHÄUHUJLPU[LNYH[PVUTVK\SLILPUN
ready at the time of submission of the Mandatory
grants, all approved grants were processed via
Datanet and paid from Great Plains.
Stakeholders were able to register as stakeholder
applicants and were able to submit Discretionary
Grant 3 and 4 applications online. The relevant
reports were drawn from the SMS system to
HSSV^ YLNPVUHS VɉJLZ [V \UKLY[HRL [OL ]LYPÄJH[PVU
process.

34
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The DG payment module was also developed
HUK [LZ[LK  (YLHZ VM PTWYV]LTLU[ ^LYL PKLU[PÄLK
and submitted to an outside provider for further
development.
The ETQA module was developed in two phases.
;OL ÄYZ[ WOHZL PUJS\KLK SLHYUPUN WYVNYHTTLZ
assessor and moderator registration, provider
accreditation and workplace approval. The
ÄYZ[ WOHZL VM [OL TVK\SL PZ K\L [V NV SP]L ;OL
second phase concentrates directly on the learner
enrolments and achievement process. The user
acceptance testing has taken place and areas of
improvement and certain functionality matters have
ILLUPKLU[PÄLKMVYPTWSLTLU[H[PVU
;OL ÄYZ[ WOHZL VM KH[H TPNYH[PVU MVY ,;8( WOHZL
one was tested and completed. The Mandatory
Grant submission information from the previous
years was successfully imported into the SMS
system, enabling stakeholders to import the data
from the previous year’s submission to the year 12
application.
The delay in development and implementation of
the ETQA phase two module has had an impact on
the go live timeframe which needed to be revisited.

projects report
NEW VENTURE CREATION (NVC)
In the year under review, 250 learners were enrolled
for training in New Venture Creation Learnerships
and Skills Programmes (based on skills sets) at
NQF Level 2. Two FET colleges also participated in
delivering this programme. The learners are spread
HJYVZZ Ä]L WYV]PUJLZ HUK HYL MYVT WYL]PV\ZS`
disadvantaged communities. The project was due
to close-out on 30 June 2012. To improve the impact
of the NVC programme, a tracking and mentoring
programme with 230 New Venture learners was
piloted. The project would draw to a close at the
end of July 2012, and lessons learned would be
carried over into other merSETA entrepreneurship
initiatives.

NGO AND CBO PROJECT
This year, the merSETA’s objective for NGO and CBO
support was to implement a focused, integrated and
sustainable strategy to support NGO and CBOs in
the sector. Ten NGOs and CBOs were supported
in Gauteng, two in KwaZulu-Natal, one in the Free
State and one in Mpumalanga, with 1 094 learners
being reached. The focus areas covered were
Welding, Motor Mechanics, Electrical and Assessors
and Moderators. Agreements were reached before
[OLLUKVM[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY^P[OHM\Y[OLYÄ]L5.6Z
to implement Learnerships and Skills Programmes
for a further 166ILULÄJPHYPLZ

ADULT BASIC EDUCATION AND
TRAINING (ABET)
The Accelerated ABET Project utilises blended
learning and modular approaches to ABET
provisioning, curricula, methodologies and the
scheduling of learning. It reached 663 learners in the
ÄUHUJPHS`LHY;OL6JJ\WH[PVUHS(),;7YVQLJ[HPTZ
to develop and provide ABET materials customised
to each of the merSETA chambers to ensure a closer
Ä[ IL[^LLU (),; HUK [OL VJJ\WH[PVUHS ULLKZ VM
those sub-sectors. 339 learners were reached
through this project. In addition, 1 198 employees
in the sector have been allocated funding through
this project in response to Discretionary Grant
applications from companies.

MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE
PROJECT
This project provides for enrichment, weekend
and holiday classes in Mathematics, Science and
English. The project aims to address problems
experienced in the learner pipeline that results in
shortages of appropriate candidates for entry into
merSETA learning programmes. In the original
project, 2011 results were good as 99% of 300
learners passed, 219 with university entrance
and 69 with university of technology entrance. 78
distinctions were obtained in Mathematics and
Physical Science. Agreements have been entered
PU[V ^P[O Ä]L -,; *VSSLNLZ HUK [^V \UP]LYZP[PLZ PU
seven provinces for pre- and post-matric Maths,
Science and Technology interventions, targeting
1 440 learners and more than 20 schools.

HIV AND AIDS PROJECT
Following the success of the HIV and AIDS Pilot
7YVQLJ[ [OL TLY:,;( OHZ YLÄULK P[Z Z[YH[LN` [V
include direct support and mentoring, and allows it
to disseminate information, support and insight into
ILZ[WYHJ[PJLZTVYLJVZ[LɈLJ[P]LS`HUK[VHSHYNLY
number of SMEs. Company agreements have been
concluded that involve directly reaching more than
5 500 employees in the sector.

PROJECT FOR PEOPLE WITH
DISABILITIES
The purpose of the project is to develop a strategic
and implementation plan to promote training and
placement for the disabled in certain occupations
in the manufacturing and engineering context, and
utilise the initiative as a vehicle for addressing key
policy and legislative objectives and obligations.
The project comprises a research and development
phase to match disabilities against occupations,
and 200 learners with disabilities have been directly
reached. The merSETA has developed a framework
for skills development of people with disability and
has entered into an agreement with Disabled People
of South Africa (DPSA) to test the framework by
rolling out technical learnerships for 140 candidates.

annual report 2011/12

35

RETRENCHMENT ASSISTANCE
PROGRAMME (RAP)
The
merSETA’s
Retrenchment
Assistance
Programme (RAP) is aimed at retraining workers
retrenched or in the process of being retrenched
as a result of the industry downturn or workplace
closure. Eligible individuals are entitled to articulate
in accredited and/or duly registered training
programmes to a maximum of R12 500.00 each to
enable them to either upgrade their skills or to develop
new skills to re-enter the labour market or embrace
entrepreneurship. In addition, the project also
caters for weekly learner allowances to a maximum
of R375.00 per person. The RAP Guidelines have
been further amended to accommodate training
pre-assessment to a maximum of R1 000.00 per
learner to cater for counselling, orientation and
RPL. Post-training support to a maximum R12 500
has also been included to provide for placement
and mentoring, cooperative formation and support,
business plan development, business services and
coaching.
The RAP Project was initiated with a budget of
R80 million with an additional R53 million allocated
MVY [OL  ÄUHUJPHS `LHY (Z H[  4HYJO
2012, there were 22 new companies approved in
[OLWYVQLJ[MVY[OLILULÄ[VMHIV\[975 individuals
and 5 102SLHYULYZOH]LILULÄ[LKMYVT[OLWYVQLJ[
since inception.

TRAINING LAYOFF SCHEME (TLS)
;OL ;YHPUPUN 3H`VɈ :JOLTL PZ H UH[PVUHS
NV]LYUTLU[ PUP[PH[P]L HPTLK H[ WYV]PKPUN ÄUHUJPHS
relief to companies in distress. The TLS facilitates
training and subsistence assistance in the case
of the temporary suspension of an employee or a
group of employees for training purposes and as an
alternative to retrenchment.
It enables employees to be kept in employment
during the economic downturn while being re-skilled
as an investment for future economic recovery. On
approval by the CCMA, companies may, via the
relevant SETA, claim for learner allowances of up
to 75% of their wage bill from the National Skills
Fund (NSF) and/or the Unemployment Insurance
-\UK<0-MVY[OLK\YH[PVUVM[OLSH`VɈWLYPVK;OL
merSETA has actively promoted the TLS since its
inception and is currently leading the way with a
total of 21 member companies participating in the
scheme. As at 31 March 2012, 11 new companies
had been approved for the scheme with about
R49. 9 million claimed as training costs and learner
allowances on their behalf from the NSF and UIF.
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A further sevenJVTWHUPLZHYLPU[OLÄUHSZ[HNLZ
VMHWWYV]HSHUK^PSSILNPU[OLSH`VɈ[YHPUPUNPUK\L
JV\YZL0U[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY[OL;YHPUPUN
3H`VɈ :JOLTL LUHISLK ZVTL 2 283 employees
within the merSETA sector to be retained in
employment as opposed to being retrenched, with
a total of 6 083 individuals having gone through the
process since inception.

BURSARIES PROJECT
278 new bursaries were awarded to unemployed
learners for the 2012 academic year. This brought
the total number of unemployed learners currently
sponsored to almost 600, including 50 currently
undergoing experiential learning. Forty-three
students graduated at the end of 2011 and to date
22 of these have been employed.
The merSETA has working agreements with the
Jacob Zuma Education Trust, NUMSA, the Nelson
Mandela Metropolitan University and the Mitchells
Plain Youth Project, giving opportunities to youth
who would otherwise not have the prospect or
funding to proceed with tertiary education. In line
with the NSDS III priorities, this project is being
extended to include FET Colleges and, where
applicable, opening opportunities for FET college
students to enter tertiary study. The merSETA has
also been approached by NPOs and NGOs to
partner in reaching untapped potential among rural
youth and encourage them to enter engineering
ÄLSKZ
Through our management development programme,
53 employees in the sector graduated in 2011/12
academic year in courses as diverse as National
Diploma Operation Management to an MBA for
a woman who started as a Human Resources
assistant in a small merSETA enterprise and is now
Human Resources manager for a large group. 132
new bursaries were awarded to merSETA-sector
LTWSV`LLZ THPUS` PU QVI ZWLJPÄJ KL]LSVWTLU[
programmes to enhance management expertise
within the industry and instil a system of continuous
career development. The merSETA hopes to foster
a lifetime learning culture with career pathing and
continuous development becoming the norm within
the industry at all levels.

ACCELERATED ARTISAN
TRAINING PROGRAMME
The Accelerated Artisan Training Programme (AATP)
OHZ JVU[PU\LK [V KLSP]LY X\HSPÄLK HY[PZHUZ [V [OL
sector at a structured pace. The year ended having
accommodated a total of 3 900 new entrants with
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803VM[OLZLQVPUPUN[OLWYVQLJ[K\YPUN[OLÄUHUJPHS
year. At the close of the year, 2 214 AATP apprentices
had successfully passed their trade test, with 923 of
[OVZLHJOPL]PUN[OPZTPSLZ[VULPU[OPZÄUHUJPHS`LHY
The merSETA is pleased to report 91% successful
completion rate for metal-related trades and 60%
for motor-related trades. The AATP platform has
now established a sustained level of maturity which
has become the key enabler for the implementation
of applied research in support of a quality workplace
training agenda.

SECTOR SKILLS PLAN
The Sector Skills Plan (2011/2 - 2015/6) was
updated and submitted to the DHET in March 2012.
0[PUJVYWVYH[LKHÄUHSPZLKWYPVYP[`ZJHYJLHUKJYP[PJHS
skills) update and key features of the economic
dynamics pertaining to the sector after extensive
YL]PL^I`Z[HRLOVSKLYZ0[PZUV[HISL[OH[MVY[OLÄYZ[
time, explicit linkages between the merSETA SSP
and the organisation’s Strategic Plan have been
achieved.

RESEARCH
Research areas, including competence diagnostics,
vocational identity and commitment, and a costILULÄ[ HUHS`ZPZ ^LYL ZJVWLK HUK PTWSLTLU[LK
under the supervision of the University of Bremen in
Germany utilising the AATP platform.
This study has demonstrated a bold move on the
part of the merSETA to shape the skills development
landscape in South Africa, with particular emphasis
on its strategic intent to support the National
Programme for Artisan Development. Some related
ÄUKPUNZOH]LOPNOSPNO[LK[OLWV[LU[PHSMVYL_WSPJP[S`
higher levels of competence if dual vocational
education and training is organised in accordance
^P[O PU[LYUH[PVUHS Z[HUKHYKZ ;OL ÄUHS YLWVY[ HSZV
suggests that the current modular training system
KVLZ UV[ Z\ɉJPLU[S` Z\WWVY[ [OL JVYL LSLTLU[ VM
¸YLÅLJ[LK ^VYR L_WLYPLUJL¹ HUK [OH[ SLHYUPUN PU
work processes requires more emphasis. Other

ÄUKPUNZ PUJS\KL [OH[ PU[LNYH[LK V\[JVTLZIHZLK
curricula should be continued and extended; that
new methods of assessment during the learning
process are needed to support professional shaping
and action competence; that working groups
should be maintained and strengthened in support
VM [YHPULY KL]LSVWTLU[ VU H KLÄULK SPZ[ VM [VWPJZ"
and that trade tests should be modernised to
include both practical assessment of complex work
tasks connected to real work orders and theoretical
assessment to examine work process knowledge.
Within the context of vocational commitment, the
test results show that learners are extremely proud
of being able to learn and become professional,
but that this high estimation of what they are
doing partially hinders an analysis of their own and
structural weaknesses. The report also highlights
through case studies that in-company training of
HWWYLU[PJLZ JHU IL VYNHUPZLK HZ H ZLSMÄUHUJPUN
Z`Z[LT;OLM\SSYLZLHYJOYLWVY[HUKP[ZÄUKPUNZHYL
available.
The Research and Development Unit was also
engaged in a range of national and international
academic associations, and conferences and
a range of academic articles were published in
international and national peer-reviewed journals
and other publications. In addition to the highly
ZPNUPÄJHU[ HWWSPLK YLZLHYJO SPURLK [V [OL ((;7
platform, the following research projects were active
in 2011/12:
-

-

-

Wits EPU Mapping Skills Research Partnership engagement concluded. The study
seeks to understand the geographical mapping
of educational and employment opportunities
for citizens of Gauteng Province. This project
provides insight into the relationship between
education and labour market in local contexts;
Artisan Project - HSRC Artisan Identity and
Status - This partnership project explores the
changing nature of the identity and status of the
artisan and artisanal milieu; and
RPL Study - Case Studies of RPL
Implementation in the sector. Fieldwork was
undertaken in-house.
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INTRODUCTION

THE merSETA CONSTITUTION

The merSETA pursues the development of a skilled
workforce within the Manufacturing, Engineering
HUK 9LSH[LK :LY]PJLZ :LJ[VY ¸[OL :LJ[VY¹ 0[Z
scope of coverage is determined by the Minister
of Higher Education and Training in terms of the
Skills Development Act 97 of 1998. All the merSETA
processes conform to the merSETA Constitution,
the Skills Development Act, No 97 of 1998 (as
amended), supported by the Skills Levies Act, 97 of
2003, as well as the SAQA Act, 58 of 1995, Public
Finance Management Act of 1999 (as amended)
and Treasury Regulations.

The merSETA Constitution was approved by the
Minister of Higher Education and Training on 1
April 2011 in terms of section 13 (1) of the Skills
Development Act 97 of 1998. The Minister of Higher
Education and Training announced in November
 [OH[ [OL TLY:,;( OHK ILLU JLY[PÄLK MVY [OL
period 01 April 2011 to 31 March 2016.

0UM\SÄSSPUNP[ZTHUKH[LHUK[VHJOPL]L[OLVIQLJ[P]LZ
of the National Skills Development Strategy III, the
merSETA subscribes to the principles contained in
the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct as
set out in the King III Report.

STAKEHOLDERS
The merSETA is a schedule 3a public entity and
reports to the Department of Higher Education
and Training. The Minister of Higher Education
and Training is the main stakeholder on behalf
VM .V]LYUTLU[ HUK PZ KLÄULK HZ [OL ,_LJ\[P]L
(\[OVYP[`  ;OL .V]LYUPUN )VHYK PZ KLÄULK HZ [OL
Accounting Authority in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act of 1999 (as amended) and Treasury
Regulations.
The merSETA is stakeholder-driven and in terms
of the Skills Development Act, it must be equally
represented by organised labour and organised
employers.

STRATEGIC PLAN
In terms of Regulation 30 of the Treasury regulations
issued in terms of the Public Finance Management
Act, the merSETA is required to submit a Strategic
Plan, which culminates in a service level agreement
with the Executive Authority (Department of Higher
Education and Training). Each year, the merSETA
enters into a Service Level Agreement accompanied
by the Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance
Plan in line with the Department of Higher Education
and Training’s National Skills Development Strategy
targets.
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GOVERNING BOARD CHARTER
The Governing Board has approved its charter
which is in line with the King III Report on Corporate
Governance, the merSETA Constitution, regulatory
legislation and all mandates for which it is
responsible. The Governing Board Charter provides
an overview of the role, powers, functions, duties
and responsibilities of Governing Board members,
both collectively and individually. The basis for the
aforementioned is the applicable legislation and the
merSETA Constitution.

COMPOSITION AND SIZE OF THE
GOVERNING BOARD
In line with the merSETA Constitution, the Governing
Board comprises 15 members in a non-executive
and independent non-executive capacity.
Governing Board members are appointed by the
Minister of Higher Education and Training in terms
of the merSETA Constitution and twelve (12) of the
members are nominated and represent organised
labour and organised employers from the Sector as
well as three (3) members who are independent and
are directly appointed by the Minister.
;OL [LYT VM VɉJL VM TLTILYZ VM [OL .V]LYUPUN
)VHYK PZ Ä]L  `LHYZ HUK [OL` HYL LSPNPISL MVY YL
HWWVPU[TLU[ \WVU L_WPY` VM [OL [LYT VM VɉJL
provided that the reappointed members do not
exceed one third of the members of the Governing
Board at any one term.
Governing Board and its Committees: Meeting
Attendance
Meetings of the Governing Board are scheduled
annually and special meetings are convened if there
PZHULLK[VJVUZPKLY\YNLU[ZWLJPÄJTH[[LYZ
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FINANCE
GOVERNING EXECUTIVE
ETQA
REMUNERATION
AND GRANTS
BOARD
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE

Alex Mashilo

4/6

Anton Hanekom

6/6

5/8
1/1

Cecilia Khuzwayo*

4/4
1/8

Daniel de Villiers

4/6

1/1

Deon Reyneke

4/6

0/1

Elmarie Olivier*

2/4
2/8

Ephraim
Tshikwavhavha#

3/6

Fiona Tregenna

4/6

Jacobus Olivier

5/6

Janet Lopes

6/6

3/3

Jeanne Esterhuizen

4/6

2/3

F

B

M

F

W

M

W

M

C

M

4/4

1/1

Romano Daniels
0/1
3/3

W

F

0/1

6/6

M

W

0/6

Xolani Tshayana

M

W

W

Karl Cloete

6/6

W

1/1
1/1

Thapelo Molapo

F

F

1/1
1/3

M

B

M

6/6

6/6

W

W

6/6

6/6

M

W

Johan van Niekerk

Malebo Mogopodi

B

0/1

John Wilson

Phindile Nzimande

GENDER

NAME

RACE

During the year under review, the following meetings were held by the Governing Board and its committees:

3/4

B

F

B

F

8/8

C

M

6/8

B

M

6/8

B

M

;LYTVMVɉJLLUKLK4H`HZPUKLWLUKLU[TLTILYVM[OL9LT\ULYH[PVU*VTTP[[LL
#
;LYTVMVɉJLLUKLK5V]LTILY
The Chairperson of the Governing Board and
Deputy Chairpersons
The Chairperson of the Governing Board, who may
UV[IL[OL*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLYH[[OLTLY:,;(
^HZHWWVPU[LKMVYHÄ]L`LHY[LYTVMVɉJLI`[OL
Minister of Higher Education and Training as per the
merSETA Constitution.
Ms Phindile Nzimande was appointed as
Chairperson of the Governing Board; she presides
over meetings of the Governing Board and the
Executive Committee and performs other duties
associated with the position of a Chairperson.

Two (2) deputy Chairpersons were nominated and
appointed by the Governing Board from organised
labour and organised employers. Mr Xolani Tshayana
represents organised labour whilst Ms Janet Lopes
represents organised employers.
;OL*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY
;OL *OPLM ,_LJ\[P]L 6ɉJLY +Y 9H`TVUK 7H[LS
^HZ HWWVPU[LK MVY H Ä]L  `LHY [LYT VM VɉJL [V
March 2016 by the Minister of Higher Education and
Training after approval by Cabinet. He is responsible
for all management functions, amongst which are
the implementation of the decisions of the Governing
annual report 2011/12
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Board and the promotion of the strategic planning
and policy development. Dr Patel ensures proper
HUKYLZWVUZPISLJVU[YVSVM[OLTLY:,;(ÄUHUJLZPU
compliance with the PFMA.

monitoring of merSETA compliance with the PFMA
and other relevant legislation. The Governing Board
members have unrestricted access to advice and
services of the Corporate Governance Division.

Delegation of Authority

Code of Conduct

The merSETA operates within an established
delegation of authority framework. The Governing
Board delegates certain authority to management
without relinquishing its duties and responsibilities.
The Governing Board has reviewed and approved
the delegation of authority framework during the
`LHY\UKLYYL]PL^[VLUOHUJLLɉJPLUJ`PUYLZWLJ[
of decision making and performance within the
merSETA.

Members of the Governing Board are bound by the
Code of Conduct included as Schedule 2 of the
merSETA Constitution.

Board Evaluation and Performance
The Governing Board Self-Assessment was not
conducted during the year under review against
Accounting Authority duties as stipulated in the
merSETA Constitution, the PFMA and Treasury
Regulations as well as the principle of the Report on
Corporate Governance for South Africa 2010 (King
III Report) due to the fact that the Governing Board
was only appointed on 1 April 2011. It will be done
K\YPUN[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYHUKWYVNYHTTLZ
will be implemented to address shortcomings
PKLU[PÄLKPU[OL,]HS\H[PVU9LWVY[

To uphold their independence and integrity,
members of the Governing Board disclose all
material interests as they arise. There is a system
in place where members’ interests are formally
recorded. Members are required to declare and
update their activities at every meeting.
Committees of the Governing Board
The following Committees have been established in
terms of Schedule 5 (2) (1) and (2) and Schedule 5A
of the merSETA Constitution:
-

Executive Committee;
Audit and Risk Committee;
Remuneration Committee;
Education,
Training,
Quality
Committee;
Finance and Grants Committee;
Chamber Committees; and
Regional Committees.

Assurance

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
the performance evaluation of the Chief Executive
6ɉJLY

-

Induction and Orientation

All committees operate within Terms of Reference
which are regularly reviewed and approved by the
Governing Board.

New members of the Governing Board went
through an induction programme which sets out
[OLPYÄK\JPHY`K\[PLZYLZWVUZPIPSP[PLZ[OLTLY:,;(
nature of business and the legislation applicable to
the merSETA.
Members’ Remuneration
The merSETA Governing Board members are
remunerated in accordance with Category S of the
5H[PVUHS;YLHZ\Y`JPYJ\SHYVUYLT\ULYH[PVU[HYPɈZVM
VɉJLILHYLYZ^OPJOOHZHSZVILLUHWWYV]LKI`[OL
Minister of Higher Education and Training.
Company Secretariat Function
The Company Secretariat function resides within
the Corporate Governance Division and its main
function is to assist the Governing Board with
Corporate Governance assurance as well as the
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Composition
;OL ,_LJ\[P]L *VTTP[[LL JVTWYPZLZ Ä]L 
members including the Chairperson, who equally
represent organised labour and organised
employers.
The Executive Committee is responsible for
overseeing the management of the operational
HɈHPYZVM[OLTLY:,;(0[HSZVTHUHNLZJVVYKPUH[LZ
and monitors the activities of Chamber Committees.
Meetings
Three (3) meetings of the Executive Committee were
held during the year under review.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The Committee performs the functions as
contemplated in the PFMA. It is responsible for,
amongst other functions, ensuring the adequacy
HUKLɈLJ[P]LULZZVM[OLYPZRTHUHNLTLU[WYVJLZZ
internal control systems, the internal audit function
HUK YL]PL^PUN [OL HUU\HS ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z [V
ensure that these have been prepared in accordance
with the PFMA and related Treasury Regulations as
well as the applicable accounting framework.
The Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
attends and presents a report to the Governing
Board meeting (including the AGM) at least twice
a year.
The Audit and Risk Committee operates in terms of
the Terms of Reference (Audit Committee Charter) in
accordance with Treasury Regulations.
The information regarding the composition and
the meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee is
covered in the chapter dealing with the Audit and
Risk Committee Report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Composition
;OL 9LT\ULYH[PVU *VTTP[[LL JVTWYPZLZ Ä]L 
members, two (2) of whom are independent, two
(2) members representing organised labour and
organised employers and one (1) member who has
been appointed by the Minister. One (1) independent
member position has been vacant during the year
under review. However, the selection process is
under way.
Purpose
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
the development of guidelines and reviews the
JVTWLUZH[PVU HUK WLYMVYTHUJL VM Z[HɈ VM [OL
organisation, reviews and approves corporate goals

relevant to the compensation of the Chief Executive
6ɉJLY L]HS\H[LZ [OL *OPLM ,_LJ\[P]L 6ɉJLY»Z
performance in light of these goals and objectives
and takes responsibility for all Human Resources
related matters.
Meetings
Eight (8) meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held during the period under review.

EDUCATION, TRAINING, QUALITY
ASSURANCE (ETQA) COMMITTEE
Composition
The ETQA Committee comprises ten (10) members
equally representing organised labour and organised
employer.
Purpose
The ETQA Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the execution of the quality assurance
functions and obligations of the merSETA on behalf
of the Governing Board.
Meetings
The Committee convened one (1) meeting during
the year under review.

FINANCE AND GRANTS
COMMITTEE
Composition
The Finance and Grants Committee comprises
seven (7) members. Two (2) represent labour,
two (2) represent employers, one is appointed by
the Minister and there are two (2) independent
members. The positions of independent members
are currently vacant and the recruitment process to
ÄSS[OLZLWVZP[PVUZPZH[HUHK]HUJLKZ[HNL
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Purpose

REGIONAL COMMITTEES

The merSETA Finance and Grants Committee is
responsible for the oversight role in respect of
the management of Grant disbursement by the
merSETA.

The merSETA Regional Committees form a strategic
SPUR^P[OYLNHYK[V[OLÅV^VMPUMVYTH[PVUIL[^LLU
chambers and merSETA Regional Committees
structured in line with the country’s nine provinces.

Meetings

There are seven Regional Committees based at
TLY:,;(»ZZL]LU9LNPVUHS6ɉJLZ[OH[PZ.H\[LUN
South; Gauteng North which includes the North West
Province; Western Cape; Free State and Northern
Cape; Mpumalanga and Limpopo; KwaZulu-Natal;
HUK[OL,HZ[LYU*HWL9LNPVUHSVɉJL

The Finance and Grants Committee convened four
(4) meetings during the period under review.

CHAMBER COMMITTEES
Composition
;OLTLY:,;(OHZÄ]L*OHTILY*VTTP[[LLZ
-

Automobile manufacturing;
Metal and Engineering;
Retail Motor and components manufacturing;
New Tyre manufacturing; and
Plastics manufacturing.

Each chamber consists of a maximum of eight
(8) members who equally represent organised
employers and organised labour plus two (2)
alternates per chamber.
Purpose
The Chamber Committee develops sub-sectoral
inputs into the Sector Skills Plan, identifying
education and training needs, makes inputs to
education and training policies and monitors the
development and implementation of learning
programmes as well as other training in the subsector.

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT
The section of stakeholder management in the
TLY:,;((UU\HS9LWVY[YLÅLJ[ZVU[OL
activities of chambers and Regional Committees
serviced through the chamber unit of the Corporate
Governance division.
Chambers
;OL TLY:,;(»Z Ä]L JOHTILYZ YLWYLZLU[ Ä]L THPU
economic sub-sectors in the sector which include
Auto manufacturing; Metal and Engineering; Motor
Retail and components manufacturing; New Tyre
manufacturing and Plastics manufacturing sectors.
Chamber committees are mainly responsible for
identifying industry training needs and contributing
to the development of the Sector Skills Plan.
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;OLWLYPVK\UKLYYL]PL^ILPUN[OLÄYZ[`LHYVM[OL
National Skills Development Strategy III (NSDS III),
ushered in new hope and revitalised commitment
from merSETA stakeholders in their mission to
deliver and make impact through the implementation
of skills development and more particularly in those
sub-sectors within the ambit of the merSETA.
Objectives
The key objectives in the period 2011/12 have been
the establishment of the merSETA chambers and
Regional Committees in line with the new merSETA
Constitution and the NSDS III mandate. These
processes were followed by induction workshops
initiating new and previous members into the brand
merSETA.
The achievements and highlights
-

The Chamber Committee re-establishment
process for the NSDS III term:

During the period under review, the merSETA
Z\JJLZZM\SS` YLLZ[HISPZOLK [OL Ä]L  *OHTILY
Committees in line with its new Constitution and the
NSDS III.
;OL ÄYZ[ `LHY VM [OL 5:+: 000 ZH^ [OL TLY:,;(
celebrate its renewal through welcoming both new
and previous committee members across chambers,
^P[O UL^ HUK YLLULYNPZLK VɉJL ILHYLYZ SVVRPUN
forward to taking merSETA Chamber Committees
to greater heights.
The new members brought in new thinking whilst
long-serving members ensured much needed
continuity to consolidate gains made in the past and
sustain the organisation into the future presented in
the NSDS III.
-

The induction of the newly established Chamber
Committees in line with NSDS III imperatives:

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

The transition of merSETA Chamber Committees
from NSDS II to NSDS III was successfully achieved
through the induction exercise that was conducted
across all merSETA chambers. Key to the induction
exercise was the orientation of new and longserving committee members to the new merSETA
Constitution and how merSETA has reorganised
itself to respond to the NSDS III mandate. The key
responsibilities of the Chamber Committees are
spelled out in the new merSETA Constitution.

:PNUPÄJHUJLHUK4H[LYPHSP[`-YHTL^VYR
The Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the
Public Finance Management Act require that the
Governing Board compile and agree on a materiality
HUKZPNUPÄJHUJLMYHTL^VYRVMHJJLW[HISLSL]LSZ^P[O
the Department of Higher Education and Training.
The approval has been agreed to and approved by
the Minister through the Service Level Agreement.
Risk Management

It became necessary during the period under review
and the implementation of the NSDS III that the
Chamber Unit of the merSETA, together with the
newly-established chamber committees, strongly
consider drawing up a capacitation programme
YLÅLJ[PUNTVYLKL[HPSHYV\UK[OLJOHUNLZL_WLJ[LK
with the commencement of the NSDS III and the
broad National Development Plan (NDP).
The capacity-building workshop commenced with
the inter-chamber workshop held in March 2012.
Topics included the following:
-

The merSETA Strategic Imperatives and
Performance Plan;
The new merSETA Innovation, Research and
+L]LSVWTLU[ KP]PZPVU ¶ [OL YLPU]LU[PVU VM [OL
previous Projects Division;
Latest developments with the Quality Council
for Trades and Occupations (QCTO); and
The Department of Higher Education and
Training (DHET) Green Paper for Post-School
Education and Training.

7YVWVZLKNVHSZMVY[OLUL^ÄUHUJPHS`LHY
(2012/13)
The year under review (2011/12), given the number
of activities carried out with the newly-established
Chamber Committees for the new NSDS III term,
can be described as providing building blocks for
[OLUL_[ÄUHUJPHS`LHY0U[OLUL^ÄUHUJPHS`LHY[OL
merSETA will continue to partner with public and
private strategic stakeholders in its quest to close
the skills gaps.

The Governing Board is responsible for the merSETA
risk management process. The Audit and Risk
Committee assists the Governing Board in carrying
out its risk management responsibilities. The
Governing Board has delegated to management the
responsibility to design, implement and monitor risk
management within the merSETA.
The merSETA continuously strives to improve its
risk management processes and a risk assessment
process is performed regularly to ensure a continual
HUKLɈLJ[P]LYPZRTHUHNLTLU[LU]PYVUTLU[
Sustainable Development
The merSETA commits to sustainable development
by making sure its operations take cognisance of
the environmental, social and economical impact by
adopting strategic objectives. This is evident in the
reviews and reports presented in this Annual Report.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS
The merSETA has, and continues to maintain, good
YLSH[PVUZOPWZ^P[OP[ZPUKLWLUKLU[JLY[PÄJH[PVUIVK`
-- PricewaterhouseCoopers. The results of the audit
assessments have indicated the good strides that
the organisation has made in maintaining the ISO
9001:2008 status quo.
The merSETA has entered its third year of its
JLY[PÄJH[PVU [OYV\NO LUZ\YPUN [OH[   UVU
conformances issued in 2011/2012 compared to
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PUOH]LILLULɈLJ[P]LS`PTWSLTLU[LK
by the various units as part of the continuous
improvement of our processes, systems and,
ultimately, service delivery.
The year under review saw the issuing and processing
of 30 internal non-conformances as compared to
25 in 2010/2011, indicating that processes that
were not incorporated into the quality management
Z`Z[LTOH]LILLUPKLU[PÄLKHUKHYLUV^WHY[VM[OL
system.
The processing of 53 document change requests in
2010/2011 compared to 56 in the year under review
as a result of the above non-conformances assisted
the merSETA in ensuring that newly-developed and
revised policies and procedures were approved for
implementation by the various units.
The implementation of the complaints email and
the subscription to Hellopeter.com has been
ILULÄJPHS [V IV[O [OL TLY:,;( HUK Z[HRLOVSKLYZ
The intention of the e-mail and the subscription
was to create a platform for our stakeholders to
express any dissatisfaction with the service that the
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merSETA provides, thereby improving our systems,
processes and service delivery.
During the year under review, the merSETA recorded
15 expressions of dissatisfaction from stakeholders
as compared to 20 in 2010/2011, indicating that
the merSETA continuously improves on concerns
raised by stakeholders by taking corrective action
to minimise expressions of dissatisfaction.
Our stakeholders played a critical role in ensuring
that the merSETA was complimented accordingly
for going the extra mile in the delivery of service.
The above was evident based on the compliments
recorded from 85 in 2010/2011 to 101 in the year
under review.
The unit has conducted Quality Awareness Training
MVY Z[HɈ TLTILYZ HZ WHY[ VM I\PSKPUN H J\S[\YL
of quality and played a role in ensuring that the
organisation contributed to the merSETA vision
VM ¸SLHKLYZ PU JSVZPUN [OL ZRPSSZ NHW¹ ;OYV\NO [OL
quality awareness training feedback, it was evident
[OH[ [OL X\HSP[` [YHPUPUN ^HZ UV[ VUS` ILULÄJPHS [V
TLY:,;(Z[HɈI\[HSZV[VZ[HɈOV\ZLOVSKZ

the merSETA performance
THE merSETA PERFORMANCE
AGAINST NSDS III TARGETS
2011/2012

programmes, internships, artisanal trades, work
experience and work-placements, all of which are
reported at over 120% achievement against set
targets.

2011 marked the start of the third phase of the
National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS III),
which brought changes in terms of national skills
priorities, as well as a more distinct emphasis
on the need for SETAs to measure and report on
the qualitative impact of their skills development
investments.

In addition, the merSETA has exceeded 120%
achievement against indicators related to the
establishment of partnerships with FET colleges, the
provision of career guidance within the sector as well
as support provided to small businesses, CBOs and
NGOs. Financial support provided to small, medium
and large companies in the form of mandatory
grants has also exceeded the set target (over 120%
achievement). The merSETA has developed a large
number of projects and partnerships to address the
pressing needs of the sector as well as to respond
to national skills priorities. Table 1 shows the details
VM [OL KPɈLYLU[ PUP[PH[P]LZ [OH[ OH]L HZZPZ[LK [OL
merSETA in meeting and exceeding its targets for
[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY

The DHET developed a new quarterly monitoring
reporting template with a total of 28 indicators
against which SETAs were requested to develop
targets and report performance. After considering
various factors, including previous performance,
current resource capacity and established
partnerships, the merSETA submitted targets (as
shown in Table 1 below).
During the strategic planning workshop of the
.V]LYUPUN )VHYK :LW[LTILY  LPNO[ ZWLJPÄJ
programme goals were developed based on the
goals of the NSDS III, and strategic objectives and
outcomes were developed against each of the eight
goals. The 28 indicators were divided amongst
these eight programme goals as shown in Table 1
and these were represented in the same way in the
merSETA Strategic Plan and Annual Performance
Plan.
Actual performance was reported against targets
throughout the four quarters of 2011/12 and the
total performance against targets is shown in the
same table, both as a number and a percentage.
Overall, the merSETA has shown very good
performance across all 28 indicators, particularly
in the entry and completion of learnerships, skills

As we enter the second year of NSDS III, the merSETA
PZ MVJ\ZPUN P[Z LɈVY[Z UV[ VUS` VU Z\Z[HPUPUN NVVK
performance against quantitative targets, but also
on developing indicators to enable measurement of
qualitative performance and impact, which is a key
priority of NSDS III.

NSDS II IMPACT EVALUATION
The merSETA commissioned an evaluation study
on the impact of its interventions during the term
of the National Skills Development Strategy II.
The objective of the evaluation was to assist the
merSETA in gaining an improved understanding of
IV[[SLULJRZ HUK KYH^IHJRZ [V LɉJPLU[ LɈLJ[P]L
economic and equitable service provision to the
sector. The impact study is currently drawing to a
JSVZLHUK[OLÄYZ[KYHM[YLWVY[PZ\UKLYKL]LSVWTLU[
6UJLJVTWSL[L[OLÄUHSYLWVY[^PSSILH]HPSHISLMVY
download from the merSETA website.
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NSDS III Goal

the merSETA
Programme
Goal &
Outcome

4.2 Increasing
access to
occupationallydirected
programmes

Increased
access to
occupationallydirected
programmes

4.2 Increasing
access to
occupationallydirected
programmes

46

Increased
access to
occupationdirected
programmes
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Performance
Target
Achievement
Variance Explanation
Indicator
2011/2012
2011/12
Employed
Bursaries
Entered

120

130

Target has been exceeded by an additional
 I\YZHYPLZ 0[ PZ KPɉJ\S[ [V HJJ\YH[LS`
predict bursary uptake.

Employed
Bursaries
*LY[PÄLK

55

52

Target has been under-achieved by only 3
completions. These bursars are all studying
via correspondence as they are employed
and they often take longer to complete
than expected. Further to this, drop-outs
are common due to job changes.

Unemployed
Learnerships
Entered

2 250

3 619

Target has been exceeded by 1369
learnerships. This is one of the merSETA’s
core functions and is well-supported
through discretionary grant funding.

Unemployed
Interns
Entered

200

320

Target has been exceeded by 120 interns.
This is a key core area for the merSETA
[OH[OHZUV[WYL]PV\ZS`LUQV`LKZPNUPÄJHU[
uptake by employers. The merSETA has
therefore initiated a number of partnerships
with institutions (e.g. UJ & NMMU) as well
as the EC Provincial Government in order
to address this.

Unemployed
Bursaries
Entered

230

278

Target has been exceeded by 48 bursaries.
There are many more deserving applicants
than bursaries available. The merSETA
THRLZ HU LɈVY[ [V TH_PTPZL [OL U\TILY
of students in line with available funding.

Unemployed
Skills
Programmes
Entered

1 000

1 978

Target has been exceeded by 978 skills
programmes. A number of partnership
projects have been initiated with Provincial
governments (e.g. Free State Blood Hound
project and NC Household project) in
various skills programmes.

Unemployed
Learnerships
*LY[PÄLK

1 400

2 544

Target has been exceeded by 1 144
learnership completions. This is one of
the merSETA’s core functions and is wellsupported through discretionary grant
funding.

Unemployed
Internships
*LY[PÄLK

100

142

Target has been exceeded by 42 internship
completions. Internships run for a duration
of approximately 6-12 months and these
completions stem mainly from entries from
the previous year. Completions are also
incentivised by the discretionary grant
system.

Unemployed
Bursaries
*LY[PÄLK

42

43

Target has been exceeded by 1 bursary
completion. The merSETA is making an
LɈVY[[VTH_PTPZL[OLU\TILYVMZ[\KLU[Z
graduating via a mentoring intervention
which has recently been introduced.
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NSDS III Goal

the merSETA
Programme
Goal &
Outcome

4.2 Increasing
access to
occupationallydirected
programmes

Increased
access to
occupationdirected
programmes

4.2 Increasing
access to
occupationallydirected
programmes

Increased
access to
occupationdirected
programmes

Performance
Target
Achievement
Variance Explanation
Indicator
2011/2012
2011/12
250

551

Target has been exceeded by 301 skills
programme completions. This corresponds
to more than 200% achievement of the
target. A number of partnership projects
have been initiated with Provincial
governments (e.g. Free State Blood Hound
project and NC Household project) in
various skills programmes. Completion is
also supported and incentivised through
the discretionary grant funding system.

Total
employed
Artisans
Entered

1 600

1 983

Target has been exceeded by 383 artisans.
This is a core merSETA function which
is incentivised through the discretionary
grant system as well as a dedicated
Accelerated Artisan Training Programme.

Total
employed
Artisans
*LY[PÄLK

686

1 180

Target has been exceeded by 494 artisan
completions, which corresponds to more
than 170% achievement against target.
These completions stem from entries
from previous years and are supported
through the discretionary grant monitoring
system. In addition, the Accelerated
Artisan Training Programme assists with
successful completion.

Total
Unemployed
Artisans
Entered

2 400

3 185

Target has been exceeded by 785 artisans.
This is a core merSETA function which
is incentivised through the discretionary
grant system as well as a dedicated
Accelerated Artisan Training Programme.

Unemployed
Artisans
*LY[PÄLK

1 714

3 012

Target has been exceeded by 1 298 artisan
completions, which corrresponds to more
than 175% achievement against target.
These completions stem from entries
from previous years and are supported
through the discretionary grant monitoring
system. In addition, the Accelerated
Artisan Training Programme assists with
successful completion.

600

902

Target has been exceeded by 302 people
VɈLYLK^VYRL_WLYPLUJLPU[OLZLJ[VY;OPZ
is a key core area for the merSETA that has
UV[ WYL]PV\ZS` LUQV`LK ZPNUPÄJHU[ \W[HRL
by employers. The merSETA has therefore
initiated a number of partnerships with
institutions (e.g. UJ & NMMU) as well as
the EC Provinicial Government in order to
address this.

Unemployed
Skills
Programmes
*LY[PÄLK

Work
Experience
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NSDS III Goal

Performance
Target
Achievement
Variance Explanation
Indicator
2011/2012
2011/12

4.3 Promoting
the growth
of a public
FET college
system that is
responsive to
sector, local,
regional and
national skills
needs and
priorities

FET College
Promote the
responsiveness Partnerships
of FETs to
Sector Skills
Needs

4.4 Addressing
the low level
of youth and
adult language
and literacy
skills, to enable
additional
training

Increased
access of
youth and
adults to AET
Programmes
in support
of additional
training

Employed
Skills
Programmes
Entered

3120

3830

Target has been exceeded by 710 workers
entering skills programmes. This is one of
the merSETA’s core functions and is wellsupported through discretionary grant
funding.

Employed
Skills
Programmes
*LY[PÄJH[LK

1500

2008

Target has been exceeded by 508 workers
completing skills programmes. This is one
of the merSETA’s core functions and is
well-supported through discretionary grant
funding.

4.5
Encouraging
better use of
workplacebased skills
development

Improved
workplace
equity and
enhanced
workplace
productivity

Workers
completed
learnerships

1040

1650

Target exceeded by 610 workers
completing learnerships. This is one of
the merSETA’s core functions and is wellsupported through discretionary grant
funding.

Workers
registered
on to
learnerships

1800

2432

Target exceeded by 632 workers entering
learnership programmes. This is one of
the merSETA’s core functions and is wellsupported through discretionary grant
funding.

Work
placement

250

303

Target exceeded by 53 additional people
placed within the sector. This target has
not been easy to achieve. The merSETA
has developed improved relationships
with participating companies and this
has resulted in a more advanced learner
tracking system.

Mandatory
grants paid to
SHYNLÄYTZ

500

600

;HYNL[ L_JLLKLK I`  HKKP[PVUHS ÄYTZ
to which mandatory grants were paid.
Extensive marketing was carried out by
the merSETA through regional roadshows
to guide employers on the use of the
new SMS system. Regional satellitebased work stations at providers that
have IT facilities (e.g. FET colleges) have
been established to assist employers in
completion and submission of WSP/ATRs.

4.5
Encouraging
better use of
workplacebased skills
development

48

the merSETA
Programme
Goal &
Outcome

8

10

Target has been exceeded by 2 additional
partnerships formed with FET colleges.
It is the merSETA’s mission to structure
partnerships with FET Colleges throughout
the country. There are ±50 FETs nationally
and the merSETA planned to have formal
partnerships with at least 10 (20%) of
colleges this year.
Because these partnerships will be
developed around key areas and niche
markets
of
colleges,
establishing
partnership agreements is not a simple
matter. Further to this, the merSETA would
like to have partnerships with colleges in
all provinces, and not focus only on one or
two provinces.

Improved
workplace
equity and
enhanced
workplace
productivity
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NSDS III Goal

the merSETA
Programme
Goal &
Outcome

4.5
Encouraging
better use of
workplacebased skills
development

Improved
workplace
equity and
enhanced
workplace
productivity

Mandatory
grants to
mediumZPaLKÄYTZ

4.5
Encouraging
better use of
workplacebased skills
development

Improved
workplace
equity and
enhanced
workplace
productivity

Mandatory
grants paid to
ZTHSSÄYTZ

4.6
Encouraging
and supporting
cooperatives,
small
enterprises,
workerinitiated, NGOs
and community
training
initiatives

Cooperatives
Encouraging
and supporting supported by
Cooperatives, the merSETA
Small
Enterprises,
Workerinitiated,
NGO and
Community
Training
Initiatives

4.8 Building
career and
vocational
guidance

To position the
Manufacturing,
Engineering
and related
services
industry as
providing
attractive
pathways
for personal
and career
development
to young
people

Performance
Target
Achievement
Variance Explanation
Indicator
2011/2012
2011/12
833

1 058

Target exceeded by 225 additional frims
to which mandatory grants were paid.
Extensive marketing was carried out by
the merSETA through regional roadshows
to guide employers on the use of the
new SMS system. Regional satellitebased work stations at providers that
have IT facilities (e.g. FET colleges) have
been established to assist employers in
completion and submission of WSP/ATRs.

1 812

2 190

;HYNL[ L_JLLKLK I`  HKKP[PVUHS ÄYTZ
to which mandatory grants were paid.
Extensive marketing was carried out by
the merSETA through regional roadshows
to guide employers on the use of the
new SMS system. Regional satellitebased work stations at providers that
have IT facilities (e.g. FET colleges) have
been established to assist employers in
completion and submission of WSP/ATRs.

6

10

Target exceeded by 4 cooperatives
supported by the merSETA. The merSETA
has a dedicated project aimed at assisting
Cooperatives through supporting them to
meet the development requirements for
funding.

Small
businesses
supported by
the merSETA

2 100

2 572

Target exceeded by 472 small businesses
supported by the merSETA. The merSETA
has supported small companies with skills
planning and implementation. On-going
support is provided by Client Liaison
6ɉJLYZ

NGOs, CBOs
and CBCs
supported by
the merSETA

10

12

Target exceeded by 2 additional
organisations/ cooperatives supported.
The merSETA has a dedicated project
aimed at assisting NGOs, CBOs and
CBCs through supporting them to meet
development requirements for funding.

Career
guidance
provided by
the merSETA

1 300

2 047

Target exceeded by additional 747
persons supported with career guidance.
The merSETA has conducted at least 2
roadshows in each magisterial district on
skills development and career guidance,
as well as exhibitions at schools, FET
colleges and other providers.
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FIGURE 1: OVERALL PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS (PART I)

FIGURE 2: OVERALL PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS (PART II)
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success stories
TEAM SA - REMARKABLE
IMPROVEMENT
Team South Africa came back with their heads
high from competing in London at the WorldSkills
competition. South Africans vied for top honours in
their chosen trades. The competition was held over
four days at the ExCel London exhibition centre in
the United Kingdom between October 5 and 8.
More than 150 000 visitors graced the event,
which saw 1 000 artisans from throughout the
world compete against each other. Team SA sent
eight competitors and they didn’t disappoint - the
YLZ\S[Z YL]LHSLK H ZPNUPÄJHU[ PTWYV]LTLU[ 6\[ VM
48 countries that took part, Team SA moved up the
ranks and is currently ranked 42 compared to the
2009 results when it was ranked 47.
WorldSkills is a biennial event that showcases the
skills of young people (younger than 23 years) in
46 skills categories including landscape gardening,
graphics design, automobile technology, beauty
care, welding, mechatronics, refrigeration and
ÅVYPZ[Y` [V UHTL H ML^ >VYSK:RPSSZ PZ VWLU [V
agencies or bodies promoting vocational education
and training in their respective countries/regions.
It provides a unique means of exchange and
comparison of world-class competency standards
in industrial trades and service sectors of the global
economy. The merSETA and Services Seta once
again were the driving force behind the country’s
participation in WorldSkills.
Given the imperative of developing a skilled work
force that is employable and globally competitive,
the two Setas have been providing the funding and
scouting the country for skilled competitors for the
competition since 2003.
*VTTLU[PUN HIV\[ [OL ILULÄ[Z VM WHY[PJPWH[PUN PU
the competition, the technical delegate for South
Africa, Mr Andre Vermeulen, says it allows for the
benchmarking of skills taught in each country
against the highest levels in 46 skills areas.

“Our young skilled professionals got an opportunity
to test their ‘real world’ skills against the most
OPNOS` ZRPSSLK JVTWL[P[VYZ PU [OL ^VYSK¹ ZHPK 4Y
Vermeulen. The London competition saw the return
of SA’s participation in automobile technology and
auto body repairs, two skills areas where we have
not competed since 1999.
“The competition was an exploratory one for
these skills so that we can touch base with
the latest technologies, techniques, processes
and assessment procedures internationally in
preparation for the 2013 competition.
“As for mechatronics, mobile robotics, refrigeration
and welding, this was a third attempt to improve on
the results achieved in previous competitions. An
LUVYTV\Z LɈVY[ H[ NYLH[ JVZ[ K\L [V NLVNYHWOPJHS
logistics has gone into the training of competitors; it
was now up to them to achieve the best results they
JHU¹OLL_WSHPULK
Welder Chris Van Zijl represented South Africa at
the 41st WorldSkills Competition and says it was a
great honour for him to represent the country. Van
Zijl holds the title of The Southern African Institute
of Welding (SAIW) 2010 Young Welder of the Year.
“It was a very big break for me and I am privileged
[V OH]L ILLU HɈVYKLK HU VWWVY[\UP[` [V YLWYLZLU[
T`JV\U[Y`¹ZH`Z[OL`LHYVSKMYVT[OL,HZ[LYU
Cape Midlands FET College.
¸;OL JVTWL[P[PVU OHZ OLSWLK [V YHPZL T` WYVÄSL
locally and competing with the world’s best was a
KYLHTJVTL[Y\LMVYTL¹
Besides the eight competitors, the two Setas
also sent a delegation of trade experts to the
competition as a learning experience. These experts
brought back to SA new insights regarding latest
technologies and trends.
They will also assist in preparing the next generation
of WorldSkills competitors and in encouraging more
young people to pursue technical and vocational
JHYLLYZ¶HUHYLH^OLYL[OLYLPZHKPYLZOVY[HNLVM
skills.

This year, South Africa competed in six skills areas
namely welding, mechatronics, autobody repairs,
refrigeration, automobile technology and mobile
robotics.
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South Africa is not alone in promoting vocational
training and the trades - the biggest name in UK
vocational education, City & Guilds, has for the past
six years produced the Vocational Rich List. The
SPZ[ JOHY[Z [OL ^LHS[O VM <2 TPSSPVUHPYLZ ¶ K\IILK
¸ZRPSSPVUHPYLZ¹^OVTHKLIPNTVUL`^OPSLMVSSV^PUN
vocational careers.
“You don’t need to marry into money, appear on
Big Brother or go to university to become rich.
The City & Guilds Vocational Rich List shows all
you need is talent and ambition to become the
UL_[º:RPSSPVUHPYL»¹(PKHU1VULZJOPLML_LJ\[P]LVM
WorldSkills London 2011, commented.
“The competition aims to open people’s eyes and
capture people’s imaginations, allowing thousands
to discover their career aspirations and show that
`V\JHUHJOPL]L`V\YHTIP[PVUZ[OYV\NOZRPSSZ¹
The SA delegation consisted of eight competitors,
 L_WLY[Z [OYLL VɉJPHSZ HUK [OL OLHK VM [OL
delegation was the merSETA CEO, Dr Raymond
Patel.
The eight-man competitor’s team competed
in six skills areas: welding - Christiaan van Zijl;
Mechatronics - Tulani Mzayidume and Khumbulani
:PNLU\" TVIPSL YVIV[PJZ ¶ ;YLTHPUL -LYYPYH HUK
Allan van den Berg; refrigeration - Dewet Britz; Auto
Body Repair - Tasleem Nicholas; Auto Technology Frederik Bezuidenhout.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

SA participation in WorldSkills through the years
-

1990 - South Africa becomes a member of
WorldSkills International;
1993 - Competition held in Taiwan. SA sent 12
competitors to the then Youth Skills Olympics;

The merSETA participant in the World Skills Competition
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-

1995 - Competition held in France and then
called EUROEXPO. Total of 28 countries, 478
competitors and 350,000 visitors participated.
SA competed in 14 competitions and improved
its performance;
1997 - WorldSkills competition held in
Switzerland. SA competed in nine competitions
but struggled to perform due to lack of exposure
to high level of technology;
1999 - WorldSkills held in Canada. Total of 33
countries and 567 competitors. SA competed
in six areas demonstrating much improved
performance;
2001 - WorldSkills in South Korea. South Africa’s
membership halted due to the implementation
of the new Skills Development Act;
2003 - WorldSkills Switzerland. South Africa’s
membership is reinstated with Services Seta
driving the process in an attempt to create an
international platform as a benchmark for SA
skills. SA competed with 36 member countries
in only one competition, namely hairdressing;
2005 - Competition held in Finland. Thirty-four
countries and 696 competitors. Services Seta
and Chemical Seta funded participation of four
South Africans;
2007 - Competition held in Japan. Total of 46
countries, 706 competitors. Services Seta and
the merSETA funded participation of six SA
competitors;
2009 - WorldSkills in Canada with 46 countries
and 845 competitors. Services Seta and the
merSETA supported the participation of 12
South Africans;
2011 - WorldSkills in London. The merSETA and
Services Seta covered the costs of participation
of eight competitors and supporting team.
Forty-eight participating countries.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

;OLTLY:,;(,HZ[LYU*HWL*SPLU[3PHPZVU4HUHNLY4YA^LSL[OLTIH5NH`LRHHUKOPNOÅ`PUN=\`PZPSL5NLTH

HARDWORK AND FORTITUDE
PAY-OFF
Leaving behind his family to work in the city of gold
as a core driller was a dream for Vuyisile Ngema.
“Things didn’t work out for me in Johannesburg and
I decided to go back home to the Eastern Cape.
(M[LY ^VYRPUN HZ H [`YLÄ[[LY 0 QVPULK *VJH *VSH
-VY[\UL HZ H ^VYRZOVW ZOVW HZZPZ[HU[¹ L_WSHPUZ
Vuyisile.
With the passion and the drive to achieve even
TVYLOLMLS[HTPZZPUNSPURPUOPZJHYLLY¶[OLKLZPYL
[V IL H X\HSPÄLK KPLZLS TLJOHUPJ  ;OPZ TLHU[ OL
had to undergo a trade test assessment.
In 2006, he applied for the section 28 trade testing
with guidance and assistance from the merSETA
,HZ[LYU *HWL 9LNPVUHS 6ɉJL /L ^HZ HK]PZLK
to undergo a pre-assessment and to improve his
education. In 2007, he enrolled for the Adult Basic
,K\JH[PVU(),;JV\YZL¸0[^HZ]LY`KPɉJ\S[I\[
I knew what I wanted and in 2009 I successfully
VI[HPULK T` (),; SL]LS  JLY[PÄJH[L¹ JVTTLU[Z
Vuyisile.

It is often the last key in the bunch that opens the
lock. After four unsuccessful attempts, Vuyisile
achieved success in the January 2011 test and was
PZZ\LK^P[OH[YHKL[LZ[JLY[PÄJH[L
Indeed, life is not about how fast you run or how
high you climb, but how well you bounce back.
He passed the practical trade test at DTTC in the
Eastern Cape in April this year with distinction.
He extended his gratitude to Coca Cola, ABET
Educator Mr Fred Ras and the merSETA for their
assistance in closing his educational gaps and
making his dream come true.
He now calls himself a “Diesel Mechanic(TIHNZTHU¹HUKPZUV^PUHWVZP[PVU[VZLUKOPZ
children to university and provide his family a better
life.
Vuyisile is living testimony of not knowing how many
miles you have to run when chasing a dream. As
Ralph Waldo Emerson put it: “Our greatest glory is
not in never failing, but in rising up every time we
MHPS¹
The merSETA is proud of playing its part in closing
the skills gap; Vuyisile can take a bow for his
YLSLU[SLZZLɈVY[HUKKL[LYTPUH[PVU
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DRIVING MEANINGFUL
UPLIFTMENT OF PEOPLE WITH
DISABILITIES
It was James Keller who once said a candle loses
nothing by lighting another candle. This was the
case when Volkswagen South Africa, the merSETA,
Shangri-La Community Development Project and
Training Excellence joined hands in equipping
KPZHISLK WLVWSL ^P[O JLY[PÄJH[LZ PU )\ZPULZZ
Administration NQF Level 3. It all culminated
in a graduation ceremony which took place in
Johannesburg recently where 58 people with
disabilities graduated in business administration.
This learnership combined quality training in a
classroom environment with work experience
within the Volkswagen and Audi dealer network and
internal departments at Volkswagen South Africa.
“We applaud the Dealer Principals and mentors at
our dealerships, as well as the managers and the
mentors at our Volkswagen Group South Africa
OLHK VɉJL ^OV KPK HU V\[Z[HUKPUN QVI PU [LYTZ
of providing on-the-job guidance and coaching for
V\YSLHYULYZ¹JVTTLU[LK=VSRZ^HNLU.YV\W
Training Academy Quality Manager, Ms Terri Russell.
Strong partnership and team work have enabled
this learnership to grow from humble beginnings in
2009 to an industry benchmark in 2012.
Speaking at the graduation ceremony, Ms Russell
commended the stakeholders involved in the project
for overcoming the challenges to make the project
a success.

The
long-standing
relationship
between
Volkswagen Group South Africa, the merSETA and
two key service providers, Shangri-La Community
Development Project and Training Excellence, has
enabled this learnership to grow from strength to
strength in a four-year period.
The focus has shifted from providing an opportunity
MVYWLVWSL^P[OKPZHIPSP[PLZ[VNHPUHX\HSPÄJH[PVU[V
ÄUKPUN LTWSV`TLU[ MVY Z\JJLZZM\S JHUKPKH[LZ (
total of 27 learners (41% of the total group) have
gained employment.
Factors that have enabled the success of this
learnership include:
-

-

-

A stringent recruitment and assessment
process;
Professional project management by a
dedicated team of people who have expertise in
dealing with the unique issues facing this group
of learners;
A dedicated team of trainers, assessors and
moderators who are prepared to go the extra
mile to ensure all learners who complete the
`LHYNHPU[OLPYX\HSPÄJH[PVU"
:\ɉJPLU[ YLZV\YJLZ [V LUZ\YL X\HSP[` V\[W\[
(people and money);
Daily management of EQ and work readiness;
A targeted EQ and work readiness; and
([HYNL[LKHWWYVHJO[VLUZ\YPUN[OLX\HSPÄJH[PVU
meets the demands and needs of the workplace.

Among the graduates was Mr Heiron Joseph, a
quadriplegic who was recruited by Volkswagen
Group South Africa for a learnership in 2011.

+Y9H`TVUK7H[LSHUK4Z4\Z\Z\TLSP4\[ZO\ZO\OHUKPUNV]LY[OLJLY[PÄJH[L[VVULVM[OLNYHK\H[LZ
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Mr Joseph broke his neck in a vehicle accident.
An accident like that can change your life in an
instant, but it is your attitude and the support you
receive that can turn a potential tragedy into a
success story.
“Everyday, it’s a challenge. When I wake up in the
morning, I’ve got to motivate myself. I’ve decided
that nothing is going to get me under. I just need
[V MVJ\Z HUK JHYY` VU ^P[O SPML¹ ZH`Z 4Y 1VZLWO
He is one of 58 dedicated individuals who overcame
WLYZVUHS JOHSSLUNLZ [V HJOPL]L H *LY[PÄJH[L PU
Business Administration in 2011.
Volkswagen Group South Africa has continued
its commitment to training and employing people
^P[O KPZHIPSP[PLZ ¶ JVU[YHJ[PUN HUV[OLY  SLHYULYZ
from 1 February 2012 on an NQF level 4 Business
Administration Learnership.
Delivering the keynote address at the graduation
ceremony of the 2011 Learners with Disabilities, the
merSETA CEO Dr Raymond Patel said empowering
the less-abled is a venture worthy of the highest
praise.
“It is noteworthy that Volkswagen Group South
Africa has chosen to continue its training initiatives
in spite of the recession. But it is the focus on the
less-abled that warrants accolades for Volkswagen
.YV\W:V\[O(MYPJH¹ZHPK+Y7H[LS
Dr Patel pointed out that many companies believe
the obstacles for people living with disabilities are
too large to surmount. “But today is proof that the
reverse is true. Last year, VWSA went out of its way
to train the less-abled. And today’s graduates prove
[OLJVTWHU`»ZLɈVY[ZHYLUV[VUJLVɈ¹
He added that empowering the less-abled is a
venture worthy of the highest praise.
Dr Patel pointed out that many companies believed
that obstacles for those not fully functional are too
large to surmount.
Dr Patel reiterated the importance of making
graduations ceremonies a norm in championing
skills development for all.

EASTERN CAPE - RECLAIMING
ITS PLACE IN THE SKILLS
DEVELOPMENT REVOLUTION
Celebrations around Mandela Day resonated
strongly in the Eastern Cape, where the East
London Industrial Development Zone (ELIDZ) held a
glittering graduation ceremony for 72 learners.
The Eastern Cape Strategic Skills Project, which is
JVVYKPUH[LKI`[OLWYV]PUJL»Z6ɉJLVM[OL7YLTPLY
is funded by the National Skills Fund and runs in
partnership with district municipalities, IDZs, SETAs,
FET colleges and various provincial departments.
Aimed at making a strategic economic contribution
to the Eastern Cape Provincial Gross Domestic
Product (PGDP) by developing critical and scarce
ZRPSSZHTVUN[OL`V\[O[OLWYVQLJ[WYV]PKLZLɈLJ[P]L
work-based training and learning within industry.
The project yielded fruit recently when learners
graduated in the following trades: National
*LY[PÄJH[L! >LSKPUN (WWSPJH[PVU HUK WYHJ[PJL 58-
3"5H[PVUHS*LY[PÄJH[L!>LSKPUN(WWSPJH[PVUHUK
WYHJ[PJL58-3"5H[PVUHS*LY[PÄJH[L!(\[VTV[P]L
Component Manufacturing and Assembly NQF L2" 5H[PVUHS *LY[PÄJH[L! (\[VTV[P]L *VTWVULU[
Manufacturing and Assembly NQF L3-18; National
*LY[PÄJH[L! 4LJOH[YVUPJZ 58- 3HUK 5H[PVUHS
*LY[PÄJH[L!-P[[PUNHUK4HJOPUPUN58-3¶
Speaking at the graduation ceremony, the merSETA
*OPLM 6WLYH[PVUZ 6ɉJLY 4Y >H`UL (KHTZ ZHPK
it was inspirational that during the week of the
Mandela Day celebrations, the 72 graduates were
YLJLP]PUN[OLPYJLY[PÄJH[LZ
Flanked by their parents and family members,
graduates were in high spirits as Mr Adams pointed
out: “As has been said, there is no passion to be
MV\UKWSH`PUNZTHSS¶PUZL[[SPUNMVYHSPML[OH[PZSLZZ
than the one you are capable of living. A man who
devoted 67 years of his life to public service, Madiba
sets the standard for service worldwide, whether
we are students, shopkeepers or farmers, cabinet
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The merSETA and East London Industrial Development Zone graduates

ministers or presidents. He calls on us to serve our
MLSSV^O\THUILPUNZHUKIL[[LYV\YJVTT\UP[PLZ¹
Mr Adams pointed out that the merSETA is known
as the artisan and engineering hub.
“We’re known as this hub because of our
stakeholders and the role they play in the well-being
VM [OL TLY:,;( ;OL ÄLSK VM LUNPULLYPUN ^OL[OLY
we are referring to the trades, technicians, engineers
or research and development in this context, means
that we have to ensure there is a continuous supply
VMX\HSPÄLKWLVWSLMVY[OPZZRPSSZWPWLSPUL
“It also means that there are ample opportunities
for our learners in career development, as well as
lifelong learning. However, we can only do this and
provide these skills development opportunities if we
work together. These initiatives would also not be
possible without the employers and industry. We
celebrate the success of our learners as a family of
collaborative partners and merSETA is proud to be
VMZ\WWVY[PU[OPZWHY[ULYZOPW¹
MEC for Education in Eastern Cape, Mr Mandla
Makupula, said the graduation was the culmination
of work begun in 2007.
“South Africa is part of the constantly changing
world…. 2008-2009 saw massive job losses in the
manufacturing sector as a result of the economic
meltdown. The 2009 Ford survey indicated that
three million young people between 18-24 years
are unemployed in South Africa or have no formal
LK\JH[PVU¹
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Mr Makupula urged young people to make use of
education and training opportunities to make a
better life for themselves and their communities.
Ecstatic about his achievement, Automotive
Component graduate Mr Wanda Ntwana said
his training had opened a new vista in his chosen
discipline.
“It was never easy - there were challenges along the
way. The theory we learned at college as well as
the practicals we were doing at the plant were not
the same. Practicals are more intense, whilst theory
THRLZ[OPUNZSVVRLHZPLY¹
He pointed out that he would use his acquired skills
[VM\SÄSOPZJOPSKOVVKKYLHT
Ms Nondumiso Ntlongweni, who graduated in
Ä[[PUNHUKTHJOPULSL]LSZHPKILPUNH^VTHUHUK
KPZHISLKTHKLUVKPɈLYLUJL[VOLYKYLHT
“I never doubted my abilities and potential as a
person. As a woman, especially a disabled person,
you need to have a thick skin. I told myself that
I am not going to let anyone discourage me. As a
person, you don’t need people feeling sorry for you
- you need to make things happen. I am standing
here today proud of what I have achieved; it’s a
wonderful feeling to know that I can now operate a
THJOPUL¹
As the merSETA we join in congratulating the
graduates. We call on them to make South Africa
a better country by using their skills in a meaningful
manner. They resemble the embodiment of hope
and a brighter South Africa.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

The merSETA provided funding for the training of hearing impaired students

DEAF STUDENTS GRADUATE
FROM WHISPER BOAT BUILDNG
ACADEMY
;OLÄYZ[NYV\WVMKLHMZ[\KLU[ZLUYVSSLKH[[OL
Whisper Boat Building Academy (WBBA) graduated
with sterling honours in the art of boat building,
showing that people with disabilities can reach the
same heights as others.
Statistics shows that 40% of young South Africans
between 16 and 25 years are unemployed and do
not go to school. Disabled people have an even
larger challenge and face greater obstacles as there
are not many opportunities or job facilities that cater
MVY[OLPYZWLJPÄJULLKZ
The regional training manager at Plastics|SA, Mr
Jo Fitzell, was pleased with the support from the
Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services
Seta (the merSETA).
“Our heartfelt gratitude to the merSETA for the
grant they provided in training these students. They
learned valuable skills in the past six months. These
skills will help them become active and contributing
TLTILYZVMV\YUH[PVU»Z^VYRMVYJL¹
This sentiment was echoed by Mr Anton Hanekom,
Executive Director of Plastics|SA, the umbrella
organisation for the local plastics industry and
leading provider of education and training services
in the plastics and related sector.
¸;OLYLPZHZOVY[HNLVMZRPSSLKSHIV\YPU[OLÄIYLNSHZZ
industry and the deaf students, who managed to
Z\JJLZZM\SS`JVTWSL[L[OLZP_TVU[OZ[YHPUPUNVɈLY
a welcome relief to this scarcity. Although this has
been a steep learning curve for everybody involved
PU[OPZWYVQLJ[P[OHZHSZVILLU]LY`YL^HYKPUN¹ZHPK
Mr Hanekom.

Mike Harvey, of the Whisper Boat Building Academy
 H UVU WYVÄ[ VYNHUPZH[PVU [OH[ OHZ ILLU [LHJOPUN
deaf students from disadvantaged communities
the art of boat building in Khayelitsha since 2004
- said they had reached important milestones with
the partnership. This included moving to new and
centrally located premises as well as equipping
and creating new, basic sign language signs for
concepts and terminologies used in the industry
every day.
“Although the learning process is ongoing, these
graduates are now in the ideal position to be
LTWSV`LKHZHWWYLU[PJLZ¹OLZHPK
6ULVM[OLZ[\KLU[Z+PYR:TP[^OVZ\ɈLYLKZLYPV\Z
injuries during an explosion that left him blind in one
eye and injured in one leg 10 years ago, in addition
to being deaf, was on cloud nine and couldn’t
contain his excitement.
¸0[^HZ[OLÄYZ[[PTL0OH]L^VYRLK^P[OSHTPUH[LZ
but I was able to apply my past knowledge and
experience in boiler-making and I am thankful for
the opportunity to again work with my hands and
MLLS[OLWYPKLVMZLLPUNHQVI^LSSKVUL¹
Mr Hanekom said the initiative was bound to grow
both in the number of students who graduate and
the number of businesses that partner with us.
“We are therefore calling on local businesses to help
us provide these students with practical handsVU L_WLYPLUJL PU H ]HYPL[` VM ÄLSKZ PU [OL WSHZ[PJZ
industry, ranging from working as laminators for
boat builders, to swimming pool constructors,
JHUVW` JVUZ[Y\J[VYZ HUK V[OLY JVTWVZP[L ÄLSKZ¹
concluded Mr Hanekom.
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audit and risk committee
Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND
RISK COMMITTEE
Report of the Audit and Risk Committee required
by Treasury Regulations 27.1.7 and 27.1.10 (b)
and (c) issued in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act 1 of 1999, as amended by Act
29 of 1999
>LHYLWSLHZLK[VWYLZLU[V\YYLWVY[MVY[OLÄUHUJPHS
year ended 31 March 2012.
Audit and Risk
Attendance

Committee

Members

and

The Audit and Risk committee consists of a maximum
VM Ä]L TLTILYZ VM ^OPJO [OYLL HYL PUKLWLUKLU[
members and two are non executive members of
[OL .V]LYUPUN )VHYK ;OL *OPLM ,_LJ\[P]L 6ɉJLY
*OPLM -PUHUJPHS 6ɉJLY *OPLM 6WLYH[PVUZ 6ɉJLY
representative(s) of the Auditor-General of South
Africa and representative(s) from the outsourced
Internal Audit Firm attend meetings in terms of the
JOHY[LY ;OL JVTTP[[LL TL[ Ä]L [PTLZ K\YPUN [OL
ÄUHUJPHS`LHYHZWLYP[ZHWWYV]LK[LYTZVMYLMLYLUJL
Number of Meetings
Attended

Name of Member
A Mashifane (Chairperson)*#

5

JL Davis (Independent)*

2

D de Villiers (Non -executive)*1

2

F Mukaddam (Independent)#

3

T Mashanda (Independent)*#

5

C Murray (Independent)*

2

J Olivier (Non- executive)*

1

W Sibuyi (Independent)*

2
1

;LYTVMVɉJLLUKLK:LW[LTILYK\L[VH
reduction in the number of members serving on this
Committee in line with the new dispensation
# Appointed 1 October 2011
*# Reappointed 1 October 2011
*1 Term of service started 1 October 2011 (also a
member of the Governing Board)

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its
JOHY[LYOHZYLN\SH[LKP[ZHɈHPYZPUJVTWSPHUJL^P[O
this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities
as contained therein.
;OLLɈLJ[P]LULZZVMPU[LYUHSJVU[YVS
The system of controls is designed to provide cost
LɈLJ[P]L HZZ\YHUJL [OH[ HZZL[Z HYL ZHMLN\HYKLK
HUK[OH[SPHIPSP[PLZHUK^VYRPUNJHWP[HSHYLLɉJPLU[S`
managed. In line with the PFMA and the King III
Report on Corporate Governance requirements,
Internal Audit provides the Audit and Risk
Committee and management with assurance that
[OL PU[LYUHS JVU[YVSZ HYL HWWYVWYPH[L HUK LɈLJ[P]L
This is achieved by means of the risk assessment
process; adoption of risk based approach, as well
as the recommendation of corrective actions where
KLMLJ[P]L JVU[YVSZ OH]L ILLU PKLU[PÄLK [VNL[OLY
with enhancements to the controls and processes.
From a review of various reports of the Internal
Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial
Statements, and management letter of the AuditorGeneral of South Africa, the committee noted that
the system of internal control was not entirely
LɈLJ[P]L MVY [OL `LHY \UKLY YL]PL^ HZ JVTWSPHUJL
with prescribed policies and procedures was lacking
in certain instances.
There has been improvement in some of these areas
and others are receiving attention. Management
will ensure that these matters receive attention to
prevent recurrence in the future.
Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The Audit and Risk Committee has
-

-
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Reviewed and discussed the audited annual
ÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z[VILPUJS\KLKPU[OLHUU\HS
report with the Auditor-General of South Africa
HUK[OL(JJV\U[PUN6ɉJLY"
Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s
management letter and management’s response
thereto;
Reviewed changes in accounting policies and
practices ; and
9L]PL^LKZPNUPÄJHU[HKQ\Z[TLU[ZYLZ\S[PUNMYVT
the audit.

Expanding lifelong learning opportunities

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts
the Auditor-General of South Africa’s conclusions
VU [OL HUU\HS ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z HUK PZ VM [OL
VWPUPVU[OH[[OLH\KP[LKHUU\HSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General of South Africa.

A MASHIFANE (Chairperson of the Audit and
Risk Committee)
24 July 2012
Mr Andrew Mashifane
(Chairperson)

Adv. Fariyal Mukaddam

Ms Thulisile Mashanda

Mr Dana De Villiers

Mr Jakkie Olivier
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auditor-general’s report
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE
MANUFACTURING, ENGINEERING AND RELATED SERVICES SECTOR
EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. 0OH]LH\KP[LK[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZVM[OL4HU\MHJ[\YPUN,UNPULLYPUNHUK9LSH[LK:LY]PJLZ:LJ[VY
Education and Training Authority (the merSETA) set out on pages 64 to 119, which comprise the statement
VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUHZH[4HYJO[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLZ[H[LTLU[VMJOHUNLZ
PUUL[HZZL[ZHUK[OLJHZOÅV^Z[H[LTLU[MVY[OL`LHY[OLULUKLKHUK[OLUV[LZJVTWYPZPUNHZ\TTHY`
VMZPNUPÄJHU[HJJV\U[PUNWVSPJPLZHUKV[OLYL_WSHUH[VY`PUMVYTH[PVU
;OLHJJV\U[PUNH\[OVYP[`»ZYLZWVUZPIPSP[`MVY[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
2. ;OL HJJV\U[PUN H\[OVYP[` PZ YLZWVUZPISL MVY [OL WYLWHYH[PVU HUK MHPY WYLZLU[H[PVU VM [OLZL ÄUHUJPHS
statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
(SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,
1999 (Act No 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines
PZULJLZZHY`[VLUHISL[OLWYLWHYH[PVUVMÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z[OH[HYLMYLLMYVTTH[LYPHSTPZZ[H[LTLU[
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. 4`YLZWVUZPIPSP[`PZ[VL_WYLZZHUVWPUPVUVU[OLZLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZIHZLKVUT`H\KP[0JVUK\J[LK
my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No 25 of 2004) (PAA), the
General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
[OH[[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZHYLMYLLMYVTTH[LYPHSTPZZ[H[LTLU[
4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
PU[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z;OLWYVJLK\YLZZLSLJ[LKKLWLUKVU[OLH\KP[VY»ZQ\KNLTLU[PUJS\KPUN[OL
HZZLZZTLU[ VM [OL YPZRZ VM TH[LYPHS TPZZ[H[LTLU[ VM [OL ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z ^OL[OLY K\L [V MYH\K VY
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
WYLWHYH[PVUHUKMHPYWYLZLU[H[PVUVM[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZPUVYKLY[VKLZPNUH\KP[WYVJLK\YLZ[OH[HYL
HWWYVWYPH[LPU[OLJPYJ\TZ[HUJLZI\[UV[MVY[OLW\YWVZLVML_WYLZZPUNHUVWPUPVUVU[OLLɈLJ[P]LULZZVM
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
V]LYHSSWYLZLU[H[PVUVM[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
5. 0ILSPL]L[OH[[OLH\KP[L]PKLUJL0OH]LVI[HPULKPZZ\ɉJPLU[HUKHWWYVWYPH[L[VWYV]PKLHIHZPZMVYT`
audit opinion.
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Opinion
6. 0U T` VWPUPVU [OL ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z WYLZLU[ MHPYS` PU HSS TH[LYPHS YLZWLJ[Z [OL ÄUHUJPHS WVZP[PVU VM
the Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority as at
4HYJOHUKP[ZÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLHUKJHZOÅV^ZMVY[OL`LHY[OLULUKLKPUHJJVYKHUJL^P[O
the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
7. In accordance with the PAA and the General NoticePZZ\LKPU[LYTZ[OLYLVM0YLWVY[[OLMVSSV^PUNÄUKPUNZ
relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and
internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.
Predetermined objectives
8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the
merSETA annual report as set out on pages 45 to 50 of the annual report.
9. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of
usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether
it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury annual reporting principles and whether the reported
performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether
PUKPJH[VYZHUK[HYNL[ZHYLTLHZ\YHISLPL^LSSKLÄULK]LYPÄHISLZWLJPÄJTLHZ\YHISLHUK[PTLIV\UKHUK
relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.
The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether it
HKLX\H[LS`YLÅLJ[Z[OLMHJ[ZPL^OL[OLYP[PZ]HSPKHJJ\YH[LHUKJVTWSL[L
10. ;OLYL ^LYL UV TH[LYPHS ÄUKPUNZ HYPZPUN MYVT [OL H\KP[ VM [OL TLY:,;( HUU\HS WLYMVYTHUJL YLWVY[
concerning the usefulness and reliability of the information.
Compliance with laws and regulations
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and
YLN\SH[PVUZYLNHYKPUNÄUHUJPHSTH[[LYZÄUHUJPHSTHUHNLTLU[HUKV[OLYYLSH[LKTH[[LYZ4`ÄUKPUNZVU
TH[LYPHSUVUJVTWSPHUJL^P[OZWLJPÄJTH[[LYZPURL`HWWSPJHISLSH^ZHUKYLN\SH[PVUZHZZL[V\[PU[OL
General notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:
(UU\HSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
12. ;OLHJJV\U[PUNH\[OVYP[`Z\ITP[[LKÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZMVYH\KP[PUN[OH[^LYLUV[WYLWHYLKPUHSSTH[LYPHS
aspects, in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice, as required by section 55(1)(b) of the
7-4(;OLTH[LYPHSTPZZ[H[LTLU[ZPKLU[PÄLKI`[OL(.:(^P[OYLNHYK[VKPZJYL[PVUHY`NYHU[ZHJJY\HSHUK
commitments were subsequently corrected.
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Procurement and contract management
13. (ZKPZJSVZLKPUUV[L [V[OLHUU\HSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z0OH]LPKLU[PÄLK[OLMVSSV^PUNUVUJVTWSPHUJL
with laws and regulation:
 Goods and services with a transaction value between R10 000 and R500 000 were procured without
inviting at least three written price quotations from prospective suppliers, as per the requirements of
Treasury Regulation 16A6.1 and National Treasury Practice Note 8 of 2007-08.
 Goods and services with the transaction value above R500 000 were procured without ensuring that the
bid documentation includes the evaluation and adjudication criteria, as per the requirements of Treasury
Regulation 16A6.3(b) and National Treasury Practice Note 2 of 2006.
 Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting competitive
bids, as per the requirements of Treasury Regulation 16A.6.4 and National Treasury Practice Note 8 of
2007-08.
Expenditure management
14. ;OL HJJV\U[PUN H\[OVYP[` KPK UV[ [HRL HKLX\H[L LɈLJ[P]L HUK HWWYVWYPH[L Z[LWZ [V WYL]LU[ PYYLN\SHY
expenditure, as per the requirements of section 51(1)(b) of the PFMA. Details of irregular expenditure
PUJ\YYLKHYLKPZJSVZLKPUUV[L [V[OLHUU\HSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
Internal control
15. 0JVUZPKLYLKPU[LYUHSJVU[YVSYLSL]HU[[VT`H\KP[VM[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZVM[OLTLY:,;(»ZWLYMVYTHUJL
report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals
VM PU[LYUHS JVU[YVS HYL SPTP[LK [V [OL ZPNUPÄJHU[ KLÄJPLUJPLZ VU [OL ÄUKPUNZ HYPZPUN MYVT [OL H\KP[ VM
compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.
Oversight responsibility regarding reporting and compliance
16. 4HUHNLTLU[HUKZ[HɈZOV\SKM\SÄS[OLPYK\[PLZHUKYLZWVUZPIPSP[PLZ^P[OYLNHYK[V[OLV]LYHSSWYVJLZZVM
assessing compliance with laws and regulations when procuring goods and services. These regulatory
requirements are stated in the entity’s supply chain management policy, but not adhered to.
Monitoring of compliance with laws and regulations
17. ;OLW\ISPJLU[P[`ZOV\SKPTWSLTLU[Z\ɉJPLU[TVUP[VYPUNJVU[YVSZ[VLUZ\YL[OLWYVWLYPTWSLTLU[H[PVUVM
the overall process of procurement and contract management with regard to invitation and evaluation of
quotations and competitive bids in accordance with laws and regulations governing the processes.
Financial and performance management
(JJ\YHJ`HUKJVTWSL[LULZZVM[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
18. ;OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZJVU[HPULKU\TLYV\ZTPZZ[H[LTLU[ZYLSH[PUN[V[OLKPZJYL[PVUHY`NYHU[HJJY\HS
and commitments that were corrected by management. This was mainly due to the fact that internal
JVU[YVSZ^LYLUV[Z\ɉJPLU[S`KLZPNULK[VLUZ\YL[OH[KPZJYL[PVUHY`NYHU[ZHYLHJJY\LKJVYYLJ[S`H[`LHY
end.
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Investigations
19. (ZKPZJSVZLKPUUV[L [V[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z!
 0U[OLWYPVY`LHY[OLW\ISPJLU[P[`Z\ɈLYLKHÄUHUJPHSSVZZVM9 K\L[VJYPTPUHSJVUK\J[;OL
loss involved diversion of mandatory grants due to employers by a former employee of the public entity.
;OL HTV\U[ OHZ ILLU M\SS` WYV]PKLK MVY \UKLY THUKH[VY` NYHU[ L_WLUZLZ HUK [OL HɈLJ[LK LTWSV`LYZ
reimbursed. The case is still under investigation and a police case has been opened. The public entity will
pursue recovery of the loss through legal processes. The process of updating banking details has been
reviewed and strengthened.

Pretoria
31 July 2012
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accounting authority
REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY TO THE EXECUTIVE
AUTHORITY AND PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
;OLÄUHUJPHSHɈHPYZVM[OLTLY:,;(HYLZV\UKHUK[OLÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUYLTHPUZZ[YVUN;OLTLY:,;(OHZ
achieved most of its performance targets as set out in the Annual Performance Plan. The levy base has
ILLUZ\IZ[HU[PHSPU[OLJ\YYLU[`LHYHUKZPNUPÄJHU[NYV^[OOHZILLUL_WLYPLUJLKPU[OLPUK\Z[Y`<UMVYLZLLU
challenges were experienced with the disbursements of mandatory grants earlier in the year, however the
merSETA managed to rise above these challenges and a consistent trend of disbursements was achieved.
An increase in the disbursements of discretionary grants from the prior year was experienced indicating the
milestone achievements on planned training initiatives. The merSETA maintains substantial reserves which
are 100% committed in learnerships, apprenticeships and projects stretching over the next four years to the
value of R923 million.
LEVIES
;OLTLY:,;(SL]`PUJVTLNYL^I` PU[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYV]LYWYPVY`LHY[VYLHJO9  TPSSPVU
The levy income exceeded the budgeted levy income by 16.9%, as the sector and number of contributing
employers’ growth was higher than anticipated. The number of contributing employers increased substantially
to 12 532 from 11 003, most of which are companies employing over 150 employees. The exemption threshold
to paying levies remained at an annual payroll level of R500 000. IT Technical problems in the Department of
/PNOLY,K\JH[PVUHUK;YHPUPUNYLZ\S[LKPUKLSH`ZPU[OLYLJLPW[VMSL]`WH`TLU[ZHUKKV^USVHKÄSLZ;OPZ^HZ
YLJ[PÄLKPU[OLZLJVUKOHSMVM[OL`LHYHUK[OLIHJRSVNVMTVU[OS`KPZI\YZLTLU[Z^HZHKKYLZZLKILMVYL[OL
LUKVM[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYLUK
GRANTS AND PROJECTS
The merSETA has seen a steady increase in participation by the employers in their submission of WSPs in the
current year as the mandatory claims ratio is 80%, compared to 77% in the prior year. The merSETA continues
to enforce strict deadlines for the submission of mandatory grant applications in line with regulations. The
merSETA had to undertake vigorous processes and escalate the frequency of grant disbursements in the
second half of the year in order to reduce the backlog that had accumulated due to delays in the receipt of
SL]`PUJVTLHUKSL]`KV^USVHKÄSLZMYVT[OL+/,;(M\SSHJJY\HSVM[OLTHUKH[VY`NYHU[ZL_WLUZLHWWYV]LK
but not yet disbursed was made resulting in a 20.8% increase in mandatory grant expenses to R445 million
from R367 million in the prior year. Disbursements of mandatory grants are above budget in line with the levy
income earned in excess of budget.
This year discretionary grants expense, including project expense, increased by 19.5% to R421 million from
R352 million in the prior year. Although discretionary grant expenses are R542 million below budget, they
comprise 34% of the budgeted amount for total grants expenditure.
The discretionary grant expense is below the budgeted amount due to several factors including the following:
i.

;OLTHQVYP[`VM[OL+.ZLJVUK[YHUJOLHUKÄUHS[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZMVYHWWYLU[PJLZ^LYLUV[WHPKK\L
to a number of apprentices not meeting the required milestones. Discretionary Grant 3 registrations took
place later in the year 2010/2011, thus resulting in most apprentices lagging behind schedule in attaining
[OL JVTWSL[PVUMVYZLJVUK[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZHUK JVTWSL[PVUMVYÄUHS[YHUJOLWH`TLU[Z
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ii. The majority of the DG4 MoAs were only signed during February and March 2012, thus resulting in only a
WVY[PVUVM[OLÄYZ[[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZILPUNTHKL
iii. Discretionary Grant 3 Internship Project and MoAs went out in February 2011, thus resulting in late
YLNPZ[YH[PVUVMPU[LYUZ;OLYLMVYLVUS`[OLÄYZ[[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZOH]L[HRLUWSHJLK\L[VTPSLZ[VULZUV[
being met.
iv. The implementation of the NSDS III required a robust process of aligning projects to the NSDS III objectives
and thus allocation of funds, this resulting in contract engagement and implementation delays.
;OLTLY:,;(JVU[PU\LK[VLɈLJ[HSSÄYZ[[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZH[ HUKHUL^YLX\PYLTLU[^HZPU[YVK\JLK
PU [OL J\YYLU[ `LHY ^OLYLI` [OL PTWSLTLU[H[PVU YLWVY[Z ^LYL UV^ ZPNULK \WMYVU[ ILMVYL [OL ÄYZ[ [YHUJOL
WH`TLU[PZTHKL0U[OLWHZ[[OLPTWSLTLU[H[PVUYLWVY[^HZZPNULKHM[LY[OLÄYZ[[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZOHK
ILLUTHKL0UHSSJVTWHUPLZ^LYLWHPK VM[OLÄYZ[[YHUJOLWYV]PKLK[OH[[OL`OHKZ\ITP[[LK
the signed MoA and the merSETA had approved the implementation report submitted within 60 days of the
signed MoA.
;OLPU[YVK\J[PVUVM[OPZUL^YLX\PYLTLU[OHZLUZ\YLK[OH[[OLÄYZ[[YHUJOLWH`TLU[ZJHUILYLJVYKLKHZHU
expense instead of a prepayment as was the previous practice. The merSETA continues to monitor all the
companies that were given discretionary grants as prepayments in the prior years to ensure that training is
being implemented. The companies that are not implementing training as per the signed MoA are requested
LP[OLY[VLɈLJ[YLTLKPHSHJ[PVUZVY[VYLM\UK[OLNYHU[ZWHPK[V[OLT
GRANTS PAID TO DATE PER GRANT TYPE SINCE INCEPTION:
R’000
YEAR

Mandatory

Discretionary

Projects

TOTAL

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

2001

49 714

-

2002

66 640

22 144

4 984

93 768

2003

188 778

51 530

104 803

345 111

2004

143 170

83 794

53 143

280 107

2005

256 227

125 061

53 830

435 118

2006

362 128

102 719

63 263

528 110

2007

250 228

107 811

108 801

466 840

2008

204 274

69 114

28 280

301 668

2009

303 908

171 534

97 451

572 893

2010

334 254

248 928

234 176

817 358

2011

368 759

136 870

215 174

720 803

2012

445 459

130 680

290 029

866 168

2 973 539

1 250 185

1 254 284

5 478 008

TOTAL
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50 064

DISCRETIONARY GRANTS PAID TO DATE BY CHAMBER
R’000
YEAR

Auto

Metal

Motor

New Tyre

Plastics

TOTAL

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

2002

3 016

12 637

4 674

819

998

22 144

2003

4 828

32 781

10 663

941

2 317

51 530

2004

7 113

50 477

21 257

1 351

3 596

83 794

2005

8 650

70 412

37 077

661

8 261

125 061

2006

12 516

51 227

31 959

1 187

5 830

102 719

2007

12 496

58 152

31 363

851

4 949

107 811

2008

7 438

35 829

19 844

1 021

4 982

69 114

2009

24 606

84 552

50 676

2 169

9 531

171 534

2010

33 139

139 088

62 494

3 342

10 865

248 928

2011

17 729

77 123

32 205

3 169

6 644

136 870

2012

30 388

57 790

35 136

661

6 705

130 680

TOTAL

161 919

670 068

337 348

16 172

64 678

1 250 185

MANDATORY GRANTS PAID TO DATE BY CHAMBER
R’000
YEAR

Auto

Metal

Motor

New Tyre

Plastics

TOTAL

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

R000’s

2001

5 537

27 686

12 429

1 134

2 928

49 714

2002

7 990

37 628

15 725

1 986

3 311

66 640

2003

28 412

104 438

42 469

5 060

8 399

188 778

2004

22 962

77 101

32 670

3 171

7 266

143 170

2005

38 581

135 903

60 275

8 744

12 724

256 227

2006

47 140

191 523

92 510

6 116

24 839

362 128

2007

28 585

129 838

68 159

7 039

16 607

250 228

2008

23 316

111 250

52 610

4 210

12 888

204 274

2009

32 330

166 167

82 165

4 591

18 655

303 908

2010

26 921

190 632

88 582

6 674

21 445

334 254

2011

27 865

217 415

96 164

5 703

21 612

368 759

2012

43 484

255 222

113 552

8 040

25 161

445 459

TOTAL

333 123

1 644 803

757 310

62 468

175 835

2 973 539

PLANNED UTILISATION OF SURPLUSES
The merSETA has discretionary reserves of R924 million and cash balances of R1.106 billion at year-end.
;OLTLY:,;(OHKYLJLP]LKHWWYV]HS[VJHYY`MVY^HYK[OLZLZ\YWS\ZLZMVY[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYHUKOHZ
HWWSPLKMVYZPTPSHYJHYY`MVY^HYKZ\YWS\ZLZMVY[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYPU4H`;OLTLY:,;(OHZ
committed to utilise R923 million in Governing Board approved learnerships, apprenticeships, strategies and
WYVQLJ[ZPU[OL[VÄUHUJPHS`LHYZ
;OLTLY:,;(JHYYPLZ9 TPSSPVUHKTPUPZ[YH[PVUYLZLY]LPUP[ZZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUHZH[4HYJO
;OL.V]LYUPUN)VHYKOHZHWWYV]LK[OH[Z\ɉJPLU[HKTPUPZ[YH[P]LYLZLY]LZOV\SKILHJJ\T\SH[LKMVY
[OLW\YJOHZLVMHUVɉJLI\PSKPUN
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SERVICES RENDERED BY THE merSETA
The merSETA renders four broad services to its sector:
e. Grant disbursements:
-

Disbursements of mandatory grants accounts for 50% of levies paid. This is subject to the companies
submitting a valid workplace skills plan received by 30 June 2011. The purpose of the mandatory grant
is to reimburse companies that undertake training; and
Disbursements of discretionary grants accounts for a minimum of 20%. The discretionary grant is
intended to support learners and apprentices and also to undertake special projects that address critical
sector needs.

f.

Quality Assurance functions which include but are not limited to:

-

Accreditation of workplaces and training providers for the purpose of quality training provision;
Assessment and moderation of learners against set criteria; and
Auditing and monitoring of training providers for the purpose of assessing the quality of their training
provision.

g. Skills implementation functions as follows:
-

+L]LSVWTLU[VM\UP[Z[HUKHYKZHUKYLNPZ[YH[PVUVM[OLZL^P[O[OL:V\[O(MYPJHU8\HSPÄJH[PVUZ(\[OVYP[`"
Development of curriculum and courseware from unit standards registered in the merSETA’s scope of
coverage;
Conceptualisation and implementation of skills initiatives which promote the NSDS objectives and address
[YHPUPUNULLKZPU[OLTLY:,;(»ZÄ]LZ\IZLJ[VYZ"
Research into sector training needs in terms of critical skills and future growth skills;
Development and maintenance of a database for skills development reference and administration;
Skills development advice and assistance to companies and training providers; and
Administration and maintenance of the apprenticeship and learnership systems.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The merSETA has experienced attrition and new entrants during the year. However, the number of employees
as at 31 March 2012 is 228, the same as the prior year. The merSETA remained focused on customer service
LUZ\YPUN[OH[[OLYLNPVUHSVɉJLZHYLZ\ɉJPLU[S`YLZV\YJLKI`JVTWL[LU[Z[HɈ[VZ\WWVY[[OLZ[HRLOVSKLYZ
and deliver project work.
EMPLOYMENT DATA FOR KEY PERSONNEL FOR THE merSETA FOR THE 2011/12 FINANCIAL YEAR:
RAND 000’S

Key Personnel
*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY

Performance
Bonus 2011/12

Total 2011/12

Total 2010/11

Notes

1 491

512

2 003

1 859

*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY

527

-

527

1 092

*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY

454

112

566

-

*OPLM6WLYH[PVUZ6ɉJLY

1 137

147

1 284

1 201

General Manager: Corporate
Services

209

-

209

944

General Manager: Corporate
Governance

1 020

120

1 140

1 001

907

112

1 019

947

5 745

1 003

6 748

7 044

General Manager: Projects
TOTAL

68

Cost to
Company
2011/12

annual report 2011/12

Resigned
30/09/2011
Commenced
01/10/2011
Resigned
30/06/2011

;^VZLUPVYTHUHNLYZYLZPNULKK\YPUN[OL`LHYHUK[OL*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY»ZWVZP[PVU^HZÄSSLK
immediately.
Upon the resignation of the GM: Corporate Services, a decision was taken by the Board to change the senior
management structure and the corporate services duties and responsibilities were consolidated with those
of the GM: Corporate Governance.
The salary package of the GM: Corporate Governance is inclusive of the acting allowance paid to him from
July 2011 for taking on the corporate services responsibilities.
UTILISATION OF DONOR FUNDS
;OLTLY:,;(LU[LYLKPU[VHUHNYLLTLU[MVYJVÄUHUJPUNVM[OL(JJLSLYH[LK(Y[PZHU;YHPUPUN7YVNYHTTL^P[O
[OL5H[PVUHS:RPSSZ-\UKPU4HYJO ^VY[O9TPSSPVU9TPSSPVU^HZYLJLP]LKPU[OLÄUHUJPHS
year, and R42 million in the prior year. At the end of March 2012, R28 million of these funds was outstanding,
VM^OPJO9TPSSPVU^HZYLJLP]LKPU[OLUL^ÄUHUJPHSWLYPVKPU(WYPS
;OLTLY:,;(HSZVLU[LYLKPU[VHUHYYHUNLTLU[^P[O[OL+/,;MVY[OL;YHPUPUN3H`VɈ:JOLTLPU VM
^OPJO9TPSSPVU^HZYLJLP]LKPU[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHYHUK9TPSSPVUPU[OLWYPVY`LHY([[OLLUKVM
March 2012, R31 million of these funds was on hand.
BUSINESS ADDRESS
The physical and postal addresses of the merSETA are as follows:
merSETA
The Atrium
95, Corner 7th Avenue and Rustenburg Road
Melville
Johannesburg
merSETA
P O Box 61826
Marshalltown
2107
DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES/ACTIVITIES TO BE DISCONTINUED
The merSETA did not discontinue any major activity during the year under review and has no plans to
KPZJVU[PU\LHU`HJ[P]P[PLZPU[OLUL_[ÄUHUJPHS`LHY
NEW/PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
The merSETA, in line with the government directive, will continue to focus on unemployed youth and capacitybuilding of the FET colleges.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
;OLTLY:,;(PZUV[H^HYLVMHU`L]LU[ZHM[LY[OLYLWVY[PUNKH[L^OPJO^PSSHɈLJ[[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LVMHɈHPYZ
VM[OLVYNHUPZH[PVUMVY[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
The merSETA’s performance is measured by the Department of Higher Education and Training against the
National Skills Development Strategy objectives which were translated into targets by the merSETA in 2011/12
and for which a Service Level Agreement together with a Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance Plan was
submitted to the Department of Higher Education and Training. The merSETA has an extensive information
database which it uses for record keeping and updating purposes, quality assurance requirements as well as
reporting to the Department of Higher Education and Training.
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The merSETA has met its targets as set by the Department of Higher Education and Training for 2011/12
L_JLW[ [OL [HYNL[ MVY LTWSV`LK I\YZHYPLZ JLY[PÄLK    ;OL KL[HPSZ VM [OPZ HYL ZOV^U \UKLY [OL ZLJ[PVU VU
Performance Information.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The merSETA follows an integrated approach which has governance, risk management and compliance
forming the three pillars that enables the organisation to achieve its strategic objectives. The elements which
HYLIHZPJ[VNV]LYUHUJLYPZRTHUHNLTLU[HUKJVTWSPHUJLLɈLJ[P]LULZZOH]LLP[OLYILLUHKKYLZZLKI`[OL
merSETA or are being addressed as follows:
a. Governing Board
A new Governing Board was appointed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training comprising of
15 members including an independent chairperson and two members directly appointed by the Minister
on 1 April 2011. The Minister of Higher Education and Training has also introduced restrictions to board
TLTILYZ»[LYTPUVɉJLPU[LYTZVM[OLYLHWWVPU[TLU[
b. Internal Audit


;OLTLY:,;(PU[LYUHSH\KP[M\UJ[PVUPZV\[ZV\YJLK[VHUPUKLWLUKLU[H\KP[ÄYT[OH[JHYYPLZV\[P[ZM\UJ[PVU
on an approved three year internal audit plan. The independent internal auditors perform and report in
terms of an approved charter and in line with the Audit and Risk Committee Charter.

c. Financial Management
Fraud


0U[OLWYPVY`LHY[OLTLY:,;(Z\ɈLYLKHSVZZVM9TPSSPVU[OYV\NOKP]LYZPVUVMTHUKH[VY`NYHU[ZK\L
to employers. The investigation was completed in the prior year. However, the legal prosecution process
is still under way. The merSETA has since reviewed the controls and processes surrounding the update
of bank details.



+\YPUN [OL ÄUHUJPHS `LHY  [OL TLY:,;( Z\ɈLYLK H ÄUHUJPHS SVZZ VM 9  K\L [V JYPTPUHS
conduct. A travel desk employee used the merSETA travel vouchers to book accommodation for personal
use. Appropriate disciplinary action was taken by management. The employee has since resigned and
LɈVY[Z[VYLJV]LY[OLSVZZHYL\UKLY^H`
Internal Controls



0U[LYUHSJVU[YVSZKLÄJPLUJPLZ^LYLYLWVY[LKHYV\UKZ\WWS`JOHPUTHUHNLTLU[JH\ZLKI`UVUJVTWSPHUJL
with laws and regulations and inadequate document management systems.



-\Y[OLYPU[LYUHSJVU[YVSKLÄJPLUJPLZ^LYLPKLU[PÄLKHYV\UK[OLÄ_LKHZZL[THUHNLTLU[WYVJLZZ^OLYLI`
HU\TILYVMHZZL[ZPU\ZL^LYLUV[JHWP[HSPZLKHUKZL]LYHSVSKHZZL[ZJHW[\YLKVU[OLÄ_LKHZZL[YLNPZ[LY
JV\SKUV[ILWO`ZPJHSS`]LYPÄLK



2L`^LHRULZZLZ^LYLHSZVPKLU[PÄLKPU[OLVYNHUPZH[PVU»Z0;NV]LYUHUJL:L]LYHS0;WVSPJPLZ^LYLLP[OLY
not in place or were inadequately documented. Review processes were not in place for logon violations
reports and access controls were found to be inadequate.
The system of accounting and internal controls are being constantly monitored and improved, particularly
HYV\UK[OLZ\WWS`JOHPUTHUHNLTLU[;OL^LHRULZZLZ[OH[^LYLPKLU[PÄLKHYV\UK[OL0;Z`Z[LT^LYL
PTTLKPH[LS`HKKYLZZLKHUKUL^TLHZ\YLZW\[PUWSHJL[VTP[PNH[L[OLPKLU[PÄLKYPZRZ;OLPU[LYUHSH\KP[VYZ
also conduct continuous reviews of the controls and processes in place and advise management of any
improvements necessary.
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6[OLY[OHU[OLPU[LYUHSJVU[YVSKLÄJPLUJPLZKL[HPSLKHIV]L[OLTLY:,;(»ZÄUHUJPHSTHUHNLTLU[YLTHPUZ
sound and compliant with the PFMA and National Treasury regulations. The merSETA Executive Committee
TLL[PUNZHYLWYLZLU[LK^P[OHM\SSÄUHUJPHSTHUHNLTLU[YLWVY[MYVT[OL*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY
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An all inclusive budgeting process formed part of the Business Plan process and is used as a benchmark
MVY SL]` PUJVTL NYHU[ HKTPUPZ[YH[PVU HUK JHWP[HS L_WLUKP[\YL  ( X\HY[LYS` YLWVY[ ZOV^PUN ÄUHUJPHS
performance results against budget is presented to the merSETA Governing Board and the Department
of Higher Education and Training.
In terms of the Skills Development Act, total administration expenditure may not exceed 10% of total levy
income. The merSETA has kept within the limit.
d. Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee comprises three independent members and two Governing Board
members. The Audit and Risk Committee is advisory in nature and reports to the Governing Board. The
committee’s charter is aligned to the duties prescribed by the PFMA and Treasury Regulations and has
been approved by the Governing Board. The Audit and Risk Committee’s responsibilities also cover
oversight of risk management processes.
e. Other committees
The other committees of the Governing Board are:
I.
II.
III.
IV.
V.
VI.

Executive Committee;
Finance and Grants Committee;
Remuneration Committee;
ETQA Committee;
Chamber Committees; and
Regional Committees.

The committees function within the terms of reference approved by the Governing Board and are
functioning satisfactorily. The Governing Board has approved the formation of the Innovation, Research
and Development Committee. The terms of reference for this committee are still being considered by the
.V]LYUPUN)VHYKPU[OLUL^ÄUHUJPHS`LHY4VYLKL[HPSZVU[OLJVTTP[[LLZ»M\UJ[PVUZHYLWYLZLU[LK\UKLY
the Corporate Governance section of the annual report.
f.

Policies



;OL ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z HYL WYLWHYLK PU HJJVYKHUJL ^P[O [OL :V\[O (MYPJHU :[H[LTLU[Z VM .LULYHSS`
Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) including all interpretations of such statements issued by the
(JJV\U[PUN 7YHJ[PJLZ )VHYK ^P[O LɈLJ[P]L :[HUKHYKZ VM .LULYHSS` 9LJVNUPZLK (JJV\U[PUN 7YHJ[PJL
(GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP statements. The
merSETA’s policies and procedures are aligned with GAAP and GRAP.
Existing policies are reviewed at least every two years, or as necessary, to comply with changes in GAAP,
GRAP or within the organisation.

g. Supply Chain Management Unit
In response to audit reports detailing non-compliance within the supply chain management processes,
the merSETA has reviewed all processes and has amended the manual controls procedures to address
the weaknesses and will also implement a computerised supply chain management module with the
organisation-wide MIS system migration.
h. IT systems
The merSETA has continued to use the Datanet system for processing mandatory grants payments and
THUHNLTLU[VMSLHYULYYLNPZ[YH[PVUZHZZLZZTLU[ZHUKJLY[PÄJH[PVUZ
Great Plains was used throughout the year for the capturing, recording, maintenance and reporting of
ÄUHUJPHSPUMVYTH[PVU
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VIP was the system used for capturing, maintenance and processing of employee remuneration and
ILULÄ[Z


;OLUL^:L[H4HUHNLTLU[:`Z[LT:4:40:Z`Z[LTOVZ[LKI`HUPUKLWLUKLU[JVUZ\S[PUNÄYTPZILPUN
implemented in stages. Major processes like the employer grants and the online submission of WSPs are
VWLYH[PVUHS;OL[YHPUPUNVMZ[HɈHUKLTWSV`LYZOHZILLU\UKLY[HRLU

i.

*VUÅPJ[VMPU[LYLZ[
The merSETA’s Governing Board maintains a declaration of interest register. This is over and above the
requirements that members declare if they have an interest in any item on the agenda, to comply with the
Public Finance Management Act as well as good corporate governance practice.

APPROVAL
;OLH\KP[LKHUU\HSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZMVY[OL`LHYLUKLK4HYJOZL[V\[VUWHNLZ¶ OH]L
been approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of Section 51 (1)(F) of the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999) on 24 July 2012, and are signed on their behalf by:

P.Nzimande
*OHPYWLYZVU 
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R. Patel
*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
2012

2011

Actual

Budget

Variance *

Actual

R’000

R’000

R’000

Restated

918 904

785 807

133 097

Budget

Variance

R’000

R’000

R’000
Notes
REVENUE
Skills development levy
income

3

775 787

728 068

47 719

Skills development penalties
and interest

4

8 679

4 500

4 179

6 050

4 500

1 550

Government grant income

5

62 623

100 783

(38 160)

56 902

32 500

24 402

990 206

891 090

99 116

838 739

765 068

73 671

60 640

50 000

10 640

60 203

50 000

10 203

Total non-exchange revenue
Investment income

6

Other income

7

Total exchange revenue
Total revenue

46

-

46

43

-

43

60 686

50 000

10 686

60 246

50 000

10 246

1 050 892

941 090

109 802

898 985

815 068

83 917

(866 167) (1 230 450)

364 283

(720 803)

(1 077 414)

356 611

EXPENSES
Employer grant and project
expenses

8

Administration expenses

9

(98 419)

(98 226)

(193)

(96 664)

(91 001)

(5 663)

Government grant expense

5

(62 623)

(100 783)

38 160

(56 902)

(32 500)

(24 402)

(1 027 209) (1 429 459)

402 250

(874 369)

(1 200 915)

326 546

512 052

24 616

(385 847)

410 463

Total expenses
5L[Z\YWS\ZKLÄJP[MVY[OL
year

2

23 683

(488 369)

* Material variances between budget and actual are explained in the report of the Accounting Authority.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
31 March 2012

31 March 2011

R’000

R’000

Notes

Restated

ASSETS
Current assets
Prepayments and advances

10

1 379

29 867

Receivables from non-exchange transfers

11

28 535

818

Other receivables from exchange transactions

12

6 933

8 071

Inventories

13

110

82

(]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

14

935 000

1 010 000

Cash and cash equivalents

15

171 325

75 030

1 143 282

1 123 868

Non-current assets
Property and equipment

17

8 578

8 549

Intangible assets

18

694

387

9 272

8 936

1 152 554

1 132 804

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Grants and transfers payable

19

192 090

202 391

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

20

25 709

19 507

Provisions

21

290

124

Total Liabilities

218 089

222 022

Net Assets

934 465

910 782

9 272

12 144

Net assets represented by:
Administration reserve
Employer grant reserve

74

1 609

535

Discretionary grant reserve

923 584

898 103

Total Net Assets

934 465

910 782
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
Administration
Employer
Discretionary Unappropriated
reserve
grant reserve grant reserve
surplus
Notes
Balance at 1 April 2010
Net surplus for the year
WLYZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHS
performance
Allocation of unappropriated
surplus for the year

2

As previously stated

R’000

R’000

R’000

Balance at 31 March 2011
Net surplus for the year
WLYZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHS
performance
Allocation of unappropriated
surplus for the year
Excess reserves transferred to
discretionary reserve

Balance at 31 March 2012

2

R’000

11 869

1 015

873 282

-

886 166

-

-

-

24 616

24 616

275

116 121

(91 780)

(24 616)

-

275

116 121

(70 644)

(45 752)

-

(21 136)

21 136

-

Restatement due to prior year
error
Excess reserves transferred to
discretionary reserve

R’000

Total

-

(116 601)

116 601

-

-

12 144

535

898 103

-

910 782

-

-

-

23 683

23 683

18 866

127 188

(122 371)

(23 683)

-

(21 738)

(126 114)

147 852

-

-

9 272

1 609

923 584

-

934 465

The Employer Grant Reserve is a mandatory grant provision for newly registered companies participating after the
SLNPZSH[P]LJ\[VɈKH[L;OPZPZUV[LK\UKLYJVU[PUNLUJPLZPUUV[L
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
2012

2011

Actual

Budget

Variance

Actual

R’000

R’000

R’000

Restated

980 142

881 755

924 009
56 087
46

Budget

Variance

R’000

R’000

R’000
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating activities
Cash receipts from stakeholders and
others
Levies, interest and penalties received
Income from National Skills Fund
Other income
Cash paid to stakeholders, suppliers
and employees
Grants and project payments

98 387

838 975

763 926

790 197

133 812

778 330

726 951

51 379

91 558

(35 471)

60 602

36 975

23 627

-

46

43

-

43

(1 017 462) (1 462 786)

445 324 (782 525) (1 198 054)

415 529

(924 672) (1 370 379)

445 707 (691 576) (1 113 499)

421 923

75 049

Compensation of employees

(67 771)

(65 878)

(1 893)

(64 272)

(71 656)

7 384

Payments to suppliers and other

(25 019)

(26 529)

1 510

(26 677)

(12 899)

(13 778)

(37 320)

(581 031)

543 711

56 450

(434 128)

490 578

61 736

50 278

11 458

61 726

50 267

11 459

24 416

(530 753)

555 169

118 176

(383 861)

502 037

Cash (utilised in)/generated from
operations

23

Interest received
5L[JHZOPUÅV^V\[ÅV^MYVT
operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment

17

(2 382)

(3 028)

646

(1 528)

(3 909)

2 381

Purchase of intangible assets

18

(796)

(672)

(124)

(564)

(1 515)

951

57

-

57

97

-

97

Proceeds from disposal of property
and equipment
Net disposal/(purchase) of availableMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

75 000

577 446 (502 446) (130 000)

380 000 (510 000)

5L[JHZOPUÅV^V\[ÅV^MYVT
investing activities

71 879

573 746 (501 867) (131 995)

374 576 (506 571)

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

96 295

42 993

53 302

(13 819)

(9 285)

(4 534)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

75 030

75 030

-

88 849

88 849

-

171 325

118 023

53 302

75 030

79 564

(4 534)

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION
;OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZOH]LILLUWYLWHYLKPUHJJVYKHUJL^P[O[OLLɈLJ[P]L:[HUKHYKZVM.LULYHSS`9LJVNUPZLK
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting
Standards Board.
The actual and budget information has been prepared and presented on the same basis, being the accrual basis.

1.2

CURRENCY

1.2.1 Functional and presentation currency
;OLZLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZHYLWYLZLU[LKPU:V\[O(MYPJHU9HUKZZPUJL[OH[PZ[OLJ\YYLUJ`PU^OPJO[OLTHQVYP[`
of the entity’s transactions are denominated.
1.2.2 Foreign currency transactions
Levies and reimbursements received in a foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate ruling on the date
of recognition.
1.3

REVENUE RECOGNITION
9L]LU\LPZYLJVNUPZLK^OLUP[PZWYVIHISL[OH[M\[\YLLJVUVTPJILULÄ[Z^PSSÅV^[V[OLLU[LYWYPZLHUK[OLZL
ILULÄ[ZJHUILTLHZ\YLKYLSPHIS`

1.3.1 Levy income
In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No 9 of 1999), registered member
companies of the merSETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African
Revenue Service (SARS).
Eighty percent (80%) of skills development levies are paid over to the merSETA (net of a two percent (2%)
collection cost to SARS and eighteen percent (18%) contribution to the National Skills Fund).
:RPSSZ+L]LSVWTLU[3L]`:+3[YHUZMLYZHYLYLJVNUPZLK^OLUP[PZWYVIHISL[OH[M\[\YLLJVUVTPJILULÄ[Z^PSSÅV^
[V[OLTLY:,;(HUK[OLZLILULÄ[ZJHUILTLHZ\YLKYLSPHIS`;OPZVJJ\YZH[[OLLHYSPLYVM[OL[PTL[OL+LWHY[TLU[
of Higher Education and Training (DHET) makes the allocation or payment is made to the merSETA. SDL transfers
are made in terms of section 8 of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No 9 of 1999). The SDL transfer
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received.
The merSETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS. Where
SARS retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to
certain employers that are in excess of the amount the merSETA is permitted to have granted to employers. A
receivable relating to the overpayment to the employer in earlier periods is raised at the amount of such grant
overpayment, net of losses resulting from levy reversals by SARS and allowance for losses resulting from levy
reversals by SARS.

annual report 2011/12

77

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.3.1 Levy income (continued)
Revenue is adjusted for interSETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately
disclosed as interSETA transfers. The amount of the interSETA adjustment is calculated according to the Standard
Operating Procedure of the Department of Labour issued June 2001.
When a new employer is transferred to the merSETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as
revenue and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity.
1.3.2 Interest and penalties
Income from interest and penalties on skills development levies is recognised at the earlier of the time the
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) makes the allocation or payment is made to the merSETA.
1.3.3 Funds allocated by the National Skills Fund for Special Projects
-\UKZ[YHUZMLYYLKI`[OL5H[PVUHS:RPSSZ-\UK5:-HYLHJJV\U[LKMVYPU[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZVM[OLTLY:,;(
as a deferred income until the related eligible special project expenses are incurred, when the deferred income is
extinguished and revenue recognised.
1.3.4 Government grants and other donor income
Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received are recorded as deferred income
when they are received and are then recognised as income on a systematic basis over the period necessary to
match the grants with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Unconditional grants and other
unconditional donor income are recognised as income at the time the amounts are received.
1.3.5 Investment income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the
LɈLJ[P]LPU[LYLZ[YH[LV]LY[OLWLYPVK[VTH[\YP[`

1.4

GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE

1.4.1 Mandatory grants
The grant payable and the related expenditure is recognised when the employer has submitted an application for
HNYHU[PU[OLWYLZJYPILKMVYT^P[OPU[OLSLNPZSH[LKJ\[VɈWLYPVKHUKP[PZWYVIHISL[OLNYHU[Z^PSSILWHPK;OPZ
grant is equivalent to 50% (2011: 50%) of the total levies paid by the employer and comprises a workplace skills
planning grant.
(WYV]PZPVUPZYLJVNUPZLKMVYTHUKH[VY`NYHU[ZVUJL[OLZWLJPÄJJYP[LYPHZL[V\[PU[OLYLN\SH[PVUZ[V[OL:RPSSZ
Development Act, 97 of 1998 have been complied with by member companies, it is probable that the merSETA
will approve the payment, and the amounts can be estimated with reasonable accuracy.
1.4.2 Discretionary grants and project expenditure
The merSETA may, out of any surplus monies, determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education
and training providers and any other body stipulated by gazetted grant regulations annually. These grants will
only be paid if the conditions to qualify for such grants have been met and the application has been submitted,
PU[OLWYLZJYPILKMVYT^P[OPU[OLHNYLLK\WVUJ\[VɈWLYPVK;OLNYHU[WH`HISLHUK[OLYLSH[LKL_WLUKP[\YLPZ
recognised when the application has been approved and the conditions have been met.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.4.2 Discretionary grants and project expenditure (continued)
Project expenditure comprises:
JVZ[Z[OH[YLSH[LKPYLJ[S`[V[OLZWLJPÄJJVU[YHJ["
- costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and
Z\JOV[OLYJVZ[ZHZHYLZWLJPÄJHSS`JOHYNLHISL[V[OLTLY:,;(\UKLY[OL[LYTZVM[OLJVU[YHJ[
Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs
having similar characteristics.
Discretionary grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and
the liability is recognised accordingly. A receivable or payable is recognised net of a provision for irrecoverable
amounts for incentive and other payments made to the extent that expenses have not yet been incurred in terms
of the contract.
No provision is made for approved projects, unless the service in terms of the contract has been delivered or the
contract is of an onerous nature. Where a contract for a project, duly approved by the Board, has been entered
PU[VI\[OHZUV[ILLUHJJY\LKVYWYV]PKLKMVYP[PZKPZJSVZLKHZHJVTTP[TLU[PU[OLUV[LZ[V[OLÄUHUJPHS
statements.
1.4.3 Government grant expenditure
Conditional government grants costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. The
deferred government grant income is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the period necessary to
match the grants with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Where government grants costs
on the project exceed government grant income, a receivable will be raised to the extent that such costs exceed
government funding.

1.5

IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of
any applicable legislation, including:
- The Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999 (updated); and
- The Skills Development Act, No 97 of 1998 (updated).
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had
YLHZVUHISLJHYLILLUL_LYJPZLK(SSPYYLN\SHYMY\P[SLZZHUK^HZ[LM\SL_WLUKP[\YLPZYLJVNUPZLKHNHPUZ[[OLZWLJPÄJ
JSHZZVML_WLUZL[V^OPJOP[YLSH[LZHUKKPZJSVZLKPUHUV[L[V[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z^OLUP[OHZILLUPKLU[PÄLK

1.6

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment comprise tangible assets held for administrative use and are expected to be used during
more than one accounting period. Property and equipment are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and adjusted for any impairments. Depreciation has been calculated on the straight-line method to
^YP[LVɈ[OLJVZ[VMLHJOHZZL[H[HJX\PZP[PVU[VLZ[PTH[LKYLZPK\HS]HS\LV]LYP[ZLZ[PTH[LK\ZLM\SSPMLHZMVSSV^Z!
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.6

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Asset class

Depreciation period

- Computer equipment
6ɉJLM\YUP[\YLHUKÄ[[PUNZ
6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[
- Motor vehicles
- Other assets

3 - 6 years
5 - 10 years
5 - 10 years
4 - 8 years
2 - 5 years

;OL\ZLM\SSP]LZVMWYVWLY[`HUKLX\PWTLU[HUK[OLPYYLZPK\HS]HS\LZHYLYLHZZLZZLKH[[OLLUKVMLHJOÄUHUJPHS
year.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).
9LWHPYZHUKTHPU[LUHUJLJVZ[ZHYLJOHYNLK[V[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJL
7YVÄ[ZHUKSVZZLZVUKPZWVZHSVMWYVWLY[`HUKLX\PWTLU[HYLKL[LYTPULKI`YLMLYLUJL[V[OLPYJHYY`PUNHTV\U[
HUKHYL[HRLUPU[VHJJV\U[PUKL[LYTPUPUNVWLYH[PUNZ\YWS\ZVYKLÄJP[
1.7

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
0U[HUNPISLHZZL[Z[OH[TLL[[OLYLJVNUP[PVUJYP[LYPHHYLZ[H[LKPU[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUH[HTVY[PZLK
cost, being the initial cost price less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
(TVY[PZH[PVUPZJOHYNLK[V[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLZVHZ[V^YP[LVɈ[OLJVZ[VMPU[HUNPISLHZZL[Z
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method as follows:
Asset class

Amortisation period

- Computer software

1 - 3 years

;OL\ZLM\SSP]LZVMPU[HUNPISLHZZL[ZHYLYLHZZLZZLKH[[OLLUKVMLHJOÄUHUJPHS`LHY

1.8

INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of consumables held for administrative use. These are recognised as assets on the date of
HJX\PZP[PVUHUKHYLTLHZ\YLKH[[OLJVZ[VMHJX\PZP[PVU;OL`HYLZ\IZLX\LU[S`YLJVNUPZLKPUZ\YWS\ZVYKLÄJP[
as they are consumed.

1.9

LEASING
9LU[HSZWH`HISL\UKLYVWLYH[PUNSLHZLZHYLJOHYNLK[VZ\YWS\ZKLÄJP[VUHZ[YHPNO[SPULIHZPZV]LY[OL[LYTVM[OL
YLSL]HU[SLHZL)LULÄ[ZYLJLP]LKHUKYLJLP]HISLHZHUPUJLU[P]L[VLU[LYPU[VHUVWLYH[PUNSLHZLHYLHSZVZWYLHK
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.10 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
;OL TLY:,;( WHY[PJPWH[LZ PU [OL 4VTLU[\T -\UKZ H[ >VYR <TIYLSSH 7LUZPVU -\UK ;OPZ M\UK PZ H KLÄULK
contribution plan and the assets are held in separate trustee administered funds. The plan is generally funded
I`WH`TLU[ZMYVT[OLLU[P[`HUKLTWSV`LLZ[HRPUNPU[VHJJV\U[[OLYLJVTTLUKH[PVUZVMPUKLWLUKLU[X\HSPÄLK
actuaries.
7H`TLU[Z[V[OLKLÄULKJVU[YPI\[PVUILULÄ[WSHUZHYLJOHYNLK[V[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLPU[OL
year to which they relate.
;OLY\SLZVM[OLKLÄULKJVU[YPI\[PVUWSHUKL[LYTPUL[OLMVSSV^PUNPUYLZWLJ[VMJVU[YPI\[PVUZ!
Contribution by employee
Contribution by employer

7.50%
12.08%

Total contribution

19.58%

1.11 PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the merSETA has a present legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past
L]LU[HUKP[PZWYVIHISL[OH[[OPZ^PSSYLZ\S[PUHUV\[ÅV^VMLJVUVTPJILULÄ[Z[OH[JHUILYLSPHIS`LZ[PTH[LK;OL
provision is measured at the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting
KH[L >OLYL [OL LɈLJ[ VM [OL [PTL ]HS\L VM TVUL` PZ TH[LYPHS [OL WYLZLU[ ]HS\L VM [OL WYV]PZPVU ZOHSS IL [OL
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. The merSETA provides for onerous contracts
^OLU[OLL_WLJ[LKILULÄ[Z[VILKLYP]LKMYVT[OLJVU[YHJ[HYLSLZZ[OHU[OL\UH]VPKHISLJVZ[ZVMTLL[PUN[OL
obligation under the contract.
Provision for employee related entitlements
;OLJVZ[VMV[OLYLTWSV`LLILULÄ[ZUV[YLJVNUPZLKHZYL[PYLTLU[ILULÄ[ZZLLUV[LHIV]LHYLYLJVNUPZLK
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Employee entitlements are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by
LTWSV`LLZ\W[V[OLYLWVY[PUNKH[L7YV]PZPVUZPUJS\KLKPU[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUHYLWYV]PZPVUZMVY
Workmen’s Compensation.

1.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Recognition
-PUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHUKÄUHUJPHSSPHIPSP[PLZHYLYLJVNUPZLKVU[OLTLY:,;(»ZZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVU^OLU[OL
merSETA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
-PUHUJPHS PUZ[Y\TLU[Z JHYYPLK VU [OL Z[H[LTLU[ VM ÄUHUJPHS WVZP[PVU PUJS\KL V[OLY YLJLP]HISLZ MYVT L_JOHUNL
transactions, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables from exchange transactions. Where
relevant, the particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated
with each item.
Measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus any transaction costs directly attributable to the
HJX\PZP[PVUVYPZZ\LVMÄUHUJPHSHZZL[SPHIPSP[`:\IZLX\LU[[VPUP[PHSYLJVNUP[PVU[OLZLPUZ[Y\TLU[ZHYLTLHZ\YLK
as set out below.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
1.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets
;OLTLY:,;(»ZWYPUJPWHSÄUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHYLL_JOHUNLYLJLP]HISLZH]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHUKJHZO
HUKJHZOLX\P]HSLU[Z;OLJSHZZPÄJH[PVUKLWLUKZVU[OLW\YWVZLMVY^OPJO[OLHZZL[^HZHJX\PYLK
Other receivables from exchange transactions
6[OLYYLJLP]HISLZHYLTLHZ\YLKH[HTVY[PZLKJVZ[\ZPUN[OLLɈLJ[P]LPU[LYLZ[YH[LTL[OVK^OLYLJVUZPKLYLK
applicable. Impairment losses are recognised in an allowance account where the carrying value exceeds the
WYLZLU[]HS\LVMM\[\YLJHZOÅV^ZKPZJV\U[LKH[[OLVYPNPUHSLɈLJ[P]LPU[LYLZ[YH[L
(]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z
(]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHYLUVUKLYP]H[P]LHZZL[Z[OH[HYLUV[JSHZZPÄLKPUHU`V[OLYJH[LNVYPLZ>OLYL
[OLTLY:,;(UVSVUNLYOHZ[OLHIPSP[`VYPU[LU[PVU[VOVSK[VTH[\YP[`HZZL[ZWYL]PV\ZS`JSHZZPÄLKHZOLSK[V
TH[\YP[` ÄUHUJPHS HZZL[Z [OLZL HYL YLJSHZZPÄLK HZ H]HPSHISLMVYZHSL ÄUHUJPHS HZZL[Z HUK YLTLHZ\YLK H[ MHPY
]HS\L;OLKPɈLYLUJLIL[^LLU[OLJHYY`PUNHTV\U[VM[OLHZZL[ZHUKMHPY]HS\LPZYLJVNUPZLKKPYLJ[S`PUYLZLY]LZ
+LWVZP[Z WHPK HYL KPZJV\U[LK VU H [PTL IHZPZ I` YLMLYLUJL [V [OL WYPUJPWHS V\[Z[HUKPUN HUK H[ [OL LɈLJ[P]L
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
L_WLJ[LKSPMLVM[OLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[[V[OH[HZZL[»ZUL[JHYY`PUNHTV\U[;OLWYL]HPSPUNTHYRL[YH[LMVYHZPTPSHY
instrument with a similar credit risk rating is used as the discount rate.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.
+LWVZP[Z WHPK HYL KPZJV\U[LK VU H [PTL IHZPZ I` YLMLYLUJL [V [OL WYPUJPWHS V\[Z[HUKPUN HUK H[ [OL LɈLJ[P]L
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
L_WLJ[LKSPMLVM[OLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[[V[OH[HZZL[»ZUL[JHYY`PUNHTV\U[;OLWYL]HPSPUNTHYRL[YH[LMVYHZPTPSHY
instrument with a similar credit risk rating is used as the discount rate.
Financial liabilities
;OL TLY:,;(»Z WYPUJPWHS ÄUHUJPHS SPHIPSP[PLZ HYL [YHKL HUK V[OLY WH`HISLZ MYVT L_JOHUNL [YHUZHJ[PVUZ ;OLZL
SPHIPSP[PLZHYLZ\IZLX\LU[S`TLHZ\YLKH[HTVY[PZLKJVZ[\ZPUN[OLLɈLJ[P]LPU[LYLZ[YH[LTL[OVK
Derecognition
(ÄUHUJPHSHZZL[VYHWVY[PVU[OLYLVMPZKLYLJVNUPZLK^OLU[OLTLY:,;(YLHSPZLZ[OLJVU[YHJ[\HSYPNO[Z[V[OL
ILULÄ[Z ZWLJPÄLK PU [OL JVU[YHJ[ [OL YPNO[Z L_WPYL [OL TLY:,;( Z\YYLUKLYZ [OVZL YPNO[Z VY V[OLY^PZL SVZLZ
JVU[YVSVM[OLJVU[YHJ[\HSYPNO[Z[OH[JVTWYPZL[OLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[6UKLYLJVNUP[PVU[OLKPɈLYLUJLIL[^LLU[OL
JHYY`PUNHTV\U[VM[OLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[HUK[OLZ\TVM[OLWYVJLLKZYLJLP]HISLHUKHU`WYPVYHKQ\Z[TLU[[VYLÅLJ[
[OLMHPY]HS\LVM[OLHZZL[[OH[OHKILLUYLWVY[LKPUUL[HZZL[ZPZPUJS\KLKPUUL[Z\YWS\ZVYKLÄJP[MVY[OLWLYPVK
Fair value considerations
;OL MHPY ]HS\LZ H[ ^OPJO ÄUHUJPHS PUZ[Y\TLU[Z HYL JHYYPLK H[ [OL YLWVY[PUN KH[L OH]L ILLU KL[LYTPULK \ZPUN
available market values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting
L_WLJ[LK M\[\YL JHZO ÅV^Z H[ WYL]HPSPUN PU[LYLZ[ YH[LZ  ;OL MHPY ]HS\LZ OH]L ILLU LZ[PTH[LK \ZPUN H]HPSHISL
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, but are not necessarily indicative of the amounts
that the merSETA could realise in the normal course of business.
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1.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6ɈZL[[PUN
-PUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHUKÄUHUJPHSSPHIPSP[PLZHYLVɈZL[PM[OLYLPZHU`PU[LU[PVU[VYLHSPZL[OLHZZL[HUKZL[[SL[OLSPHIPSP[`
ZPT\S[HULV\ZS`HUKHSLNHSS`LUMVYJLHISLYPNO[[VZL[VɈL_PZ[Z

1.13 NET ASSETS
5L[HZZL[ZHYLZ\IJSHZZPÄLKPU[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUIL[^LLU[OLMVSSV^PUNM\UKZHUKYLZLY]LZ!
- Administration reserve
- Employer grant reserve
- Discretionary grant reserve
(JJ\T\SH[LKZ\YWS\ZKLÄJP[
;OPZ Z\IJSHZZPÄJH[PVU PZ THKL IHZLK VU [OL YLZ[YPJ[PVUZ WSHJLK VU [OL KPZ[YPI\[PVU VM TVUPLZ YLJLP]LK PU
accordance with the regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No 97 of 1998).
Member company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act and the regulations issued
in terms of the Act, for the purpose of:
2012

2011

%

%

Administration costs of the merSETA

10

10

Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning Grant

50

50

Discretionary grants and projects

20

20

80

80

In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of
government may be used to pay for the merSETA administration costs.
Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilised for discretionary
grants and projects. Other income received is utilised in accordance with the original source of the income.
The minimum amount retained in the administration reserve equates to the net book value of non current assets.
The merSETA has obtained Board approval to accumulate available administration reserves for the purpose
VMW\YJOHZPUNHOLHKVɉJLI\PSKPUN6UJLZ\ɉJPLU[M\UKZHYLHJJ\T\SH[LKTHUHNLTLU[^V\SKZ[PSSOH]L[V
undertake the correct procurement processes to identify the building and the Board would have to approve this.
Furthermore, the purchase of the building is subject to National Treasury approval.
During the current year the merSETA obtained Board approval to transfer a portion of the administrative reserve
to the discretionary grants reserve.
Surplus funds in the employer grant reserve are transferred to the discretionary grant reserve at the end of the
ÄUHUJPHS`LHY(UHTV\U[PZYL[HPULKPU[OLLTWSV`LYNYHU[YLZLY]LHM[LYJVUZPKLYH[PVUPZNP]LU[VUL^JVTWHUPLZ
which in terms of the regulations have six months after joining to submit their workplace skills plan.
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1.14 CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies comprise an Employer Grant Reserve for newly registered member companies participating after
[OLSLNPZSH[P]LJ\[VɈKH[L

1.15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions are disclosed as related party transactions where the merSETA has in the normal course of its
operations, entered into transactions with entities related to the Department of Higher Education and Training
(DHET) or which had a nominated representative serving on the merSETA accounting authority.
interSETA transactions arising from employers moving from one SETA to another, are treated as related party
transactions.
;YHUZHJ[PVUZ^P[O)VHYKHUKPUKLWLUKLU[TLTILYZHZ^LSSHZ[YHUZHJ[PVUZ^P[OHU`VYNHUPZH[PVUHɉSPH[LK^P[O
Board and independent members are treated as related party transactions.

1.16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
>OLYLULJLZZHY`JVTWHYH[P]LÄN\YLZOH]LILLUHKQ\Z[LK[VJVUMVYT[VJOHUNLZPUWYLZLU[H[PVUPU[OLJ\YYLU[
`LHY;OLUV[LZHɈLJ[LKI`WYPVY`LHYHKQ\Z[TLU[ZPU[OLJ\YYLU[`LHYHYLUV[LHUKUV[L 

1.17 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the merSETA’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
HYLJVUZPKLYLK[VILYLSL]HU[(J[\HSYLZ\S[ZTH`KPɈLYMYVT[OLZLLZ[PTH[LZ
These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
LZ[PTH[LZHYLYLJVNUPZLKPU[OLWLYPVKPU^OPJO[OLLZ[PTH[LPZYL]PZLKPM[OLYL]PZPVUHɈLJ[ZVUS`[OH[WLYPVKVY
PU[OLWLYPVKVM[OLYL]PZPVUHUKM\[\YLWLYPVKZPM[OLYL]PZPVUHɈLJ[ZIV[OJ\YYLU[HUKM\[\YLWLYPVKZ
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
H[`LHYLUK[OH[OH]LHZPNUPÄJHU[YPZRVMJH\ZPUNHTH[LYPHSHKQ\Z[TLU[[V[OLJHYY`PUNHTV\U[ZVMHZZL[ZHUK
SPHIPSP[PLZ^P[OPU[OLUL_[ÄUHUJPHS`LHY
Useful lives of property and equipment
All classes of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life. The
merSETA reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment at the end of each annual reporting
period. Refer to note 17 for the carrying values of property and equipment. The merSETA’s license was extended
until 31 March 2016.
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1.17 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:
- Computer equipment
6ɉJLM\YUP[\YLHUKÄ[[PUNZ
6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[
- Motor vehicles
- Other assets

3 - 6 years
5 - 10 years
5 - 10 years
4 - 8 years
2 - 5 years

The merSETA has reviewed the residual values used for the purposes of depreciation calculations in light of the
HTLUKLKKLÄUP[PVUVMYLZPK\HS]HS\L9LZPK\HS]HS\LZVMJLY[HPU0;LX\PWTLU[HUKTV[VY]LOPJSLZ^LYLHKQ\Z[LK
Residual values are reviewed on an annual basis.
Provision for below threshold levies received,
Companies with annual payrolls below R500 000 are exempted from paying skills development levies. Each year,
the merSETA estimates the value and makes provision for levies paid when the company should not have paid
the levies as its annual payroll falls below the threshold.

1.8

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
([[OLILNPUUPUNVM[OLJ\YYLU[ÄUHUJPHSWLYPVKTHUHNLTLU[YL]PZLK[OLPYLZ[PTH[LVU[OLMVSSV^PUNHZZL[ZPU
VYKLY[VYLÅLJ[[OLHJ[\HSWH[[LYUVMZLY]PJLWV[LU[PHSKLYP]LKMYVT[OLHZZL[Z!

- Computer software
- Motor vehicles
- Other assets

Previous estimate

Current estimate

1 - 2 years
4 - 6 years
2 years

1 - 3 years
4 - 8 years
2 - 5 years

;OLLɈLJ[VM[OLYL]PZPVUOHZKLJYLHZLK[OLJ\YYLU[`LHY»ZKLWYLJPH[PVUJOHYNLI`9 

1.9

ERRORS
;OL TLY:,;( OHZ JVYYLJ[LK P[Z ÄUHUJPHS Z[H[LTLU[Z [V JVTWS` ^P[O [OL YLX\PYLTLU[Z VM .9(7   ;OPZ PZ [V
recognise a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that this will
YLZ\S[PUHUV\[ÅV^VMLJVUVTPJILULÄ[Z[OH[JHUILYLSPHIS`LZ[PTH[LK(WYPVYWLYPVKLYYVYOHZYLZ\S[LKK\L[V
non-compliance with the Standard.
A retrospective adjustment of the error from 2011 has been made by raising a discretionary grant provision for all
training that was completed before the year-end. An adjustment of R21 136 000 was made against the opening
balance of the discretionary grant reserve and against grants and transfers payable.
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2.

ALLOCATION OF NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR TO RESERVES

Total per
Statement
of Financial
Performance

Administration
reserve

Employer
grants reserve

Discretionary
grants

Government
grants

Total
discretionary

Discretionary reserve

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

1 050 892

117 285

572 646

298 338

Admin levy income (10%)

117 285

117 285

-

-

-

-

Grant levy income (70%)

801 619

-

572 646

228 973

-

228 973

Year ended 31 March 2012
Total revenue

62 623

360 961

Skills development levy: income

Skills development levy: penalties
and interest

8 679

-

-

8 679

-

8 679

Government grant income

62 623

-

-

-

62 623

62 623

Investment income

60 640

-

-

60 640

-

60 640

46

-

-

46

-

46

1 027 209

98 419

445 458

420 709

62 623

483 332

866 167

-

445 458

420 709

-

420 709

Administration expenses

98 419

98 419

-

-

-

-

Government grant expense

62 623

-

-

-

62 623

62 623

Net surplus per the statement of
ÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLHSSVJH[LK

23 683

18 866

127 188

(122 371)

-

(122 371)

898 985

96 939

484 880

260 264

56 902

317 166

Other income
Total expenses
Employer grants and project
expenses

Year ended 31 March 2011
Total revenue
Skills development levy: income
Admin levy income (10%)

96 939

96 939

-

-

-

-

Grant levy income (70%)

678 848

-

484 880

193 968

-

193 968

6 050

-

-

6 050

-

6 050

Skills development levy: penalties
and interest
Government grant income

56 902

-

-

-

56 902

56 902

Investment income

60 203

-

-

60 203

-

60 203

43

-

-

43

-

43

Total expenses

874 369

96 664

368 759

352 044

56 902

408 946

Employer grants and project
expenses

720 803

-

368 759

352 044

-

352 044

Other income

86

-

Administration expenses

96 664

96 664

-

-

-

-

Government grant expense

56 902

-

-

-

56 902

56 902

Net surplus per the statement of
ÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLHSSVJH[LK

24 616

275

116 121

(91 780)

-

(91 780)
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3.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY INCOME
Notes

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

;OL[V[HSSL]`PUJVTLWLY[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHS
performance is as follows:
Levy income: Administration

117 285

96 939

Levies received from SARS

116 744

96 160

interSETA transfers in

136

77

interSeta transfers out

(173)

-

578

702

Levy income: Employer Grants

572 646

484 880

Levies received from SARS

569 944

480 984

680

387

Provision for refund SARS

interSETA transfers in
interSETA transfers out

(866)

-

Provision for refund SARS

2 888

3 509

228 973

193 968

227 893

192 409

Levy income: Discretionary Grants
Levies received from SARS
interSETA transfers in

4.

272

155

interSETA transfers out

(347)

-

Provision for refund SARS

1 155

1 404

918 904

775 787

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY PENALTIES AND INTEREST
Penalties

3 407

4 471

Interest

5 265

1 577

7

2

8 679

6 050

interseta transfers

5.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
National Skills Fund grant
Opening balance
Funds received during the year
Investment income
Utilised and recognised as revenue conditions met
Closing balance

TLS
programme

AATP
programme

Total 2012

Total 2011

5 105

4 120

9 225

5 525

41 927

13 248

55 175

60 009

899

13

912

593

(16 925)

(45 698)

(62 623)

(56 902)

31 006

(28 317)

2 689

9 225

Note 18

Note 11

;OLZL M\UKZ ^LYL YLJLP]LK MYVT [OL 5H[PVUHS :RPSSZ -\UK MVY [OL W\YWVZLZ VM M\UKPUN [OL ;YHPUPUN 3H`VɈ HUK
Accelerated Artisan Training Programme. R28 317 000 was owing by the NSF for the AATP programme at
annual report 2011/12
31 March 2012, of which R27 907 000 was paid in April 2012.
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6.

INVESTMENT INCOME
Notes

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Interest income from short-term deposits, bank and call
accounts

60 772

Fair value adjustments

7.

Discretionary grants

25.1.2

Discretionary grants paid through a memorandum of
agreement (MoA)
Other discretionary grants
Project expenditure

8.1,
25.1.1

46

43

46

43

445 458

368 759

130 680

136 870

105 178

101 619

25 502

35 251

290 029

215 174

866 167

720 803

264 703

191 440

Project expenditure consists of:
Direct project costs
Indirect project administration costs

88

(113)
60 203

EMPLOYER GRANT AND PROJECT EXPENSES
Mandatory grants

8.1

(132)
60 640

OTHER INCOME
Trade test fees received

8.

60 316
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25 326

23 734

8

290 029
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9.

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Notes
Advertising, marketing and promotions, communication
Amortisation - intangible assets

18

Prior to re-assessment of useful lives/residual values
Amortisation due to re-assessment of useful lives/residual
values
Audit Costs - Internal audit
Audit Costs - External audit
Bank Charges
Board and sub-committee costs
Remuneration to members of the audit committee
Capacity building of Board and sub-committee members

2012

2011

R’000

R’000
3 256

4 910

522

1 000

646

1 000

(124)

-

845

937

2 084

2 011

190

229

1 740

1 009

256

308

1 225

320

Board and sub-committee assessment cost

104

132

Secretarial services

155

249

Cleaning and groceries

324

296

Depreciation

2 213

3 010

Prior to re-assessment of useful lives/residual values

2 334

3 009

Depreciation due to re-assessment of useful lives/residual
values

(121)

1

71 968

69 020

17

Employment costs
Recruitment costs
:HSHYPLZ^HNLZHUKILULÄ[Z

9.1

:[HɈ[YHPUPUNKL]LSVWTLU[HUK^LSMHYL
Entertainment expenses
Fair value adjustments to plant and equipment

358

66

70 676

67 400

934

1 554

18

7

( 216)

-

162

166

Insurance and licence fees

1 295

1 454

Investigations and forensic costs

1 211

587

Legal fees

550

334

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

264

95

Gifts, donations and sponsorships paid

Operating lease rentals

17

11 214

10 621

Buildings

9 775

9 645

Parking

1 439

976
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9.

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Notes

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Printing, stationery and postages

2 277

2 365

Rates, water and electricity

2 454

2 024

449

3

2 177

1 181

1 374

524

803

657

Service provider administration fees

4 273

2 136

Special functions

1 137

786

192

97

Removal costs
Repairs, maintenance and running costs
Buildings
Property and equipment

Storage
Telecommunication expenses

4 761

5 160

Travel, subsistence and meeting expenses

8 385

10 960

Less: amounts allocated to project expenditure

123 745

120 398

(25 326)

(23 734)

98 419

96 664

62 087

59 740

9.1
Salaries and wages

52 381

49 437

Performance awards

Basic salaries

5 314

4 968

Other non-pensionable allowance

3 753

3 985

;LTWVYHY`Z[HɈ

100

679

Leave payments

539

671

8 589

7 660

Medical aid contributions

2 200

2 186

7LUZPVUJVU[YPI\[PVUZ!KLÄULKJVU[YPI\[PVUM\UK

5 370

4 521

UIF

290

292

Insurance COIDA

150

235

Other salary related costs

579

426

70 676

67 400

228

228

Social contributions

Average number of employees

Refer to the report by the Accounting Authority for disclosure concerning the emoluments of the Chief Executive
6ɉJLY" [OL *OPLM -PUHUJPHS 6ɉJLY HUK :LUPVY 4HUHNLYZ ;OL KLÄULK JVU[YPI\[PVU M\UK PZ HKTPUPZ[LYLK I`
Momentum Funds at Work. It is a sub fund under the Funds at Work umbrella fund. The expense recognised in
[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLLX\H[LZ[V[OLJVU[YPI\[PVUZK\LMVY[OL`LHY
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10. PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES
Notes
:[HɈ3VHUZ,K\JH[PVU
Prepayments - Insurance
Prepayments - Bursaries
Discretionary grant prepayments

10.1

Closing balance
10.1

Discretionary grants prepayment arising from nonexchange transactions

31 March 2012

31 March 2011

R’000

R’000
168

111

76

58

107

-

1 028

29 698

1 379

29 867

-

Discretionary grants detailed below have been
HJJV\U[LKMVYHZWYLWH`TLU[ZK\L[V[OLZWLJPÄJ[LYTZ
detailed in the Memorandum of Agreements entered into
with qualifying employers.
Opening balance
Disbursements
,_WLUZLJOHYNLK[V[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHS
performance
Net recoveries, accruals and other adjustments
Provision for impairment Net discretionary grant prepayments

10

29 698

30 108

200 110

101 914

(208 045)

(96 858)

(9 264)

5 721

12 499

40 885

(11 471)

(11 187)

1 028

29 698

11. RECEIVABLES FROM NONEXCHANGE TRANSFERS
Employer receivable

11.1

-

-

Receivable - investigations

11.2

-

-

Government grants - National Skills Fund
interSETA receivable

11.1

5
27.1

28 317

-

218

818

28 535

818

Employer receivable
Overpayment to employers
Allowance for doubtful debts
5L[LɈLJ[VM:(9:YL[YVZWLJ[P]LHKQ\Z[TLU[ZVU
HɈLJ[LKLTWSV`LYZ

4 938

4 755

(4 938)

(4 755)

-

-

;OL LTWSV`LY YLJLP]HISL VM 9   4HYJO ! 9   PZ YLJVNUPZLK K\L [V :(9: LɈLJ[PUN
retrospective adjustments on levies on which mandatory grants have already been paid.
An amount of R4 938 000 (March 2011: R4 755 000 was provided against such employer receivables.
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11. RECEIVABLES FROM NONEXCHANGE TRANSFERS
(CONTINUED)
Notes
11.2

31 March 2012

31 March 2011

R’000

R’000

Receivable - investigations
Receivable arising from investigations
Allowance for doubtful debt
Net receivable from investigations

6 329

6 329

(6 329)

(6 329)

-

-

1 234

1 177

56

155

1 290

1 332

(199)

(80)

1 091

1 252

5 842

6 819

6 933

8 071

110

82

935 000

1 010 000

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Deposits
Sundry receivables
Less: fair value adjustment
Interest receivable

13. INVENTORIES
Consumables stock

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short-term investments/instruments held to maturity

The merSETA obtained National Treasury approval of the banking institutions where these funds are held as
required in Treasury Regulation 31.2. The weighted average interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 5.6%
(2011: 6.2%).
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15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Notes
Cash at bank and on hand

31 March 2012

31 March 2011

R’000

R’000

2 044

986

2 007

953

37

33

Short term investments/instruments cash

169 281

74 044

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

171 325

75 030

Cash at bank
Cash on hand

The merSETA obtained National Treasury approval of the banking institutions where these funds are held as
required in Treasury Regulation 31.2. The weighted average interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 5.0%
(2011: 5.5%).

16. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES FOR PROPERTY,
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLES
The entity has reassessed the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment which has resulted
in changes of useful lives for certain assets. Refer to note 1.18 for further details of changes in useful lives. The
LɈLJ[VM[OLJOHUNLPU\ZLM\SSP]LZOHZYLZ\S[LKPUHKLJYLHZLPU[OLKLWYLJPH[PVUL_WLUZLVM9 MVY[OL
J\YYLU[WLYPVK;OLLɈLJ[VMM\[\YLWLYPVKZPZHUPUJYLHZLPUKLWYLJPH[PVUL_WLUZLVM9WLY`LHY
The following information regarding the depreciable assets is available:
Motor Vehicles
R000’s

Computer
Software
R000’s

Other Assets

Total

R000’s

R000’s

Carrying amount at the
beginning of the 2012
ÄUHUJPHS`LHY

924

387

14

1 325

Depreciation/ Amortisation
per year

242

3 032

218

3 492

Changing the remaining useful lives will change the current period 2012, as well as future periods in the
following way:
Motor Vehicles
R000’s

Computer
Software
R000’s

Other Assets

Total

R000’s

R000’s

Depreciation/ Amortisation
per year with new estimate

178

646

10

834

Carrying amount at the
LUKVM[OLÄUHUJPHS
period

857

695

296

1 848

43

844

73

960

Depreciation for future
periods
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17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Closing carrying
amount

R’000

R’000

R’000

Year ended 31 March 2012
Computer equipment

7 219

(4 974)

2 245

6ɉJLM\YUP[\YLHUKÄ[[PUNZ

7 307

(3 369)

3 938

6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[

3 811

(2 570)

1 241

Motor vehicles

2 215

(1 358)

857

301

(4)

297

20 853

(12 275)

8 578

Other assets
Balance at end of year
Year ended 31 March 2011
Computer equipment

7 945

(5 431)

2 514

6ɉJLM\YUP[\YLHUKÄ[[PUNZ

6 349

(2 928)

3 421

6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[

3 950

(2 274)

1 676

Motor vehicles

2 215

(1 291)

924

28

(14)

14

20 487

(11 938)

8 549

Other assets

Opening
carrying
amount

Fair value
adjustment

Additions

Impairment

Disposals
cost

Depreciation
charge

Accumulated
depreciation
on disposals

Closing
carrying
amount

Balance at end of year

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Movement summary 2012
Computer equipment

2 514

118

746

(148)

-

(985)

-

2 245

6ɉJLM\YUP[\YL Ä[[PUNZ

3 421

50

1 098

(63)

-

(568)

-

3 938

6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[

1 676

13

237

(88)

-

(597)

-

1 241

924

-

-

-

-

(67)

-

857

14

-

301

(22)

-

4

-

297

8 549

181

2 382

(321)

-

(2 213)

-

8 578

Computer equipment

3 376

9

457

-

6ɉJLM\YUP[\YL Ä[[PUNZ

3 236

10

776

-

6ɉJLLX\PWTLU[

2 063

6

295

Motor vehicles

1 313

-

-

231

-

10 219

25

Motor vehicles
Other assets
Balance at end of year
Movement summary 2011

Other assets
Balance at end of year

(99) (1 298)

94

2 514

-

3 421

-

(601)

-

(24)

(672)

8

1 676

-

(314)

(242)

167

924

-

-

(486)

(218)

487

14

1 528

-

(923) (3 031)

731

8 549

No assets have been pledged as security or collateral for any liability.
annual report 2011/12

69

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Closing carrying
amount

R’000

R’000

R’000

Year ended 31 March 2012
Intangible assets

3 240

(2 546)

694

3 419

(3 032)

387

Year ended 31 March 2011

Opening
carrying
amount

Fair value
adjustment

Additions

Disposals
cost

Amortisation
charge

Accumulated
amortisation
on disposals

Closing
carrying
amount

Intangible assets

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

387

33

796

(1 009)

(522)

1 009

694

823

-

564

-

(1 000)

-

387

Movement summary 2012
Intangible assets
Movement summary 2011
Intangible assets

19. GRANTS AND TRANSFERS PAYABLE
Notes
Grants payable
InterSETA payables
Government grant income received in advance
Provision for SARS refund

19.1

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

142 330

170 238

812

-

27.1
5

31 006

9 225

19.1

17 942

22 928

192 090

202 391

Provision for SARS refund
Companies with annual payrolls below R500 000 are exempted from paying skills development levies. A provision
has been made for possible refunds to companies falling below the SDL threshold but still contributing levies.
;OLLɈLJ[P]LKH[LVM[OLL_LTW[PVU^HZ(\N\Z[
Notes

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Opening carrying amount

22 928

26 473

Amount utilised

(1 189)

(8 130)

Additional provision during the period

(3 797)

4 585

17 942

22 928

Closing carrying amount

19
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Notes
Trade payables
Less: fair value adjustment
Accruals salaries and wages

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

14 218

10 768

(74)

(87)

14 144

10 681

11 565

8 826

25 709

19 507

21. PROVISIONS
Workmen’s Compensation provision
Opening carrying amount

124

80

-

(80)

Additional provision during the period

166

124

Closing carrying amount

290

124

Amounts utilised

The Workmen’s Compensation provision is calculated in
accordance with the Workmen’s Compensation Act No 130
of 1993.

22. CORRECTION OF ERROR
The entity has made a prior period correction due to noncompliance with GRAP 19 regarding raising a provision for
discretionary grant training that was completed before the
year-end.
;OLLɈLJ[VU[OLJ\YYLU[HUKWYPVYWLYPVKPZZOV^UILSV^!

96

(Decrease)/increase in discretionary grant expense

(21 136)

21 136

Increase/ (decrease) in grants and transfers payable

21 136

(21 136)
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23. RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) TO CASH UTILISED
IN OPERATIONS
Note
5L[Z\YWS\ZKLÄJP[HZWLY[OL
Z[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJL

2012

2012

2011

2011

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

23 683

(488 369)

24 616

(385 847)

Adjusted for non-cash items:
Depreciation property and
equipment

17

2 213

2 623

3 031

1 793

Amortisation of intangible assets

18

522

659

1 000

1 938

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment

9

264

-

95

-

Transfers out/fair value adjustments
to property and equipment

17

(214)

-

(25)

-

166

(40)

44

-

(61 736)

(50 278)

(61 726)

(50 267)

28 488

(752)

557

424

(27 717)

818

82

900

1 138

1 530

718

789

(28)

(18)

(10)

(28)

Increase/(decrease) in grants and
transfers payable

(10 301)

(50 000)

93 556

1 165

Increase/ (decrease) in trade and
other payables from exchange
transactions

6 202

2 796

(5 488)

(4 995)

(37 320)

(581 031)

56 450

(434 128)

Movements in provisions
Adjusted for items separately
disclosed
Investment income
Adjusted for working capital
changes:
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
and advances
(Increase)/decrease in receivables
from non-exchange transfers
Decrease in other receivables from
exchange transactions
Increase in inventories

Cash (used in)/generated by
operations

24. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities comprise an Employer Grant Reserve of R1 609 000 (2011: R535 000) for newly registered
TLTILYJVTWHUPLZWHY[PJPWH[PUNHM[LY[OLSLNPZSH[P]LJ\[VɈKH[L
These newly registered member companies are required to submit their Workplace Skills Plan within six (6)
months and will be eligible for the mandatory grant once this has been approved by the merSETA.
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N/A

4.2.2

Annual Conference

Artisan Innovation
Project

Apprenticeship
Research

4.2.2

4.2.1/
4.2.2

4.2.1

Accounting
Technicians Project

MoA Project DG4

4.2.2

Accelerated
Artisan Training
Programme

4.2.1/
4.2.2

4.2.1

ABET Project
Phase 4

MoA Project DG3

4.2.1

ABET Project
Phase 3

NSDS 3
indicator

Project commitments

-

-

-

-

-

-

32 798

-

28 214

-

-

(19 048)

-

1 867

(1 100)

2 653

-

1 110

2012

-

-

201 723

-

-

6 738

733

-

( 537)

-

-

(1 928)

-

(1 867)

(977)

(19 836)

-

(23 003)

-

-

180 747

-

-

4 661

16 348

-

5 784

R’000

2011
R’000

2011

2011
R’000

2011

R’000

R’000

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

461

-

18 882

-

1 603

-

2 273

180

189

2012

-

248 677

53 807

1 251

-

-

79 158

6 372

2 594

(461)

(17 449)

(67 669)

(1 016)

(1 603)

(1 963)

(28 952)

(1 948)

(4 180)

R’000

2012
R’000

2012
R’000

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

-

231 228

185 767

235

-

2 698

68 827

4 604

4 387

R’000

Closing
balance

Of the balance of R923 584 000 available in the discretionary reserve on 31 March 2012 an amount of R923 399 000 has been approved for future project
expenses and discretionary grants as set out below. Amounts for expenses that have already been incurred, and therefore included in project and discretionary
NYHU[L_WLUZLPU[OLZ[H[LTLU[VMÄUHUJPHSWLYMVYTHUJLHYLHSZVPUKPJH[LK

Discretionary reserve

Project/
discretionary
grant name

25.1.1

25.1

COMMITMENTS

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

4.8

N/A

4.2.1

4.2.1/
4.2.2

N/A

4.2.2

4.2.1

Competency Model

Courseware
& Curriculum
Development

Eastern Cape 6ɉJLVM7YLTPLY

Electronic
Induction Model

General Motors SA

GMET SGB

4.3.2.2

Career Path &
Development

1 239

4.2.1

Bursaries

Capacity Building
FET Colleges

N/A

4.2.1

4.3.2.2

4.2.1

Internships

ISOEs

Jaguar Land Rover
Enrichment Project

N/A

International
Conferences

N/A

HIV AIDS Project

annual report 2011/12

Interchamber
Capacity Building

-

812

-

-

-

7 116

-

-

-

-

846

-

-

-

1 129

-

258

634

1 844

257

610

-

-

223

-

2 062

90

594

342

(4 827)

4

-

5 458

-

-

-

3 247

355

-

-

-

7 699

115

-

412

48 116

(308)

-

(1 971)

(634)

(1 844)

(257)

(9 265)

(89)

-

(223)

-

(7 257)

(180)

(594)

(342)

(23 626)

(825)

-

-

4 557

-

-

-

1 708

266

-

-

-

3 350

25

-

412

20 902

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

2012

2011

2011

2011

2011
R’000

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

4.3

Assessor and
Moderator Training

NSDS 3
indicator

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Project/
discretionary
grant name

25.

-

-

(72)

-

745

278

(307)

-

-

(223)

-

591

(15)

97

(267)

4 804

-

4 500

7 108

1 552

-

-

-

30

7 532

-

22 368

86

-

7 045

-

16 018

R’000

-

(450)

(5 188)

(1 552)

(745)

(278)

(1 401)

(296)

(3 390)

223

(2 260)

(3 966)

(10)

(2 196)

(145)

(24 427)

R’000

2012

2012

2012
R’000

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

-

4 050

6 405

-

-

-

-

-

4 142

-

20 108

61

-

4 946

-

17 297

R’000

Closing
balance

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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100

4.2.1

4.6.3

Non Levy Paying
NGOs and CBOs

All

Monitoring &
Evaluation

New Venture
Creation

N/A

Member
Satisfaction Survey

4.2.1

4.2.1

Marketing Project

Maths and Science
Student Project

NEET Access
Programme

-

N/A

MAP SGB

-

12 624

-

-

-

-

-

365

N/A

4.2.1

Leadership
Development
Programme

-

9

548

-

-

(34)

652

52

439

546

951

12 285

7 477

-

-

136

4 720

630

178

-

-

(2 834)

(11 054)

-

-

(102)

(4 792)

(682)

(929)

(546)

(951)

-

-

9 460

9 595

-

-

-

580

-

53

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

2012

2011

2011

2011

2011
R’000

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

4.8

annual report 2011/12

Labour &
Stakeholder
Capacity Building

NSDS 3
indicator

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Project/
discretionary
grant name

25.

50

525

-

292

151

508

390

(20)

111

460

-

-

-

-

-

2 627

3 172

971

-

2 451

R’000

(7 237)

(9 794)

(3 172)

(583)

(151)

(2 753)

(390)

(33)

(111)

(460)

R’000

2012

2012

2012
R’000

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

-

-

-

-

2 273

2 953

-

680

-

786

R’000

Closing
balance

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28 157

825

N/A

4.2.1

4.2.1

4.3.2.2

4.2.1

4.2.1

4.2.1

4.6.2

N/A

N/A

Organisational
Development

People with
Disabilities

QCTO Foundry
Project

QCTO CEP Pilot
Project

Retrenchment
Assistance
Programme

RPL Pilot Project

Skills Programme
- Unemployed
Youth

SME Voucher
Project

SSP Review

Stakeholder
Information
Dissemination

-

-

410

-

-

-

2 150

-

-

4.2.1

Occupational
Trainer
8\HSPÄJH[PVU

-

4.2.1

1 970

1 660

3 420

-

(249)

32 294

-

-

(299)

208

-

-

-

618

12 846

-

2 498

47 262

-

-

400

-

-

2 896

(1 970)

(2 593)

(32 885)

-

(1 871)

(25 468)

-

-

(1 276)

(208)

-

(684)

-

510

11 538

-

788

54 088

-

-

975

-

-

2 212

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

2012

2011

2011

2011

2011

R’000

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

Northern Cape
Household
Project

NSDS 3
indicator

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Project/
discretionary
grant name

25.

1 678

2 186

(6 962)

-

(3)

(213)

787

40

17

502

(30)

-

-

-

2 478

4 829

2 990

433

16 743

801

-

4 000

-

481

R’000

(1 678)

(3 357)

(5 783)

(1 086)

(485)

(48 934)

(1 204)

(40)

(2 943)

(502)

(59)

(2 120)

R’000

2012

2012

2012

R’000

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

-

1 817

3 622

1 904

733

21 684

384

-

2 049

-

392

92

R’000

Closing
balance

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25.

102

NSDS 3
indicator

4.2.2

4.2.1

4.2.1/
4.2.2

N/A

N/A

N/A

Tool Box Project

Vehicle
Maintenance
SGB

Western Cape
Household
Programme

World Skills

Discretionary
Grant
Administration
Expenditure

Project
Administration
Expenditure

annual report 2011/12

Project/
discretionary
grant name

7 326
55 887

-

16 410

2 465

-

(54)

-

123 959

-

-

-

257

7 017

365 697

-

-

-

-

-

-

(215 174)

(7 326)

(16 410)

(2 465)

-

(203)

(5 207)

330 369

-

-

-

-

-

1 810

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

2012

2011

2011

2011

2011

R’000

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

53 590

7 499

17 809

340

-

-

(1 746)

-

-

500 554

-

-

-

480

R’000

-

(64)

(290 029)

(7 499)

(17 809)

( 340)

(120)

R’000

2012

2012

2012

R’000

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

-

-

594 484

-

-

-

360

R’000

Closing
balance
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

-

-

-

-

29 204

39 940

4.2.1

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.2

N/A

4.2.1

4.2.1

4.8

4.2.1

Skills programmes

Experiential training

ABET

ATRAMI

Assessors &
Moderators

Internships

Retrenchment
assistance

Sector Specialists

Other discretionary
grant expenditure

annual report 2011/12

Total projects and discretionary
grants

93 373

6 859

51 693

(4 194)

670 733

794 692

7 634

(39 940)

(29 204)

16 369

5 234

6 726

12 183

(47 683)

(22 168)

67 875

-

87 612

89 940

234 291

4.2.1

4.2.1

11 921

257 956

(107 741)

-

-

-

(2 676)

(856)

(1 100)

(1 992)

(6 529)

(11 081)

(49 409)

(16 390)

(17 708)

R’000

(352 044)

(136 870)

(7 634)

-

-

(3 218)

(1 029)

(1 322)

(2 395)

(7 848)

(13 321)

(59 179)

(19 669)

(21 255)

R’000

752 297

421 928

-

-

-

10 475

3 349

4 304

7 796

25 552

43 370

193 578

64 173

69 331

R’000

76

-

92

28

38

68

222

375

939

446

495

57 393

3 803

1 024

R’000

534 418

33 864

-

-

-

843

270

347

627

2 056

3 491

15 507

5 153

5 570

R’000

(420 709)

(130 680)

(1 024)

(76)

-

(3 227)

(1 031)

(1 326)

(2 401)

(7 869)

(13 357)

(59 336)

(19 721)

(21 312)

R’000

R’000

R’000

96 373

2012

2012

2012

2012

2011

2011

2011

2011

Apprenticeships

4.2.1

Employed learners

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

Charged to
statement
VMÄUHUJPHS
performance

Approved by
Accounting
Authority
and
contracted

Adjustments/
non
contractual
payments

Opening
balance

Unemployed
learners

NSDS 3
indicator

Discretionary Grants

25.1.2

Project/
discretionary
grant name

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

25.

923 399

328 915

-

-

-

8 183

2 616

3 363

6 090

19 961

33 879

150 688

50 051

54 084

R’000

Closing
balance
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25. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
25.2

Operating Leases
This represents the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases:
;OLVWLYH[PUNSLHZLZYLSH[L[VWYLTPZLZ\[PSPZLKMVYVɉJLHJJVTTVKH[PVU;OLSLHZLHNYLLTLU[Z^LYLLU[LYLK
into on various dates and will be operational for varying periods, the last expiring on 31 March 2016. For purposes
of calculating the lease commitments, options to renew the leases on expiry have been ignored. The rental
escalations vary from lease to lease, the average being 8%.

Not later than one year
3H[LY[OHUVUL`LHYHUKUV[SH[LY[OHUÄ]L`LHYZ

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

8 966

8 335

31 517

40 441

40 483

48 776

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In the course of the merSETA operations, it is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The merSETA
has developed a comprehensive risk strategy in order to monitor and control these risks. The risk management
process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below:
MARKET RISK
Market risk comprises interest rate risk and currency risks. The merSETA does not have exposure to currency
YPZRZ ;OL TLY:,;( PZ L_WVZLK [V Å\J[\H[PVUZ PU [OL LTWSV`TLU[ THYRL[ -VY L_HTWSL Z\KKLU PUJYLHZLZ PU
\ULTWSV`TLU[HUKJOHUNLZPU[OL^HNLYH[LZ5VZPNUPÄJHU[L]LU[ZVJJ\YYLKK\YPUN[OL`LHY[OH[[OLTLY:,;(
is aware of.
Interest rate risk
;OLTLY:,;(THUHNLZP[ZPU[LYLZ[YH[LYPZRI`Ä_PUNYH[LZVUZ\YWS\ZJHZOM\UKZ\ZPUNZOVY[[VTLKP\T[LYT
Ä_LKKLWVZP[Z
;OLTLY:,;(THUHNLZSPTP[ZP[Z[YLHZ\Y`JV\U[LYWHY[`L_WVZ\YLI`VUS`KLHSPUN^P[O^LSSLZ[HISPZOLKÄUHUJPHS
institutions approved by National Treasury through the approval of their investment policy in terms of Treasury
Regulations.
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

;OLTLY:,;(»ZL_WVZ\YL[VPU[LYLZ[YH[LYPZRHUK[OLLɈLJ[P]LPU[LYLZ[YH[LZVUÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[ZH[YLWVY[PUNKH[L
are as follows:
Floating rate
Amount

Fixed Rate

,ɈLJ[P]L
interest
rate

Amount

Weighted
average
LɈLJ[P]L
interest
rate %

R’000

R’000

Non-interest bearing
Weighted
average
period
for which
the rate
PZÄ_LKPU
years

Amount

Weighted
average
period
until
maturity
in years

R’000

TOTAL

R’000

Year ended 31 March 2012
Cash and cash
equivalents

2 044

5.0%

169 281

5.0%

6 months

-

-

171 325

Available-for-sale
ÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

-

-

935 000

5.6%

3 months

-

-

935 000

Other receivables
from exchange
transactions

-

-

-

-

-

6 933

3 months

6 933

;V[HSÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

2 044

1 104 281

6 933

1 113 258

Liabilities
Trade payables

-

-

-

-

-

14 144

30 days

14 144

Other payables from
exchange
transactions

-

-

-

-

-

11 565

30 days

11 565

;V[HSÄUHUJPHS
liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

25 709

-

25 709

5L[ÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

2 044

1 104 281

(18 776)

1 087 549
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Floating rate
Amount

Fixed Rate

,ɈLJ[P]L
interest
rate

Amount

Weighted
average
LɈLJ[P]L
interest
rate %

R’000

R’000

Non-interest bearing
Weighted
average
period
for which
the rate
PZÄ_LKPU
years

Amount

Weighted
average
period
until
maturity
in years

R’000

TOTAL

R’000

Year ended 31 March 2011
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

986

5.5%

74 044

5.5%

6 months

-

-

6.2%

3 months

-

- 1 010 000

-

-

8 071

Available-for-sale
ÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

-

- 1 010 000

Other receivables
from exchange
transactions

-

-

;V[HSÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

986

1 084 044

3 months

8 071

75 030

8 071
1 093 101

Liabilities
Trade payables

-

-

-

-

-

10 681

30 days

10 681

Other payables from
exchange
transactions

-

-

-

-

-

8 826

30 days

8 826

;V[HSÄUHUJPHS
liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

19 507

19 507

(11 436)

1 073 594

5L[ÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z

986

1 084 044

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
At 31 March 2012, if the interest rate was 100 basis points higher with all other variables held constant, then the surplus
would have been R12.4 million higher arising from the increase in investment income. If the interest rate was 100 basis
points lower with all other variables held constant, then a surplus would have been R 12.4 million lower arising from the
decreased investment income than what that which budgeted.
([4HYJOPM[OLZRPSSZKL]LSVWTLU[SL]`PUJVTLNYL^VUS`I` MYVT[OLWYL]PV\ZÄUHUJPHS`LHYPUZ[LHKVM
[OL NYV^[OHUKHSSV[OLY]HYPHISLZOLSKJVUZ[HU[[OLUHKLÄJP[VM9 TPSSPVU^V\SKOH]LILLUPUJ\YYLK0M[OL
skills development levy income grew by 20% and all other variables held constant, then a surplus of R35.7 million would
have been earned.
CREDIT RISK
Financial assets, which potentially subject the merSETA to the risk of non-performance by counter-parties and thereby
Z\IQLJ[[VJYLKP[JVUJLU[YH[PVUZVMJYLKP[YPZRJVUZPZ[THPUS`VMJHZOHUKJHZOLX\P]HSLU[ZH]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHS
assets and receivables from non-exchange transfers.
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The ageing of receivables from non exchange transfers:
2012
Gross

2011
Impairment

Gross

Impairment

Current

(40)

40

703

(703)

30 Days

1 234

(1 234)

27

(27)

60 Days

(304)

304

-

-

90 Days

361

(361)

133

(133)

34

(34)

867

(867)

201

(201)

76

(76)

1 Year plus

3 452

(3 452)

2 949

(2 949)

Total

4 938

(4 938)

4 755

(4 755)

91 Days to 6 Months
6 Months - 1 year

Credit risk with respect to levy payments by employers is limited due to the nature of the income received. The merSETA
is exposed to credit risk in regard to payments made in advance on discretionary grants whereby not all the conditions
have been met. The merSETA has entered into agreements with qualifying employers in regard to these grants whereby
some payments are recoverable until training has been implemented. The merSETA does not have any material exposure
to any individual or counter-party. The merSETA’s concentration of credit risk is limited to the manufacturing, engineering
and related services industry in which the merSETA operates. No events occurred in the manufacturing, engineering and
YLSH[LKZLY]PJLZPUK\Z[Y`K\YPUN[OLÄUHUJPHS`LHY[OH[TH`OH]LHUPTWHJ[VU[OLHJJV\U[ZYLJLP]HISL[OH[OHZUV[ILLU
adequately provided for. Accounts receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubtful debts.

The entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:
2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Employer receivable

-

-

Debtors - investigations

-

-

56

155

168

111

Prepayments - insurance

76

58

Prepayments - bursaries

107

-

1 028

29 698

Other receivables
:[HɈSVHUZLK\JH[PVU

Discretionary grant prepayments
Government grants - National Skills Fund
interSETA receivables

28 317

-

218

818

29 970

30 840

;OLTLY:,;(THUHNLZ[OLYPZRVMZ[HɈSVHUZI`Z`Z[LTH[PJKLK\J[PVUZVMHTV\U[ZV^PUNMYVT[OLTVU[OS`
salaries paid or from leave payouts due upon termination of services.
LIQUIDITY RISK
The merSETA manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure
HUKHJ[\HS]ZMVYLJHZ[JHZOÅV^ZHUKP[ZJHZOTHUHNLTLU[WVSPJ`(KLX\H[LYLZLY]LZHUKSPX\PKYLZV\YJLZ
are also maintained.
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26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2012

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
2011

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Carrying
Amount
14 144
Carrying
Amount
10 681

Contractual
Cash Flows
14 144
Contractual
Cash Flows
10 681

6 months
or less
14 144
6 months
or less
10 681

Fair values
;OLTLY:,;(»ZÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[ZJVUZPZ[THPUS`VMJHZOHUKJHZOLX\P]HSLU[ZH]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z
YLJLP]HISLZ HUK WH`HISLZ MYVT L_JOHUNL [YHUZHJ[PVUZ 5V ÄUHUJPHS PUZ[Y\TLU[ ^HZ JHYYPLK H[ HU HTV\U[ PU L_JLZZ
VM P[Z MHPY ]HS\L HUK MHPY ]HS\LZ JV\SK IL YLSPHIS` TLHZ\YLK MVY HSS ÄUHUJPHS PUZ[Y\TLU[Z ;OL MVSSV^PUN TL[OVKZ HUK
HZZ\TW[PVUZHYL\ZLK[VKL[LYTPUL[OLMHPY]HS\LVMLHJOJSHZZVMÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[Z!
*HZOHUKJHZOLX\P]HSLU[ZHUKH]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z
;OLJHYY`PUNHTV\U[VMJHZOHUKJHZOLX\P]HSLU[ZHUKH]HPSHISLMVYZHSLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[ZHWWYV_PTH[LZMHPY]HS\LK\L[V
[OLYLSH[P]LS`ZOVY[[VTLKP\T[LYTTH[\YP[`VM[OLZLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z
Other receivables from exchange transactions
The carrying amount of other receivables from exchange transactions approximates fair value due to the relatively short[LYTTH[\YP[`VM[OLZLÄUHUJPHSHZZL[Z
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
27.1

Transactions with other SETAs

Interest transactions and balances arise due to the movement of employers from one SETA to another. No other
transactions occurred during the year with other SETAs. The balances at year-end included in receivables and
payables are:

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Net transfers in/
(out) during the
year
Notes

Receivables

Transfers in/
(out) during the
year

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

441

218

(619)

818

200

-

(100)

-

AGRISETA

9

2

-

-

EWSETA
(Previously ESETA)

-

21

-

21

73

73

-

-

FP&M SETA

5

25

-

20

CHIETA

-

93

-

92

154

-

-

-

MICT SETA
(Previously ISETT)

-

4

-

5

SERVICES

-

-

(393)

-

TETA

-

-

(20)

-

W&R SETA

-

-

(106)

680

(732)

(812)

-

-

(4)

(4)

-

-

W&R SETA

(728)

(808)

-

-

Total

(291)

(594)

(619)

818

11

CETA

FASSET

HW SETA

Payables
FP&M SETA
(Previously CTFL,
FIETA and MAPPP)

18
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27.2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Company

Board and
independent
committee
members

RMI

A Dunn,
J Esterhuizen,
J Olivier, L Whitely

SEIFSA

G Harris, J Lopes,
W Nsele

PLASFED

A Hanekom,
D Rule, Z Xaba

PCASA

A Hanekom,
J Pieterse

NUMSA

K Cloete, E Kubeka,
G Lephallo,
A Mashilo,
M Mogopodi,
V Mthethwa,
E Nodongwe,
X Tshayana,
T Tshikwavhavha,
T Tsiboli, P Verryne,

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Net transfers
in/(out) during
the year

(167)

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

(96)

( 86)
(125)

(87)

-

-

Net transfers
in/(out) during
the year

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

(36)

-

(49)

-

(239)

-

( 5)

-

(278)

(114)

(63)

-

MISA

D De Villiers

(58)

(58)

(3)

-

SOLIDARITY

A Gerristen,
D Reyneke,
J Swarts, P Veldman

(20)

(20)

(45)

-

(10)

-

(7)

-

CEPPWAWU

M Netshandama

UASA

P Bezuidenhout,
T Kruger, L Greyling,
J Van Niekerk

-

(98)

-

(55)

MEWUSA

R Kgagudi

-

-

(5)

BMW SA

C Christian

-

-

(3 697)

NERSA

P Nzimande

-

-

-

-

Labore
Management
Solutions

E Olivier

-

-

-

University of
Johannesburg

F Tregenna

-

-

(12)
(705)

(571)

(670)

These transactions and balances are due to board fees, independent members’ fees, and grants and consulting
fees paid to companies related to the members.
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27.2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Company

Board and
independent
committee
members

Independent

C Khuzwayo

Bridgestone
Firestone

R Daniels
(Independent),
P Welgemoed

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Net transfers
in/(out) during
the year

Net transfers
in/(out) during
the year

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

(6)

-

-

-

(3 572)

(189)

(3 045)

(450)

Cape Gate

J Swarts

-

-

(1 735)

(160)

Continental Tyre SA

N Abrahams,
J Harris

-

-

(551)

(350)

Apollo Tyres

V Mthethwa,
J Wilson

(1 389)

(1 802)

(2 927)

(260)

-

-

(40)

(10)

(799)

-

( 549)

-

Dynamic Automotive P Verryne
Systems
East Cape Training
Centre

X Tshayana

Goodyear SA

C McIntosh

-

-

(1 554)

(195)

Precision Valve

M Netshandama

-

-

(70)

(36)

Sandown Motors

A Dunn

Toyota SA

T Molapo

Wispeco

T Tshikwavhavha

Technicolour

J Esterhuisen

Volkswagen of SA

X Tshayana

-

-

(2 257)

(260)

(17 690)

(38)

(3 529)

290

(667)

(530)

(771)

(56)

(221)

(4)

(121)

(12)

(25 602)

(516)

(12 917)

(830)

Bell Equipment

G Harris

-

-

(2 098)

(66)

Macsteel

W Nsele

-

-

(6 725)

(470)

Independent

A Mashifane

(91)

(17)

-

-

Independent

J Davis

(22)

-

-

-

Independent

C Murray

(22)

-

-

-

Independent

W Sibuyi

(11)

-

-

-

Independent

T Mashanda

(77)

(11)

-

-

Independent

F Mukaddam

(33)
(51 751)

(11)

-

-

(4 119)

(43 048)

(3 535)

These transactions and balances are due to Board fees, independent members’ fees, and grants and consulting
fees paid to companies related to the members.
All transactions with member representative companies are at arm’s length. This disclosure includes members
whose term ended at 31 March 2011 and those whose term commenced on 1 April 2011.
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27.3

NATIONAL PUBLIC ENTITIES

Organisation name

Auditor-General

Nature of transaction

Auditing work

Business Enterprises - University Learnerships
of Pretoria
Cape Peninsula University of
Technology

Bursary payments

College of Cape Town

ISOEs & NVC project

Department of Labour (Transfers) Trade test fees
Eastern Cape Training Centre

Retrenchment
Assistance Programme

Eastern Cape Socio-Economic
Consulting Council

Research

Human Sciences Research
Council

Audit FET report

Nelson Mandela Metropolitan
University

Bursary payments

NMMU - South ( Nelson
Mandela)

Bursary payments

2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Amount
Net
Amount
Net
transfers receivable/ transfers receivable/
(payable)
in/(out)
(payable)
in/(out)
during the
during the
year
year
(1 846)

(181)

(1 931)

-

(481)

-

(644)

(200)

-

-

(9)

-

(461)

-

(952)

-

-

-

(1)

-

(799)

-

(549)

-

(54)

-

-

-

(375)

-

-

-

(2 289)

(409)

(671)

(491)

-

-

(186)

-

Northlink College

ISOE Project

(278)

-

(184)

-

Rhodes University

Bursary payments

(161)

-

(300)

-

SA Quality Institute (SAQI)

Subscriptions

(200)

-

-

-

:V\[O(MYPJHU8\HSPÄJH[PVUZ
Authority

Sponsorships
(1 334)

-

-

-

(1 206)

(103)

(2 453)

(2)

(66)

-

-

-

(555)

(500)

(36)

-

(13)

-

(371)

(25)

(5)

-

-

-

Telkom

Telephone & Datalines

University of Jhb - Doornfontein

Bursary payments

University of Jhb - Auckland
Park Campus

Bursary payments

University of Jhb - Conference
centre

Bursary payments

University of KZN

Bursary payments

University of Stellenbosch

Bursary payments

(90)

-

(86)

-

University of the Witwatersrand

Bursary payments

(255)

(103)

-

-

-

-

(3)

-

(81)

-

(470)

-

(25)

-

-

-

University of Zululand

Bursary payments

UNISA - University of South
Africa

Bursary payments

Vaal University of Technology

Bursary payments

WITS Business School

Bursary payments

(41)

-

(81)

-

WITS PLUS Language School

Bursary payments

(54)

-

(24)

-

(10 669)

(1 296)

(8 951)

(718)

All transactions with national public entities are conducted at arm’s length.
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28. GOING CONCERN
The merSETA was set up in terms of the Skills Development Act No 97 of 1998. The Minister extended the
merSETA’s licence for a period of 5 years up to 31 March 2016. Accordingly, the merSETA has drawn up and
WYLZLU[LK[OLZLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZVUHNVPUNJVUJLYUIHZPZ

29. MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR,
FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
CRIMINAL CONDUCT
+\YPUN[OLJ\YYLU[`LHY[OLTLY:,;(Z\ɈLYLKHSVZZVM9K\L[VJYPTPUHSJVUK\J[(UL_LTWSV`LL\ZLK
travel vouchers for accommodation for personal use. The fraud was soon discovered through the merSETA’s
internal controls. An attempt is being made to recover the funds via the pension payouts to the ex employee
0U[OLWYPVY`LHY[OLTLY:,;(Z\ɈLYLKHSVZZVM9 ZLLUV[LK\L[VJYPTPUHSJVUK\J[;OLSVZZ
involved diversion of mandatory grants due to employers. The amount has been fully provided for under mandatory
NYHU[L_WLUZLZHUK[OLHɈLJ[LKLTWSV`LYZYLPTI\YZLK;OLJHZLPZZ[PSS\UKLYPU]LZ[PNH[PVUHUKHWVSPJLJHZLOHZ
been opened. The merSETA will pursue recovery of the loss through legal processes. The process of updating
bank details has been reviewed and strengthened.
IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
2012

2011

R’000

R’000

Opening Balance

1 715

-

Add: Irregular Expenditure - Current year

4 638

1 715

6 353

1 715

6 353

1 715

Current year

4 638

1 715

Prior year

1 715

-

Total

6 353

1 715

Irregular Expenditure awaiting condonation
Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age
JSHZZPÄJH[PVU
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Details of Irregular Expenditure - Current year

Incident

Nature of
transaction

Disciplinary
steps taken/
criminal
proceedings

Remedial
actions taken

Services awarded to provider
without obtaining three quotes.

Consulting
Services

The responsible
employee has
left the services
of the merSETA
after disciplinary
actions were
instituted.

Appointment of
service providers
is authorised by
the CFO, and
no appointment
letters are
authorised
without the
supporting
evidence that
three quotations
were obtained.

Contract irregularly awarded. There Media Buying
^LYLUVZWLJPÄJL]HS\H[PVUJYP[LYPH and Advertising
included in the terms of reference.
services

The responsible
employee has
left the services
of the merSETA
after disciplinary
actions were
instituted.

All terms of
reference are
ZPNULKVɈI`[OL
)PK:WLJPÄJH[PVU
Committee
before being sent
out to ensure that
the evaluation
criteria have been
included.

1 678

Services awarded to provider
without obtaining three quotes.

Hotel
Accommodation

Services were
procured with
consideration for
cost reduction,
thus booking of
travel services
was kept inhouse instead
of using a
travel agent.
Management to
investigate other
JVZ[LɈLJ[P]L
transparent
LɈLJ[P]L
alternatives.

Management to
investigate other
JVZ[LɈLJ[P]L
transparent
HUKLɈLJ[P]L
alternatives.

1 554

Services awarded to provider
without obtaining three quotes.

Car Rentals

Services were
procured with
consideration for
cost reduction,
thus booking of
travel services
was kept inhouse instead
of using a
travel agent.
Management to
investigate other
JVZ[LɈLJ[P]L
transparent
HUKLɈLJ[P]L
alternatives.

Management to
investigate other
JVZ[LɈLJ[P]L
transparent
HUKLɈLJ[P]L
alternatives.

370
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Incident

Nature of
transaction

Disciplinary
steps taken/
criminal
proceedings

Remedial
actions taken

Contract awarded to supplier
without a valid tax clearance
JLY[PÄJH[L

Shuttle Services

Investigation is to A document
be conducted.
checklist has
been developed
and checked to
all tender/quotes
submissions.
All submissions
with missing
documents are
KPZX\HSPÄLK
from any further
consideration.
Vendor database
clean-up was
conducted on all
old awards.

Contract awarded to supplier
without a valid tax clearance
JLY[PÄJH[LHUKHZPNULKKLJSHYH[PVU
of interest form (SBD 4).

Shuttle Services

Investigation is to A document
checklist has
be conducted.
been developed
and checked to
all tender/quotes
submissions.
All submissions
with missing
documents are
KPZX\HSPÄLK
from any further
consideration.
Vendor database
clean-up was
conducted on all
old awards.

Contract awarded to supplier
without a valid tax clearance
JLY[PÄJH[LHUKHZPNULKKLJSHYH[PVU
of interest form (SBD 4).

Marketing
Materials

Disciplinary
action was
taken against
responsible
employee, who
has since left the
merSETA.

Amount
R000’s

A document
checklist has
been developed
and checked to
all tender/quotes
submissions.
All submissions
with missing
documents are
KPZX\HSPÄLK
from any further
considerations.
Vendor database
clean-up was
conducted on all
old awards.
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Incident

Nature of
transaction

Disciplinary
steps taken/
criminal
proceedings

Remedial
actions taken

Contract awarded to supplier
without a valid tax clearance
JLY[PÄJH[LHUKHZPNULKKLJSHYH[PVU
of interest form (SBD 4).

Printing

Disciplinary
action was
taken against
responsible
employee, who
has since left the
merSETA.

A document
checklist has
been developed
and checked to
all tender/quotes
submissions.
All submissions
with missing
documents are
KPZX\HSPÄLK
from any further
consideration.
Vendor database
clean-up was
conducted on all
old awards.

99

Contract awarded to supplier
without a valid tax clearance
JLY[PÄJH[LHUKHZPNULKKLJSHYH[PVU
of interest form (SBD 4).

QMS Consulting

Disciplinary
action was
taken against
responsible
employee, who
has since left the
merSETA.

A document
checklist has
been developed
and checked to
all tender/quotes
submissions.
All submissions
with missing
documents are
KPZX\HSPÄLK
from any further
consideration.
Vendor database
clean-up was
conducted on all
old awards.

37

The terms of
reference used
to invite bidders
are now reviewed
HUKZPNULKVɈI`
the requesting
unit manager
to ensure that
all the technical
ZWLJPÄJH[PVUZHYL
addressed and
are not vague.

246

The process followed for evaluation Printing of annual None, corrective
was not fair and equitable, due to
report
actions will be
the evaluators lack of understanding
put in place.
that the cost of paper is the key
determinant on the overall price.
The bidders were evaluated on
X\V[H[PVUZ[OH[OHKKPɈLYLU[WHWLY
ZWLJPÄJH[PVUZ

TOTAL

116
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Amount
R000’s

4 638

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
29. MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT, IRREGULAR,
FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)
FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
+\YPUN[OL`LHYLUKÄ_LKHZZL[JV\U[HU\TILYVMHZZL[ZPU[OLÄ_LKHZZL[YLNPZ[LYJV\SKUV[ILWO`ZPJHSS`
]LYPÄLK;OLZLHZZL[Z^LYLHJX\PYLKIL[^LLUHUK HUKOHKHUL[IVVR]HS\LVM9 HZH[
4HYJO(KKP[PVUHS]LYPÄJH[PVUWYVJLZZLZ^LYL\UKLY[HRLU[VLUZ\YL[OLJVTWSL[LULZZHUKHJJ\YHJ`VM
[OLHZZL[JV\U[YLZ\S[ZHUK[OLÄUHSV\[JVTL^HZ[OLZJYHWWPUNVMÄ_LKHZZL[Z[V[OL]HS\LVM9 K\L[V
UVUL_PZ[LUJL[OLYLVM4HUHNLTLU[OHZYL]PL^LK[OLÄ_LKHZZL[THUHNLTLU[WYVJLK\YLZPUVYKLY[VHKKYLZZ
the weaknesses in the process and any future misappropriation of assets.
+\YPUN[OLWYPVY`LHY[OLTLY:,;(SVZ[LX\PWTLU[]HS\LKH[9K\L[V[OLM[MYVTOLHKVɉJL;OLTH[[LYZ
was reported to SAPS. Due to a condition for an alarm activation not being met, the amount was not recoverable
from insurance.
During the prior year, a penalty of R26 120 was paid to the Workmen’s Compensation Fund due to a shortfall
on payment of the levies. The merSETA did not receive the return on time. The Fund could not provide the
assessments when follow up visits were conducted.
During the prior year, inaccurate leave payments of R31 579 were paid due to errors on the payroll package.

30. TAXATION
No provision has been made for taxation as the merSETA is exempt from tax in terms of section 10 of the Income
Tax Act.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
The merSETA has submitted a request to National Treasury for the retention of surplus funds.

32. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
([[OLKH[LVMH\[OVYPZH[PVUVM[OLZLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z[OLYLHYL:[HUKHYKZHUK0U[LYWYL[H[PVUZPUPZZ\LI\[UV[
`L[LɈLJ[P]L;OLZLPUJS\KL[OLMVSSV^PUN:[HUKHYKZHUK0U[LYWYL[H[PVUZ[OH[HYLHWWSPJHISL[V[OLTLY:,;(HUK
TH`OH]LHUPTWHJ[VUM\[\YLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z!
Statement

,ɈLJ[P]L+H[L

Segment Reporting

GRAP 18

No date

Related Parties Disclosures

GRAP 20

No date

Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets

GRAP 21

1 April 2012

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)

GRAP 23

1 April 2012

Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements

GRAP 24

1 April 2012

,TWSV`LL)LULÄ[Z

GRAP 25

No date

Impairment of Cash-generating Assets

GRAP 26

1 April 2012

Heritage Assets

GRAP 103

1 April 2012

Financial Instruments

GRAP 104

1 April 2012
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
32. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Transfer of Function between Entities Under Common Control

GRAP 105

No date

Transfer of Function between Entities Not Under Common Control

GRAP 106

No date

Mergers

GRAP 107

No date

An entity shall apply Standards of GRAP for Annual Financial Statements covering periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined by the Minister of Finance in a regulation to be published in accordance with section
91(1)(b) of the PFMA.
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting
The Standard provides guidance on accounting for determination of reporting segments and will require additional
disclosure.
GRAP 20: Related Parties Disclosures
;OPZ :[HUKHYK WYV]PKLZ N\PKHUJL VU YLSH[LK WHY[` KPZJSVZ\YLZ [V LUZ\YL [OH[ H YLWVY[PUN LU[P[`»Z ÄUHUJPHS
Z[H[LTLU[ZJVU[HPU[OLKPZJSVZ\YLZULJLZZHY`[VKYH^H[[LU[PVU[V[OLWVZZPIPSP[`[OH[P[ZÄUHUJPHSWVZP[PVUHUK
Z\YWS\ZVYKLÄJP[TH`OH]LILLUHɈLJ[LKI`[OLL_PZ[LUJLVMYLSH[LKWHY[PLZHUKI`[YHUZHJ[PVUZHUKV\[Z[HUKPUN
balances with such parties.
GRAP 21: Impairment of Non-cash Generating Assets
The standard provides guidance on accounting for impairment losses of non-cash-generating assets. It is similar
[V0-9:HUKPZUV[L_WLJ[LK[VZPNUPÄJHU[S`PTWHJ[KPZJSVZ\YLZVU[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)
The Standard provides guidance on accounting and disclosure for non-exchange revenue and also provides
:V\[O(MYPJHUW\ISPJZLJ[VYZWLJPÄJL_HTWSLZ;OLHWWSPJH[PVUVM[OPZZ[HUKHYK^PSSYLZ\S[PUHJOHUNLPUHJJV\U[PUN
policy for the accounting of National Skills Fund Grant and Receivables from Non-exchange transfers.
GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
;OL :[HUKHYK WYLZJYPILZ [OL WYLZLU[H[PVU VM H JVTWHYPZVU VM I\KNL[ HUK HJ[\HS HTV\U[Z PU [OL ÄUHUJPHS
statements of entities that are publicly accountable for the use of their funds. The presentation may be in the
MVYTVMHKKP[PVUHSÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[ZVYHKKP[PVUHSI\KNL[JVS\TUZPU[OLPYÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z;OL:[HUKHYK
ILJVTPUNLɈLJ[P]LPZUV[L_WLJ[LK[VZPNUPÄJHU[S`PTWHJ[M\[\YLKPZJSVZ\YLZZPUJL^LOH]LHWWSPLK[OLWYPUJPWSLZ
outlined in GRAP 24 to inform our current disclosure.
.9(7!,TWSV`LL)LULÄ[Z
;OPZ :[HUKHYK WYLZJYPILZ [OL HJJV\U[PUN [YLH[TLU[ MVY LTWSV`LL ILULÄ[Z ;OL JOHUNLZ WYLZJYPILK MYVT [OL
J\YYLU[HWWSPJHISL:[HUKHYKYLSH[LTHPUS`[V[OLHJJV\U[PUNYLX\PYLTLU[ZVMKLÄULKILULÄ[WSHUZHUKHZZ\JO
HYLUV[L_WLJ[LK[VZPNUPÄJHU[S`PTWHJ[[OLJ\YYLU[HJJV\U[PUNWVSPJPLZVYKPZJSVZ\YLZ
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
32. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GRAP 26: Impairment of Cash Generating Assets
This Standard prescribes the accounting treatment for the impairment of cash generating assets and does not
ZPNUPÄJHU[S`KPɈLYMYVT0(:0[PZUV[L_WLJ[LK[OH[[OPZ:[HUKHYK^PSSZPNUPÄJHU[S`PTWHJ[M\[\YLKPZJSVZ\YLZ
GRAP 103: Heritage Assets
The Standard prescribes the accounting treatment of heritage assets. This Standard will currently not impact
KPZJSVZ\YLZVU[OLÄUHUJPHSZ[H[LTLU[Z
GRAP 104: Financial Instruments
.9(7WYLZJYPILZYLJVNUP[PVUTLHZ\YLTLU[WYLZLU[H[PVUHUKKPZJSVZ\YLYLX\PYLTLU[ZMVYÄUHUJPHS
PUZ[Y\TLU[ZHUKTHRLZZPNUPÄJHU[TVKPÄJH[PVUZ[V[OLWYPUJPWSLZPU[OLWYL]PV\Z:[HUKHYKZHWWSPLKPUVYKLY[V!
ÇZPTWSPM`[OLYLJVNUP[PVUTLHZ\YLTLU[HUKKPZJSVZ\YLVMÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[Z"HUK
ÇHJJVTTVKH[L[OL[`WLZVMÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[ZLU[LYLKPU[VPU[OLW\ISPJZLJ[VY
;OLKLÄUP[PVUZVM[OL]HYPV\ZJH[LNVYPLZVMÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[ZPU0(: OH]LILLUZ[YLHTSPULKHUKYLWSHJLK
which will require us to change our accounting policy accordingly.
The following disclosures required under IAS are encouraged but not required:
Ç;OLKPZJSVZ\YLVMMHPY]HS\LZMVYÄUHUJPHSPUZ[Y\TLU[Z
· Certain disclosures about the use of the fair value using the three tiered hierarchy.
· A market sensitivity analysis.
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NSVZZHY`HUKKLÄUP[PVUZ
AATP
ABET
Act
Administration
costs

Alternate

AMEO
AMIC
ASGISA
ATR
ATRAMI
Audit and Risk
Committee

BBBEE
BSC
CBMT
CBO
CEPPWAWU
CFO
Chairperson

Chambers

Accelerated Artisan Training
Programme
Adult Basic Education and Training
The Skills Development Act No 97 of
1998 (as amended)
Means the costs contemplated in
grant regulation 4(3) in terms of the
Act
A person appointed to act on behalf of
a member of the Governing Board in
the absence of the latter
Automobile Manufacturers’ Employers
Organisation
Automotive Industrial Council
Accelerated Shared Growth Initiative
of South Africa
Annual Training Report
Artisan Training and Recognition
Agreement for the Metal Industry
The committee established in terms
of schedule 5 clause 2(1)(b) of the
constitution to monitor the Governing
Board in discharging its duties relating
[V[OLTHUHNLTLU[VM[OLÄUHUJPHS
HɈHPYZVM[OLTLY:,;(
Broad-based Black Economic
Empowerment
Balanced Scorecard
Competency Based Modular Training
Community Based Organisation
Chemical, Energy, Pulp, Paper, Wood
and Allied Workers Union
*OPLM-PUHUJPHS6ɉJLY
The Chairperson of the Governing
Board nominated in terms of clause 9
of the constitution
The chambers established in terms
of schedule 5A of the constitution, as
provided under section 12 of the Act
Council for Higher Education

CHE
Chief Executive
6ɉJLY
;OL*OPLM,_LJ\[P]L6ɉJLYVM[OL
merSETA who is appointed under
clause 11 of the constitution.
CLO
*SPLU[3PHPZVU6ɉJLY
Committee
Any permanent committee, ad
hoc or sub-committee of the
merSETA, established in terms of the
constitution
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Constitution

Means the constitution of the
merSETA, in terms of section 13 of
the Skills Development Act, No 97 of
1998 (as amended)
DHET
The Department of Higher Education
and Training
Director-General Means the Director-General of Higher
Education and Training
Discretionary
grants
Means grants contemplated in grant
regulation 7, in terms of the Act
DoE
Department of Basic Education
DoL
Department of Labour
DTI
Department of Trade and Industry
Education and
Training
Registered statements of desired
education and training outcomes
and their associated standards
HZZLZZTLU[JYP[LYPHHZKLÄULKPU[OL
SAQA Act
ETQA
Education and Training Quality
Assurance Body
Executive
Committee
The committee established in
terms of sub-clause 8.1 (a) of the
constitution which has oversight of
the management of the operational
HɈHPYZVM[OLTLY:,;(
FET
Further Education and Training
Financial year
Means the period contemplated in
terms of the Public Finance
Management Act, which covers the
period 1 April to 31 March
FRIDGE
Fund for Research into Industrial
Development Growth and Equity
GAAP
Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice
GDS
Growth and Development Summit
Governing
Board
Accounting Authority of the merSETA
GRAP
Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice
IDZ
Industrial Development Zone
ISOE
Institute of Sectoral, Occupational
Excellence
Levies Act
The Skills Development Levies Act
1999 (Act No 9 of 2003)
NAMB
National Artisans Moderation Body
QCTO
Quality Council for Trades and
Occupations
QDP
Quality Development Partner
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HEAD OFFICE
merSETA House
95 7th Avenue
Cnr Rustenburg Road
Melville, Johannesburg
Tel: 010 219 3000
Fax: 0866 730017

LIMPOPO
1st Floor
No 8 Corridor Street
Route N4, Business Park
Ben Fleur Ext 11
Witbank
Tel: 0861 637 735
Fax: 013 656 4629

WESTERN CAPE
5thÅVVY*H[UPH)\PSKPUN
)LSSH9VZH6MÄJL
Development
Bella Rosa Road
Tygervalley
Tel: 0861 637 732
Fax: 021 914 8131

GAUTENG NORTH
& NORTH WEST (PTA)
Automotive Supplier Park
30 Helium Road
Rosslyn Ext. 2
Tel: 0861 637731
Fax: 0866 700299

Website: www.merseta.org.za

EASTERN CAPE
7PJRLYPUN7HYR6MÄJL:\P[LZ
14-20 Picketing Street
Newton Park
Port Elizabeth
Tel: 0861 637 734
Fax: 041 363 0144

FREE STATE
46 Second Avenue
Westdene
Bloemfontein
Tel: 0861 637 733
Fax: 051 447 8873

KWAZULU NATAL
3rd Floor, Clifton Place
19 Hurst Grove
Musgrave
Tel: 0861 637 736
Fax: 031 201 8732
GAUTENG SOUTH
merSETA House
95 7th Avenue
Cnr Rustenburg Road
Melville, Johannesburg
Tel: 010 219 3000
Fax:011 484 5499

